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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-34774
CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 20-5446972
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
400 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, lllinois 60605
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(312) 786-5600

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Unrestricted Common Stock, NASDAQ Global Select Market
par value $0.01 per share
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edbéturities Act. Ye€d No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yedd No X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €k filed all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l
during the preceding 12 months and (2) has beejedutb such filing requirements for the past 99sd&’es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant idsnitted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te b of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapder)ng the preceding 12 months (of for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit gost such files). Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by merfiee in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendien
this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company
See the definitions of "large accelerated filegtcelerated filer" and "smaller reporting compaimyRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check One):

Large accelerated fileil Accelerated filerO Non-accelerated filefd Smaller reporting compania
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢gs O No

As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate market valtieeoRegistrant's outstanding voting common equeétd by non-affiliates was approximately $2.4
billion based on the closing price of $27.52 parsiof unrestricted common stock.

The number of outstanding shares of the regissranthmon stock as of December 31, 2012 was 87,23 sl6ares of unrestricted common stock.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Documents Form 10-K Reference

Portions of the Company's Proxy Statement for 82Annual Meeting of Part Il
Stockholders
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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

Throughout this document, unless otherwise specdiethe context so requires:

"CBOE Holdings" refers to CBOE Holdings, Incdaits subsidiaries after the completion of therrggtiring transaction, which
occurred on June 18, 2010.

"CBOE" or the "Exchange" refers to (1) priorth@ completion of the restructuring transactionic@yo Board Options
Exchange, Incorporated, a Delaware non-stock catjwor, and (2) after the completion of the restitiog transaction, the
Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, aWeale stock corporation. CBOE became a wholly-owswdssidiary of
CBOE Holdings, Inc. on June 18, 2010.

"C2" refers to C2 Options Exchange, Incorporatelsich became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOHd#ws, Inc. on
June 18, 2010.

"CFE" refers to CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC, vaHiecame a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdjrigs. on June 18,
2010.

"CFTC" refers to the U.S. Commodity Futures Tradlmmmissior

"Delaware Action" refers to the lawsuit, whickasventitled CME Group Inc. et al. v. Chicago Bo@mtions Exchange,
Incorporated et al. (Civil Action No. 2369-VCN) afitkd in the Delaware Court on August 23, 2006wimich the CBOE and its
directors were sued in the Delaware Court by thar8of Trade of the City of Chicago, Inc. ("CBOTQBOT Holdings, Inc.
and two members of the CBOT who purported to reprea class of individuals who claimed that theyayer had the right to
become, members of the CBOE.

"Member" or "Members" refers to, prior to thengaletion of the restructuring transaction, any parar organization (or any
designee of any organization) that held a membgiisithe CBOE.

"Our exchanges" refers to CBOE, C2 and (

The "restructuring transaction” refers to ttangaction on June 18, 2010, in which CBOE convdrted a Delaware non-stock
corporation owned by its Members to a Delawarekstmeporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBB&dings.

"SEC" refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchanger@iesion

"Settlement Agreement" means the StipulatioBettlement, as amended, approved by the Court af¢ry of the State of
Delaware in the Delaware Action.

"SPX" refers to our a.m. settled S&P 500 Indrgh@ngetraded option:

"We," "us," "our" or "the Company" refers to ()ior to the completion of the restructuring tractson, CBOE, and, as the
context may require, CBOE Holdings, and (2) after tompletion of the restructuring transaction, E&abldings and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

"VIX" refers to the CBOE Volatility Index methodolgs

References to "options" or "options contracts'hia text of this document refer to exchange-tragedrities options and references to
"futures” refer to futures and securities futuresteacts.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements within the meaning of the Pri&geurities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995 that involve a number of risks and utaiaties. You can identify these statements bwéod-looking words such as "may,"
"might," "should,"” "expect," "plan," "anticipate’believe," "estimate," "predict," "potential” ordntinue," and the negative of these terms and
other comparable terminology. All statements tefiect our expectations, assumptions or projectabwut the future other than statement
historical fact are forwartboking statements, including statements in thesiBess" and "Management's Discussion and Analysignancial
Condition and Results of Operations.” These forwaoking statements, which are subject to known amichown risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us, may include projections ofwure financial performance based on our grosttategies and anticipated trends in our
business. These statements are only predictiorsllzasour current expectations and projections tfobure events. There are important
factors that could cause our actual results, lefattivity, performance or achievements to diffeaterially from that expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements. In particular, whwuld consider the risks and uncertainties desdrnimder "Risk Factors" in this Annual
Report.

While we believe we have identified material ristkgse risks and uncertainties are not exhaudtleecover, we operate in a very
competitive and rapidly changing environment. N&sks and uncertainties emerge from time to time, iiis not possible to predict all risks
and uncertainties, nor can we assess the impatitfaictors on our business or the extent to which factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from #hesntained in any forward-looking statements.

Some factors that could cause actual results ferdifclude:

« the loss of our right to exclusively list certandex option product

e increasing price competition in our indus

» compliance with legal and regulatory obligatic

» decreases in the amount of trading volumes orfaistlthe mix of products traded on our exchan
» legislative or regulatory chang

* increasing competition by foreign and domestictergt

» economic, political and market conditio

» our ability to operate our business without &tolg the intellectual property rights of othersldhe costs associated with
protecting our intellectual property rights;

» our ability to maintain access fee reven

* our ability to accommodate trading volume andeoitransaction traffic, including increases irding volume and order
transaction traffic, without failure or degradatiohperformance of our systems;

* our ability to protect our systems and commutidcanetworks from security risks, including cylkstacks
e our ability to attract and retain skilled managetrard other personn

e our ability to maintain our growth effective

e our dependence on third party service providerd

« the ability of our compliance and risk managemeathuds to effectively monitor and manage our r

For a detailed discussion of these and other fa¢kat might affect our performance, see ParemlIfLA. of this Report. We caution you
not to place undue reliance on the forward-looldtajements, which speak only as of the date ofitirig.
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PART |
Item 1. Business
Overview

CBOE Holdings, Inc. is the holding company for Gigjo Board Options Exchange, Incorporated, C2 Ogtitxthange, Incorporated,
CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC and other subsidiaries.

The primary business of the Company is the operatfanarkets for the trading of listed, or exchatigeled, options contracts on
three broad product categories: 1) the stocksdifitdual corporations (equity options), 2) variauarket indexes (index options) and 3) other
exchange-traded products (ETP options), such asaege-traded funds (ETF options) and exchangedradtes (ETN options). We also
offer futures products through our futures markkée Company owns and operates three stand-alomhaeges, but reports the results of its
operations in one reporting segment. CBOE is oungaty market and offers trading for listed optighsough a single system that integrates
electronic trading and traditional open outcry ingdon our trading floor in Chicago. This integeatiof electronic trading and traditional open
outcry trading into a single exchange is knownwashybrid trading model. C2, launched in Octobet@0s our all-electronic exchange that
also offers trading for listed options, but witkliferent market model and fee structure than CBOIEE, our all-electronic futures exchange,
offers futures on the VIX Index, as well as on othmducts. All of our exchanges operate on ouppetary technology platform known as
CBOE Command.

Since 1974, the first full year of trading on CBQiading volume on our exchanges has grown fronm Bs@million contracts to 1.1
billion contracts in 2012 , our most recent fisgaar. In addition, the number of exchanges opegatiarkets for the trading of exchange-
traded options has expanded to eleven as of Dece3ith2012.

The following chart illustrates annual contractwmk across the different categories of productietiaat the Company for the periods
indicated:

Annual Contract Volume

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Equities 494,289,30 516,136,93 572,688,13 634,710,47 604,024,95
Indexes 304,339,90 320,389,99 269,989,51 222,787,51 259,499,72
Exchange-traded products 311,792,12 368,364,05 276,362,70 277,266,21 329,830,38
Total Options Volume 1,110,421,33 1,204,890,98 1,119,040,34 1,134,764,20 1,193,355,07
Futures 23,892,93 12,041,10 4,402,37: 1,155,31! 1,161,01!
Total Contract Volume 1,134,314,26 1,216,932,08 1,123,442,72 1,135,919,52 1,194,516,08

Our operating revenues are primarily driven bydeation fee revenues, which are generated on titeacts traded on our exchanges.
In order to increase the volume of contracts trastedur exchanges, we strive to develop and proemi&acts designed to satisfy the
trading, hedging and risk-management needs of @uket participants.

Our principal executive offices are located at &ith LaSalle Street, Chicago, lllinois 60605, andtelephone number is (312) 786-
5600.

Our web site isvww.choe.comInformation contained on or linked through ourweite is not incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

History

CBOE was founded in 1973 as a r&toek corporation owned by its Members. CBOE wadfitist organized marketplace for the trac
of standardized, exchange-traded options on egaityrities. CBOE Holdings was incorporated in tteteSof Delaware on August 15, 2006.
In June 2010, CBOE demutualized (see "Restructdrmgsaction”) and CBOE, C2 and CFE became whollyieal subsidiaries of CBOE
Holdings. In 2004, CBOE began to operate a futasehange, CFE, and on October 29, 2010, C2, thep@oy’s all-electronic options
exchange, initiated operations.

Restructuring Transaction

On June 18, 2010, CBOE converted from a non-stogkaration owned by its Members into a stock caoaion that is a wholly-owned



subsidiary of CBOE Holdings. In the restructurirgnisaction, each CBOE regular membership (an "Exgh&eat") owned by a CBOE
Member on June 18, 2010 converted into 80,000 stadr€lass A common stock of CBOE
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Holdings. Seat owners received a total of 74,40@d4ares of Class A common stock of CBOE Holdimghé restructuring transaction. In
addition, certain persons who satisfied the queifon requirements set forth in the Settlemente&grent in the Delaware Action received a
total of 16,333,380 shares of Class B common sté€XBOE Holdings on June 18, 2010. Pursuant tSeétlement Agreement, qualifying
members of the plaintiff class received a cash matrof$300.0 million.

Immediately following the issuance of the Classmil £lass B common stock, the board of directolSBOE Holdings declared and
paid a special dividend of $1.25 per outstandirggesiof Class A and Class B common stock, or $1d@libn in the aggregate.

The initial public offering of 13,455,000 sharesunfrestricted common stock, including 2,085,774ehaf unrestricted common stock
sold by selling stockholders, for a price of $290@0 share, was completed on June 18, 2010. Ne¢eds to the Company after deducting
underwriter's fees and commissions and other ektpenses were $301.2 million. Costs directly @iased with the Company's initial public
offering were recorded as a reduction of the gppeseeds received in arriving at the amount reabindedditional paid-in capital.

Upon consummation of the initial public offeringetshares of Class A and Class B common stockamsteeted into unrestricted
common stock and sold in the initial public offeriautomatically converted into 44,323,803 shargSlass A-1 common stock and
44,323,803 shares of Class A-2 common stock.

The restructuring transaction, completed on Jun€@80, converted CBOE from a non-stock compani Wiembers into a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CBOE Holdings, a corporatiothvgtockholders. Members that owned an Exchangetf@eame stockholders of CBOE
Holdings.

Tender Offers

On November 24, 2010, the Company completed twewwent tender offers for 5,983,713 shares of CAaé¢scommon stock and
5,983,713 shares of Class A-2 common stock at ehpse price of $25.00 per share. The purpose déttaer offers was to allow Class A-1
and Class A-2 stockholders to obtain liquidity éocertain portion of their shares. Subsequentdalbsing of the tender offers and automatic
conversion of Class A-1 common stock, an additi®ar23 shares of unrestricted common stock ant#68&hares of Class A-2 common
stock were purchased by the Company due to a alextfustment. The net proceeds received fromratiali public offering were used to
purchase the shares of Class A-1 and Class A-2 acomstock in the tender offers.

Conversion of Class A-1 and Class A-2 Common Stock

On December 15, 2010 and June 13, 2011, respggteath share of Class A-1 and Class A-2 commark$ssued and outstanding,
totaling 38,340,090 and 38,297,994, respectivaipyerted into one share of unrestricted commorkstotaling 76,638,084 shares. As a
result, as of December 31, 2011, no shares of @ldssr Class A-2 common stock were outstanding.

Industry

Our primary business of offering exchange-tradeiibap and futures is part of the large and grovgtaipal derivatives industry.
Derivatives are financial contracts whose valugeisved from some other underlying asset or ref@eralue. These underlying assets and
reference values include individual stocks, staalekes, debt instruments, interest rates, currencgenmodities, various benchmarks related
to trading and investment strategies, economicatdrs and "artificial" assets such as pollutights. The global derivatives industry
includes both exchanges and a large over-the-com#eket. The most common types of derivativesopteons, futures and swap contracts.
These products allow for various types of risk ¢adolated and transferred.

Exchange-Traded Options and Futures

Options represent a contract giving the buyer igpiet,rbut not the obligation, to buy or sell a dfied quantity of an underlying security
or index at a specific price for a specific peraddime. Options provide investors a means for lgigspeculation and income generation,
while at the same time providing leverage with exspo the underlying asset. Options on U.S. stesirare traded privately between two
parties (known as "over-the-counter" or "OTC" opt} as well as traded on U.S. securities exchafdesvast majority of derivatives traded
on U.S. securities exchanges are options on ind@idquities, market indexes and ETPs. Over-thexteowptions that are traded also include
options on individual equities, ETPs and indexesluding SPX.

Futures represent a contract in which the buyersalidr agree on a price today for a product tdddevered and paid for in the future.
Each contract specifies the quantity of the itermh toe time of delivery or payment.

Trading
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In the listed options market, there are currengiiians contracts covering approximately 3,200 ulyiley stocks, indexes and ETPs. "
presence of dedicated liquidity providers, inclgdinarket-makers, is a key feature of the optionskata. Market-makers are required to
provide continuous bids and offers for substantiall listed option series. In return for these ooitments, market-makers receive margin
relief as well as other incentives such as padiigm rights and fee incentives.

Over the past decade, trading in the options mdr&eimigrated from being almost exclusively condddace-tdface, or "open outcry.
to being primarily electronic. As a result, maryuiidity providers now operate remotely, away frdva physical trading floors, and the
majority of options trading volume is handled anda@uted electronically.

Trends
Fragmentation

Over the past ten years, the number of optionsangds has more than doubled, from five exchangelewen. Consolidation of any
scale at the holding company level last impactedigied options markets in 2008, when the parergarations for Amex and NYSE ARCA
merged. The ability to offer multiple, differentat market and pricing models, coupled with theaglity of introducing new exchanges on
existing technology, have led to multiple exchaogerators, including CBOE, operating more than@xhange. As the business continues
to expand, and offer greater margins than the g@uitling business, it is possible that our contpesj or new entrants into the exchange
business, could open new options exchanges.

Cost Competition

As the number of exchange participants expand$iamges have become much more aggressive at \gifiz@s to attract business. This
includes both transaction fees assessed to aégeslty, and incentive programs to attract ordewf Order flow, particularly retail order
flow, is the primary driver of option exchange atérg results. In the past several years, the cttiggefor this business has become
increasingly fierce, with both exchanges and mank&kers competing to attract this order flow. S@rehanges have structured their options
businesses in partnership with established mawkgicgpants and order flow providers. Others offpecific payments for order flow, in
addition to any economic incentives received froarket-makers and other participants.

Technology

Exchanges also differentiate themselves basedeotetthnology, both in terms of functionality andfpemance, which they employ to
attract market participants. Market participantstcwally demand improved performance and reduatzhty. They expect exchanges to
provide them with additional functionality, includj risk mitigation for market-makers and processiigomplex orders.

Competitive Strengths

We have established ourselves as a global leadenanvator in the options industry. We believeave well positioned to further
enhance our leadership position through severatkeypetitive strengths:

» Leading Brand, Reputation and Market Positio As the world's first options exchange, CBOE'sléahip role in options
trading is recognized worldwide. We are the large&. options exchange, based on both contractneland notional value al
one of the largest options exchanges in the w@ld.opinions and positions on industry issues aoglst by regulators, elected
officials, industry and finance leaders and pobeperts worldwide.

* Innovation and Product Developmen In addition to being the original marketplace $tandardized, exchange-traded options,
we created the world's first index options and hasen the source of many other innovations witpeesto products, systems
and market structure in the options industry.

* Innovatio—We work closely and collaboratively with market fi@pants to introduce new products and serviceng¢et
the evolving needs of the derivatives industry. hdee introduced innovative products such as ingons, options and
futures on the VIX Index and other volatility inde¢ Long-Term Equity Anticipation Securities ("LESP and FLEX
options. Our option strategy benchmark indexed) siscthe CBOE S&P 500 BuyWrite Index, the CBOE &0B PutWrite
Index, and the CBOE S&P 500 Implied Correlationdxdhave received industry awards for innovatior2012, we
introduced S&P 500 Variance futures on CFE, S&P B@fge options on CBOE, and security futures aridrapon the
CBOE Emerging Markets ETF Volatility Index and 88OE Crude Oil ETF Volatility Index, among otheogucts.

5
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» Exclusive Product—We have the exclusive right to list securities opsi based on the S&P 500, the S&P 100 and the
indexes and have created our own proprietary inglare index methodologies, including the VIX Index other volatility
products based on the VIX methodology. Some ofeawstusive products are among the most activelyetiggroducts on
CBOE and in the industry. Our proprietary indexed sadex methodologies provide benchmarks for mgtiesers and
investment product issuers, serve as the baswufoexclusive products and provide us with licegsievenue.

* Hybrid Trading Model. Our Hybrid trading model on CBOE integrates opatcry and electronic trading into a single
exchange. We believe that this innovative appradfehs our users a diverse pool of liquidity and #bility to execute complex
strategies that may not be available on purelyescimsed trading systems.

» Leading Proprietary Technology Platforn We own, operate and maintain our core tradingiaftimation technology and
systems, and we continue to commit substantialiress towards ongoing development and implememtatidhese capabilitie
Market participants rely on our technology andasfructure, which provides a high level of avaliaband reliability. We
believe the CBOE Command trading platform is amitregmost advanced trading platforms in the wotldah simultaneously
support both screen and floor-based trading fotipialtrading models, products and matching algoni. The technology
underlying CBOE Command is designed for extreméip lperformance, capable of handling over a milli@msactions a
second with micro-second response time. It is lmuilbpen standards providing platform independamckis designed to be
scalable for both capacity and throughput.

» Liquidity. We support the options trading activities of TngdPermit Holders, i.e. individuals or firms thadld trading permits
(TPH organizations). We believe that this diverselpf liquidity providers, in combination with obroad range of products,
Hybrid trading model and the CBOE Command tradilegferm, offers our users the liquid markets theguire to effectively
execute their trading strategies.

» Experienced Management Tear Our management team has extensive experienbe ioptions industry, with the members of
the senior management team having an average oR&waears of experience in the options industiyr @anagement team has
demonstrated an ability to grow our business thinac@ntinued product and technological innovatiomd @ respond to changi
industry dynamics through ongoing adaptation ofraarket model. In addition, as announced in Decer20#&2, effective at th
2013 annual meeting of stockholders, William J.d&tqy, our current Chairman and Chief Executive €2ffj will become the
Executive Chairman and Edward T. Tilly, our currBnésident and Chief Operating Officer, will becoBtgef Executive
Officer, with Edward L. Provost, our current ExgeatVice President and Chief Business Developméfit®, assuming the
titte of President and Chief Operating Officer. @ibility to promote from within demonstrates thietd and depth among senior
management at our Company.

Growth Strategy

Despite a decline in current year trading, overghst several years, trading in derivative prodhasexpanded as a result of a number
of factors including technological advances thatehiacreased investor access, declining costsdrsuglobalization and greater
understanding of the products by increasingly sstjfsited market participants. The Company is wadiipned to leverage its competitive
strengths to take advantage of these trends.

We intend to further expand our business and iserear revenues and profitability by pursuing théofving growth strategies:

» Continue to Enhance Our Trading Platform.We recognize that the opportunity to participatéhe growth of the derivative
markets will be driven in great part by the tradingctionality and systems capabilities that anhexge offers to market
participants. The CBOE Command trading platforneisffstate-of-the-art functionality, speed, perfaroea capacity and
reliability, providing the ability to support bothe hybrid trading model at CBOE and, in alterrattonfigurations, the fully
electronic models at C2 and CFE. We intend to usestwong in-house development capabilities andicoed investment to
further augment the functionality and capacity of trading systems. In 2012, we moved our tradénenigr CBOE and CFE to
New Jersey in order to reduce distance latencfirfos trading on our exchanges (C2's trade engia® already located in Ne
Jersey).

» Develop Innovative Product: We intend to continue to build on our reputaté@nan industry innovator through the
development of new and innovative products. Wenidt® use licensed products and proprietary irttll property to create
exclusive products that meet the needs of the afivias industry and enhance our brand. We anteiiett our new and
innovative products will help drive trading volum®g attracting new customers to our exchanges apanel the array of
products available to existing customers. In addijtive believe our

6
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Products

continuing product innovations will generate in@ea@ use of our other products, in the same waymbéaproducts and the
CBOE S&P 500 BuyWrite Index have generated addititrading activity in SPX.

Pursue International Opportunitiesin 2012, we announced plans to open a London hdtegpand to nearly 24 hour trading in
2013 on CFE. The hub is intended to provide Eurofiemns with a cost-efficient way to send and reeeCFE data and execute
trades on the exchange. The London hub began apesdm February 2013. The extended trading sessgilbhe designed to
accommodate European firms that want to estabfigfffset VIX Index futures positions. We also heldr first European Risk
Management Conference in 2012, building on theesgof our domestic Risk Management Conferenceplreto continue
pursuing international opportunities to increasglitng in our products.

Offer Compelling Economic Market ModeDur fee schedule provides benefits to market ppdits who concentrate their
overall trading activity, whether market-maker, magjeor firm proprietary, on CBOE. We believe that ¢ee structure
encourages market participants to increase thsinbas at CBOE by reducing the per contract féroveasing per contract
incentives based on the attainment of certain mipmtiume thresholds. In 2012, we introduced a Molume Incentive
Program ("VIP") that provides payments to firmstthgecute volume in excess of certain volume tholkeish Since its
introduction, we have introduced changes to VIRetnain competitive. In February 2013, we introduaadnnovative pricing
model on C2 that bases fees and rebates, for egpiityns, on the spread between bids and offensiasket width. We regularly
review and update our fee schedule to provide duasimy-leading economic offering.

Increase Knowledge About Our ProducWe are committed to educating potential investbauathe uses for our products,
especially our proprietary products. To that eneimtend to continue our offerings through the @i Institute, including
education sessions and published materials, battedrand online. We also educate potential invedtorough our domestic a
European Risk Management Conferences and throughipation in industry events. We plan to contirthese activities and
look for other opportunities to grow the user bfsseour products.

Attract Overthe-Counter Market Participants. We seek to attract participants from the overdbenter market, who have be
under pressure to move trading to a centrally eland centrally traded environment. CFLEX, ouctetaic system for trading
FLEX options, allows participants to customize kewytract terms including strike price, exercisdesgnd expiration dates of |
to fifteen years with the administrative ease dedring guarantees of standardized listed optidfeslaunched a new version of
CFLEX in 2012, CFLEX 2.0, that enables users tovenmiently access FLEX options via CBOE Commandstaddard CBOE
interfaces, which is of particular appeal to deslgho are active in OTC equity options. Also, ili20we introduced S&P 500
Variance futures on CFE, which we believe will happeal to OTC market participants. S&P 500 Vargsfutures offer similar
quoting conventions and economic performance as @fFiance swaps, while providing the advantagesxohange-traded
contracts -- transparency, price discovery and oparty clearing guarantees.

Expand Service Offerings We believe there are significant opportunitiegléoive revenue from new and expanded service
offerings, including through the sale of marketad®&ur subsidiary, Market Data Express, LLC ("MDX8Is historical options
data, as well as real-time data for certain pragrjeproducts and indexes. It also provides madkét through CBOE Streaming
Markets ("CSM"), a streaming data feed that inctuni®re detailed information than the data providgthe Options Price
Reporting Authority (“OPRA”). In 2013, we plan tolgance CSM's offerings to include market depttaddition, through a set
of arrangements with S&P, we permit S&P to licetimeCompany's proprietary indexes and index metlogiks for certain
purposes to securities firms and other exchandes Company and S&P have agreed that S&P may liceamser more clearing
agencies to clear OTC options based on the S&Rri#X that meet certain criteria, and that S&P wdlinpensate us for any
transaction cleared under such a license baseueamotional value of the transaction.

Pursue Select Strategic Opportunitie We evaluate strategic opportunities that we keligill enhance stockholder value. We
specifically look for strategic opportunities begoour current businesses that will capitalize onamre competencies and
diversify our sources of revenue.

Our options exchanges provide a marketplace fotréiténg of options contracts that meet criteri@lelsshed in rules of the respective
exchange. The options contracts listed for tradtietude options on individual equities, optionsvamious market indexes as well as options
on ETPs. In addition, we provide marketplaces ifading futures contracts and cash equities thraiglh and CBOE Stock Exchange, LLC
("CBSX"), respectively. CBSX is not a consolidatdsidiary of the Company.
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« Equity Options. We offer trading in options with terms of up to& months on the stocks of approximately 2,80@a@tions.
The stocks underlying our individual equity opticre listed on equity exchanges. In addition, vge affer trading in LEAPS on
approximately 850 stocks.

* Index Options. We offer trading in options on several differbnvad-based market indexes, including the VIX Index
proprietary index that we developed, which has bexa widely recognized measure of equity markedtility. The index
options we list include some of the most widelyogrized measures of the U.S. equity markets, ssitheaS&P 500, the DJIA,
the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell 2000. Options baseiddexes are among our most actively traded mtsdwith several
options listed exclusively with us (for exampletiops on the S&P 500, S&P 100, DJIA and the VIXdrll We also offer
trading in LEAPS on several of our index products.

« Options on ETPs. We offer trading in options on over 350 ETFs &Td\Ns based on various domestic and foreign market
indexes, as well as on volatility, commodities,reacies and fixed income instruments. We also dféeting in LEAPS on 90
ETPs.

« Futures. We provide a marketplace for trading futures tigto our wholly-owned subsidiary, CFE. To date, Gl focused on
the trading of futures related to CBOE-created Malaindexes.

e Equities. In early 2007, the Company invested, along wéthesal broker dealers, in an exchange that provadearketplace for
individual equity securities. This trading facilitygnown as CBSX, provides a marketplace for traditogks listed on equity
exchanges. As stated above, CBSX is not a consetidaubsidiary of the Company.

Proprietary Products

The Company has developed several of its own petasi indexes and index methodologies. These irchathtility indexes based on
various broad-based market indexes (such as the5B&Pthe DJIA, the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell 20006latility indexes based on
ETFs and individual stocks, the CBOE S&P 500 Impl@orrelation Index and a series of option strateggychmarks, including BuyWrite,
PutWrite and Collar indexes based on the S&P 5@0BaryWrite indexes based on other broad-based rhenttexes. We also have licensed
others to use some of these indexes to create godnd have entered into agreements whereby wedranted to others the rights to sub-
license some of these indexes. The Company gesertenue from the calculation and disseminatioovef thirty real-time index values for
third party licensors and from the licensing of pupprietary indexes.

In 2012, we introduced S&P 500 Range options on EB&hd the CBOE NASDAQ-100 Volatility Index futurasd S&P 500 Variance
futures, all traded on CFE. Security futures antiobog on the CBOE Emerging Markets ETF Volatilihdex, the CBOE Brazil ETF Volatili
Index and the CBOE Crude Oil ETF Volatility Indexese also launched on CFE and CBOE, respectively.

Strategic Relationships

The Company also has long-term business relatipashith several providers of market indexes. Wenge their indexes as the basis
for index options. In some instances, these licepsevide us with the exclusive right to list optsocontracts based on these indexes. Of
particular note are the following:

» S&P 500 and S&P 100 Indexe We are able to offer options contracts on the S8 Index and the S&P 100 Index as a result
of a licensing arrangement with S&P Dow Jones leslid. LC. Under our license with S&P Dow Jones Iedid_LC, CBOE and
C2 have the exclusive right to list options on theslexes until 2018 and the right to use thesesamdral other indexes
published by Standard & Poor's as the basis fodstalized, exchange-traded options contracts 208P.

 DJIA. We are able to offer contracts on the Dow Jondsdtrial Average (DJIA) as a result of a licensimgangement with
S&P Dow Jones Indices, LLC. This license provideshe right to use the DJIA and several other iedgublished by Index
Services as the basis for standardized, exchaageédroptions contracts. Under the license, the @osnpas the exclusive right
to list securities options on the DJIA during starttU.S. trading hours until December 31, 2017.

«  NASDAQ 100. We are able to offer contracts on the NASDAQ [riifex as a result of a licensing arrangement wSNAQ.
This license provides CBOE the right to use the RA® 100 as the basis for standardized, exchangedraptions contracts.
The license with NASDAQ is non-exclusive and iseffve until the end of 2015.

» Russell Indexes We are able to offer contracts on the RusselD20d other indexes in the Russell index famila agsult of a
licensing arrangement with Frank Russell Co. Tieisrise provides CBOE the right to use the
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Russell indexes as the basis for standardized aexghtraded options contracts. This license isexatdsive and is effective
through the end of 2014.

Market Model

As discussed in more detail below, our exchangesige reliable, orderly, liquid and efficient matgiaces for the trading of options
and futures by market participants. Our exchangesate quote-driven auction markets that involweimber of different market participants.

Trading Permit Holders

Purchasing a monthly Mark&aker Trading Permit (CBOE, C2), Electronic Accessmit (CBOE, C2) or Floor Broker Trading Per
(CBOE) for the respective exchange conveys "Traéiegnit Holder" status on the respective exchaoded permit holder. Parties are
required to have CFE Trading Privilege Holder statuorder to have trading privileges on CFE.

A Trading Permit Holder on one of our options exules is allowed to enter orders into the tradirgiesy for that exchange. Trading
Permit Holder entities can execute trades for thein accounts, for clearing firm accounts, for @lteounts of other permit holders or for the
accounts of customers of clearing firms.

Options Trading Permits:

e Market+-Maker Trading Permit Holders (CBOE, C2}As discussed in more detail under "Market Paréinig," a Market-Maker
Trading Permit entitles the holder to act as a miankaker, DPM, eDPM or LMM on the respective exaw®rif applicable on
such exchange. This permit provides an appointmrelit of 1.0 (which is a measure of how many adaske Trading Permit
Holder can quote), a quoting and order entry badtiwallowance, up to three logins and trading flaccess. Trading all classes
listed on CBOE requires a minimum of thirty-threzmits.

*  Electronic Access Permit ("EAP") (CBOE, (—The EAP entitles the holder to electronic accesté¢ exchange. The CBOE
EAP permit does not provide access to the tradow fThe EAP provides an order entry bandwidtbvadince and up to three
logins.

* Floor Broker Trading Permit (CBOE—The Floor Broker Trading Permit entitles the holtteact as a Floor Broker. This permit
provides an order entry bandwidth allowance, ughtee logins and trading floor access.

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder Status

Applicants for Trading Permit Holder status mustéhnadequate financial resources and credit to asskienresponsibilities and
privileges of Trading Permit Holder status. All @inag Permit Holders must understand the rules aegdlations of the applicable exchange
and agree to abide by them. Additionally, they noashply with the provisions of the Securities Exopa Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act")
and the rules and regulations issued by the SEC.

Our Regulatory Services Division is the investigatarm of our exchanges with regard to exchangssrdirading Permit Holders who
are found to have violated a rule can be subjesatwtions such as fines, trading suspensions r@xjpolsion from the particular exchange.

Market Participants

Direct access to our options marketplaces is gdath®ugh trading permits. A trading permit ensttée holder to conduct business on
the exchange, including in one of the participats described below.

» Market-Maker. A market-maker engages in trading our produdteefor its own account or for the account ofdvider firm,
but does not act as an agent representing ordecsistomers. A market-maker may operate on théngdtbor (CBOE only) or
remotely and has certain quoting obligations irafipointed product classes. They are granted megtigf to ensure they can
conduct business without requiring excessive ansmohtapital. Market-makers must have a relatiqnstith a clearing firm
that will hold and guarantee their positions. Thegarity of trading permits in use on CBOE are ukedmarket making. In order
for a Market-Maker Trading Permit to be used toasch market-maker in any of SPX options, VIX opgi@or SPXpm options,
the Trading Permit Holder must obtain a "Tier Apgoient” for the respective option class. Each Agpointment is exchange-
specific and class-specific.

* Lead Marke-Maker, or LMM. An LMM is a market-maker that assumes specidabakibns with respect to providing
electronic and/or open outcry quotes for specifitamns classes at CBOE. Currently, LMMs are utdize SPX options and
S&P 100 Index options, and as open outcry quoteigeos in certain classes where
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an off-floor DPM is providing electronic marketslpnOther than in SPX, the LMMSs receive participatirights in electronic or
open outcry. In SPX, LMMs do not receive participatrights, and four LMMs are appointed to quotawdtaneously each
expiration cycle.

» Floor Broker. An individual who represents orders on the CB€@dihg floor as an agent is known as a floor brokéyor
brokers generally do not trade for their own ac¢@umd do not receive any margin relief. They geteeravenue by charging
commissions to their customers for their servigeBoor broker may represent orders for his firpreprietary account provided
it is done in accordance with CBOE rules.

» Designated Primary MarkeMaker, or DPM. A DPM is a market-maker firm that has been agsigiesponsibilities in certain
options classes at CBOE. DPMs are obligated toigeosontinuous quotes in their appointed classéstba higher standard th
that of regular market-makers. DPMs are also expkitt participate in business development efforttract business to CBOE
for their appointed classes. DPMs also are graiadicipation rights” in their appointed classBarticipation rights guarantee
DPMs a minimum share of each trade for which theyom the best market.

» Electronic Designated Primary Mark-Maker, or eDPM. An eDPM is a market-maker that has been assigrsgabnsibilities
similar to a DPM but only operates remotely, notloa trading floor. They also are granted partitguarights in their appointed
classes but at a lower level than that of DPMdectihg their slightly lesser obligations. eDPMsv&eto supplement the role of
the DPM and are also motivated to engage in busidegelopment efforts in their appointed classes.

*  Member Firm. The term "member firm" is typically used to referthose firms that bring order flow to the exchas and that
are Trading Permit Holders for the purpose of etiagitheir customers' orders on the CBOE or C2 etpilace. These firms are
also referred to as "order flow providers." They@m@te revenue by charging commissions for theiees to their customers
and in some cases through the receipt of paymetiéir order flow.

Several of the functions described above, nametyket-maker, DPM, eDPM and LMM, are often groupagkther as "liquidity
providers." This name refers to the fact that thkbyprovide liquidity to the options market throutiteir various obligations to provide to the
marketplace two-sided quotes at which they aregatdid to trade. Any of these liquidity providersynb& designated as a preferred market-
maker by a member firm routing an order to CBOEe preferred market-maker is afforded a participatight on specific orders provided
that he or she meets certain other requiremenksregipect to the relevant option class and quatiigations.

Under its rules, CFE has the authority to estabtiginket-maker programs in its products and appmietor more DPMs, LMMs or
market-makers. However, CFE does not have a DPMyIldWimarket-maker program in VIX futures.

Hybrid Trading Model

Most option classes on CBOE are traded using itsridytrading model, in which aspects of both opattry and electronic trading are
integrated to function as a single exchange. B&la@ CFE are all-electronic exchanges. Our Hytoaiding model is supported by state-of-
the-art technology, including the CBOE Command tragitedform, which, in alternative configurations,@akerves as the trading platform
C2 and CFE.

CBOE market-makers stream their own individual @aaind orders into the CBOE trading engine arah the floor, in open outcry
transactions effected in their trading crowd. OybHd trading model allows CBOE to offer the befboth electronic and open outcry trad
models.

Algorithms

At the core of our market model are the matchigg@dhms, which is the means by which trades aezeted and allocated to market
participants. Our technology and the rules of oushanges provide for a variety of different algamits for matching buyers and sellers. We
have the ability to apply different matching algloms to different products in order to meet thedseaf particular market segments. The
setting of the matching algorithm affects the sludreach trade that a market participant receivelsiscentral to the opportunity and profit
potential of market-makers and other liquidity pgowgrs.

e CBOE's matching algorithm is modified pro-ratéth customer priority. CBOE's modified pro-ratgalithms grant liquidity
providers, who meet certain criteria, additionatipgation rights, based on a variety of factors.

e C2's matching algorithm is pro-rata for multipisted options classes. In February 2013, C2 gaption classes switched from
a straight pro-rata allocation algorithm to a pfioee matching algorithm with customer priority aD&M entitlement, as
defined below.
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*  The matching algorithm for VIX futures on CFEpisce-time priority. CFE has the flexibility totablish different matching
algorithms for its products. CFE also offers Tratl&ettlement (TAS) transactions in VIX futures,iethare aimed at helping
traders even out end-of-day price exposure in \tiifes.

Our options trading systems monitors the NatioredtBid and Offer ("NBBO"), and orders are not exed at a price inferior to the
displayed NBBO, except pursuant to limited excaiprovided in CBOE or C2's rules. Orders can béewbto other marketplaces via
contracted brokers for execution if a better digpthprice exists elsewhere. See "Regulatory Redpbtiss - Options Intermarket Linkage
Plan." Details on our technological capabilitiesweell as key systems offerings available to custsmare described in "Technology."

Pricing

Each of our exchanges establishes a fee scheditjethong other things, establishes the transafgmfor buying or selling options or
futures contracts on the exchange. CBOE utilizesang model in which transaction fees are chatgeahost professionals, including
marketmakers, but are not charged for most customer srdOE also has a volume incentive program, or, illiich pays credits to perr
holders for executing certain types and levelsusiitiess at the exchange.

In 2012 and January 2013, C2 used a maker-takangnnodel for multiply-listed options productsvitnich orders that take liquidity
from the marketplace are charged a transactioaddeorders that provide liquidity to the marketplaeceive a rebate. In February 2013, C2
modified its pricing model for equity options tooprde that market-maker, professional, broker-deahel firm transactions would be charged
fees based on the width of the markets.

CFE utilizes a pricing model in which transactieed vary depending on the type of market partitiparwhose behalf a trade is made
and on whether the trade is executed through Cl&ding system, is a day trade, or is a block t@dexchange of contract for related
position transaction. CFE also offers a Day Traee Program that provides rebates on trades théfyoiaa the program.

Competition

CBOE is the largest options exchange in the U.Sed@n both total contract volume and notional @alicontracts traded. The market
share for all options traded on U.S. exchanges theepast five years for CBOE and C2, combined raaged from 26.4% to 33.3&mnually.
For 2012 , our market share was 27.8% .

The U.S. options industry is extremely competitiviel the competition has intensified. We expectttieisd to continue. We compete
with a number of entities on several different tmrincluding the cost, quality and speed of cadérexecution, the functionality and ease of
use of our trading platform, the range of our pidand services, our technological innovation aabtion and our reputation. There are
nine other U.S. options exchanges that are ourgsyidirect competitors, including ISE, NYSE Arcay 8E Amex and NASDAQ OMX
PHLX. We also compete against futures exchangdmfgasimilar products and other financial instituns that write over-the-counter
derivatives. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @uahsumer Protection Act ("Dodd-Frank") legislatmmeates a category of marketplaces
called a Swap Execution Facility ("SEF"). SEFs wélve as marketplaces for the matching of swayséeions. We expect to compete
against futures exchanges and SEFs to attract @ftcipants.

Most options on equities and exchange-traded ptedac ETPs, listed and traded on CBOE and C2laceliated and traded on other
U.S. options exchanges. The options exchangesh®eareintroducing new pricing models over the last fears in order to attempt to attract
additional trades to their exchanges. These prigingels include traditional pricing, maker-takerdawnership benefits. See "Trends - Cost
Competition."

Our competitive challenge is to convince brokerlelesato route options orders to our exchanges rafiam to our competitors and to
convince liquidity providers to concentrate themniet making activity on our exchanges. This igipalarly true with respect to options on
individual equity securities and ETPs, which teadbé traded on multiple exchanges. We compete dgifwrawariety of methods, including:

e  Offering market participants an efficient, traagent and liquid marketplace for trading optionthithrough traditional open
outcry methods and through our electronic platfc@BOE Command,;
e Offering a fee schedule that both attracts ordmw thnd provides incentives to liquidity providt

e Providing advanced technology that offers briwaattionality, significant bandwidth, fast executj@ase of use, scalability,
reliability and security;

« Offering participants access to a broad array ofipcts and services, including proprietary prod

« Offering customers a deep, liquid market with tngdimechanisms to enable potential price improve)
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« Facilitating payment for order flow through the adistration of marketing fee

« Offering market participants potential partidipa rights for order flow that they direct or caus be directed to our exchanges;
and

« Providing brokers and their customers with a cotepdource of information on options as well as esitee options educatic

Technology

CBOE Command, our in-house developed technologypaus trading on multiple exchanges: CBOE, C2, GFBSX and
OneChicago, LLC. The technology supports diffeygoducts, different market models as well as midtipatching algorithms. As mentior
above, CBOE is a hybrid exchange, while C2, CFE@B8X are fully electronic. We have licensed owhteology for use by CBSX, an all-
electronic stock trading facility of CBOE, and Or€ago, an all-electronic exchange for trading lerggock futures.

CBOE Command

On CBOE, CBOE Command is the platform for our Hgllirading system, which was launched in 2003. $&&Ket Model -- Hybrid
Trading Model." CBOE Command provides featurescoésn-based and floor-based trading in what webelis a "best of both worlds"
market model.

CBOE Command is a Java application with an inftastire designed for high performance and low lateard is easily scalable for
capacity and throughput. Peak message traffic eage4.0 million transactions per second. The &chire and implementation of the system
allows for flexibility in allocation algorithms, fally integrated complex order book and severatiancmechanisms.

The platform supports a quote-driven market modene liquidity providers have quoting obligatioMarket-makers, DPMs, eDPMs
and LMMs typically stream at least hundreds of il of quotes into CBOE Command each day. Toifawl liquidity providers, CBOE
Command has a number of internal risk controldutting Quote Lock, Quote Risk Monitor and User Ihplonitor.

CBOE Command allows for a quick introduction offélient types of derivative and securities produotduding options, futures,
options on futures and stock products. In additaur,system facilitates different trading model®otigh the use of alternative configurations,
allowing us to provide both hybrid and fully elemrtic market models.

In 2012, CBOE launched CFLEX 2.0, built on the CBO&mmand platform. Since the new system is pa@BR®E Command, users
can interact with FLEX orders in the same way &y ttho standard options. Also in 2012, CBOE movegiimary data center from the
CBOE building in Chicago to a data center locatioMew Jersey to eliminate distance latency. Theearalso introduced enhanced versions
of firm interface protocols and a complete opeatigstem upgrade of CBOE Command from Solaris @thReLinux.

Trade Match, Ticker Plant and Market Data

The Trade Match system is built on the same tedgyohs CBOE Command. It matches trades and seedstthThe Options Clearing
Corporation ("OCC"), which settles and clears theés. The Trade Match system provides matched trddrmation and post-trade
allocation functionality to clearing firms and beosk through a web-based interface and an applicatimagramming interface, or API.

Both incoming and outgoing market data is vitaite operations of our exchanges and to marketogaatits. Our ticker plant, XTP,
takes in market data feeds from OPRA, CTS/CQS, NAQDPthe CME Group, Inc. and other sources and digsates the data internally to
other systems on a publish/subscribe basis. XTB& racent processing peak was 5.0 million mesgagresecond, or MPS, inbound from
OPRA, with over 14.6 billion messages per day. X4fl our Index Calculation systems allow CBOE tawalte numerous different types of
indexes and add new ones as required.

Market data is sent to OPRA, CTS/CQS, NASDAQ datadors and to Trading Permit Holders via our ARIsluding FIX and CMi,
CBOE Financial Network and CSM. CSM was introduzed011 and provides a high speed multicast feagséns of market data. In 2013,
we plan to implement a high-speed book depth feeidition to our top-of-the-market feed being semugh CSM.

Disaster Recovery
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We operate and maintain disaster recovery fadlifiat essentially replicate the systems availabderr primary data center for CBOE
and CFE. In the event of an interruption at oumarriy facility, backup systems should be availalylehie open on the next business day.

Clearing System

The OCC acts as the issuer, counterparty and gtaaufan all options contracts traded on our optiershanges and other U.S. options
exchanges. Upon execution of an option trade, arestnit to the OCC a record of all trading actifdy clearing and settlement purposes. The
OCC fulfills these same functions for futures praguraded on the CFE.

Market Data

Our markets generate valuable information regarthiegorices of our products and the trading agtivitthose markets. Market data
relating to price and size of market quotations tredprice and size of trades is collected andaateted by OPRA. OPRA disseminates the
information to vendors who redistribute the datarokers, investors and other persons or entitigsuse our markets or that monitor general
economic conditions. After costs are deductedfeabe collected are distributed among exchangeggzatits based on their cleared
transactions pursuant to the OPRA Plan. As of Déegra012 , our market data was displayed on apmprately 157,000 terminals
worldwide. See "Regulatory Environment and Compu&rfor further information on OPRA.

Through our subsidiary, MDX, we are expanding oarket data offerings. MDX is a market data vendonjling information on
specialized indexes, time and sales informationsppatialized reports of historical market data.

Regulatory Environment and Compliance

The following discussion covers the more significareas of regulation of us by the SEC and the Codity Futures Trading
Commission (CFTC).

Recent Developments

Laws and regulations regarding our business acgiémtly modified or changed, including in respottsadverse financial conditions,
new products, competition or at the request of tgplarticipants. The following is a summary of mecegulatory developments that may
impact our business.

Limit Up-Limit Down and Market-wide Circuit Breakes

In May 2012, the SEC approved a limit up-limit doplan intended to prevent trades in Regulation Nd#fgks from occurring outside
of specific price bands to reduce market volatilithe bands will be set around the average referprice of the security over the
immediately preceding five-minute period. In camtaases, a trading pause in a stock can occurgmnirtauthe plan. While only applying to
stocks, the plan will likely impact options tradiag option prices are derived in part from undagystock prices. At the same time as the
limit up-limit down plan announcement, the SEC asoounced revisions to the market-wide circuiakess. The revisions reduced the
market decline percentage thresholds for triggegicgcuit breaker, shortened the duration of trgdialts, reduced the number of trigger t
periods, replaced the Dow Jones Industrial Avergitfe the S&P as the pricing reference, and incredlse frequency of the calculation of 1
thresholds to daily. Both of these plans are scleeldio be implemented by all U.S. exchanges irfitaehalf of 2013. CFE will also be
implementing the revised market-wide circuit braake

Consolidated Audit Trail (CAT)

In 2012, the SEC directed the self-regulatory oizgtions, or SROs, through a new rule, to subrpiaa to create, implement and
maintain a consolidated audit trail (CAT), whichwla serve as a comprehensive audit trail of ortreswill allow regulators to efficiently
and accurately track all activity in Regulation NMé&curities in the U.S. markets. The rule requiaesyng other things, that, upon
implementation of a plan, data be reported to @rakrepository by 8 a.m. Eastern time the follogvatay by each exchange and broker de
We are working with the other SROs to develop th@ po implement a consolidated audit trail, whighequired to detail technological and
compliance aspects of the plan and the costs ttemgnt the plan, among other details. The SROsegp@red to submit the plan by April 26,
2013, although the SROs have requested an extemsdsr December 2013, with a phased implementatien the three years following the
effectiveness of the plan. The exchanges and plagiicipants are likely to incur significant cost$ated to the implementation of the
consolidated audit trail requirements.
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CFTC Core Principles

Dodd+rank amended the core principles with which destiggh contract markets like CFE must comply undei@bmmodity Exchanc
Act. In 2012, the CFTC adopted a number of new legguns applicable to designated contract marketsder to implement the amended
core principles. These regulations related to, ajrather things, compliance with rules, preventibmarket disruption, financial integrity of
transactions, disciplinary procedures, system s@fiel$ and financial resources. As a result, CFHemented a number of new rules, policies
and procedures in relation to these new requiresnent

Agency Rulemaking Areas

In addition to the above identified areas, the $&€ been directed under Dodd-Frank to implemenymaw rules, both alone and in
conjunction with the CFTC. These areas includefpliotmargining and swap clearing and execution.

Finally, the SEC has proposed rules, includingapfee caps and banning flash orders, that it baacted upon. While we do not
expect the SEC to take action with respect to ogiée caps or banning flash orders, as these patspare dated, if one or both of the
proposals were adopted, they could cause signifidt@anges to our market that may reduce our revpaueontract or reduce the volume of
trading on our exchanges.

Compliance
Securities Industry-CBOE and C2

Federal securities laws have established a twedisystem for the regulation of securities markets market participants. The first tier
consists of the SEC, which has primary respongitfitir enforcing federal securities laws. The setter consists of Self-Regulatory
Organization ("SROs"), which are non-governmentdities that must register with and are regulatgthie SEC. CBOE and C2 are SROs,
each registered under Section 6 of the Exchangag\at"national securities exchange" and are sutgjexwersight by the SEC. CBSX, which
is not an SRO, is a stock trading facility of CBQ¥s. a facility, CBOE is responsible for the regidatof the CBSX marketplace and the
following discussion of CBOE's responsibilitieslindes the responsibility to provide regulation @8SX and CBOE's other facilities.

SROs in the securities industry are an essentiapooent of the regulatory scheme of the Exchangdakgroviding fair and orderly
markets and protecting investors. To be registasea national securities exchange, an exchangesncstssfully undergo an application and
review process with the SEC before beginning opmrat Among other things, the SEC must determiaettie exchange has the capacity to
carry out the purposes of the Exchange Act. An $RGt comply with the Exchange Act and have thatghid enforce compliance by its
members and persons associated with its membdrghvetprovisions of the Exchange Act, the rules rgulilations thereunder and the rules
of the exchange.

In general, an SRO is responsible for regulatiagriembers through the adoption and enforcemeni@d$ governing the business
conduct of its members. The rules of the exchanggt miso assure fair representation of its memibetse selection of its directors and
administration of its affairs and, among other ¢isinprovide that one or more directors be represigrtof issuers or investors and not be
associated with a member of the exchange or wittoker or dealer. Additionally, the rules of theelkange must be adequate to ensure fair
dealing and to protect investors and may not impogeburden on competition not necessary or apjaiepin furtherance of the purposes of
the Exchange Act.

As registered national securities exchanges, \iytad facets of our CBOE and C2 operations argject to the SEC's oversight, as
prescribed by the Exchange Act. The Exchange Adttha rules thereunder impose on us many regulatwdyoperational responsibilities,
including the day-to-day responsibilities for markad broker-dealer oversight. Furthermore, as SRBOE and C2 are potentially subject
to regulatory or legal action by the SEC or otimeriested parties. The SEC also has broad enfontgowers to censure, fine, issue cease-
anddesist orders, prohibit us from engaging in someusfbusinesses, suspend or revoke our desigradiarregistered securities exchang
to remove or censure any of our officers or directeho violate applicable laws or regulations.

As part of its regulatory oversight, the SEC condyeriodic reviews and inspections of exchanges,GBOE and C2 have been
subject to such routine reviews and inspectiongh&extent such reviews and inspections resuédunlatory or other changes, we may be
required to modify the manner in which we condugt lousiness, which may adversely affect our businég collect certain fees derived
from our regulatory function and fines in connextigith our disciplinary proceedings. Under the subé each of our options exchanges, as
required by the SEC, any revenue derived from égelatory fees and fines cannot be used for nonlaiegy purposes.

CBOE and C2 are also subject to the record keaggqgirements of Section 17 of the Exchange Actuiting the requirement pursuant



to Section 17(b) of the Exchange Act to make centacords available to the SEC for examination.
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Section 19 of the Exchange Act also provides theatwist submit to the SEC proposed changes to aoyrafxchanges' rules, includi
revisions of their certificates of incorporationdanylaws. The SEC will typically publish the propbfor public comment, following which
the SEC may approve or disapprove the propos#l deems appropriate. The SEC's action is desigmedsure that the CBOE's and C2's
Rules and procedures are consistent with the ExgghAot and the rules and regulations under the &xgh Act. Certain categories of rule
changes, like fee changes, can be effective argfilbut the SEC retains the ability to suspend $ilinlys within a prescribed period of time.

CBOE Holdings

Certain aspects of CBOE Holdings are also subjeSEC oversight, including certain ownership antingprestrictions on its
stockholders. The focus of the SEC's regulatioB BOE Holdings is to assure fair representationraiding Permit Holders in the selectior
CBOE and C2 directors, public participation in fevernance of CBOE and C2 and that CBOE and C3atisfy their regulatory
responsibilities under the Exchange Act. Furtheemtitre SEC requires that CBOE Holdings give duanektp the preservation of the
independence of the selgulatory function of CBOE and C2 and to CBOE Hindd' obligations to investors and the generalipufbhe SEC
also requires that CBOE Holdings not take any astihat would interfere with the effectuation ofatecisions by the board of directors of
CBOE, C2 or National Stock Exchange, Inc. ("NS>&Mating to their regulatory functions or the sturetof the market that it regulates or
would interfere with the ability of the exchangescarry out their responsibilities under the ExaeAct. CBOE is committed to support
NSX in fulfilling its self-regulatory responsibilities. To the extent that@BHoldings' business activities involve or relatéhe exchanges,
the officers and directors of CBOE Holdings maydeemed to be officers and directors of the exchaf@epurposes of and subject to
oversight under the federal securities laws. Accmylgt, the SEC may exercise direct supervision @isdiplinary authority over certain CB(C
Holdings' activities and those activities may bbject to SEC approval and, in some cases, pubticenand comment.

Futures Industry-CFE

The operations of CFE are subject to regulatiotheyCFTC under the Commodity Exchange Act. The Codity Exchange Act
generally requires that futures trading in the BchiStates be conducted on a commodity exchanggndesd as a contract market by the
CFTC under the act. The Commaodity Exchange Act@R@C regulations establish criteria for an exchaegee designated as a contract
market on which futures and futures options comdratay be traded. Designation as a contract méosk#he trading of a specified futures
contract is non-exclusive. This means that the CRE® designate additional exchanges as contradtatsafior trading the same or similar
contracts.

CFE is a designated contract market that is subpeitte oversight of the CFTC under its principtesed approach and to a variety of
ongoing regulatory and reporting responsibilitiesler the Commodity Exchange Act. CFE has survei#aand compliance operations and
procedures to monitor and enforce compliance Wiricaprivilege holders with CFE rules. If we fail tomply with applicable laws, rules or
regulations, we may be subject to censure, firemse-and-desist orders, suspension of our busieassyal of personnel or other sanctions,
including revocation of our designations as a @mttmarket and derivatives clearing organization.

The National Futures Association ("NFA") performamg of these functions for CFE pursuant to a RegojeéServices Agreement with
CFE. CFE retains overall responsibility for theulkagion of its marketplace. CFE also remains restb@ for bringing disciplinary actions
against Trading Privilege Holders, including thdigbto issue fines in the case of serious rulelaiions. In the case of financially distressed
Trading Privilege Holders, CFE may take various y@Bcy actions to protect customers, other Tra#imglege Holders and CFE. CFE is
also a party to cooperative and regulatory inforomasharing agreements with other SROs and is abeenf the Intermarket Surveillance
Group.

Dodd+rank amended the core principles with which destiggh contract markets like CFE must comply underGbmmodity Exchanc
Act. In 2012, the CFTC adopted a nhumber of new legguns applicable to designated contract marketsder to implement the amended
core principles. These regulations relate to, amathgr things, compliance with rules, preventiomafrket disruption, financial integrity of
transactions, disciplinary procedures, system sifiels, and financial resources. As a result, CHi#dmented a number of new rules, poli
and procedures in relation to these new requiresnent

Regulatory Responsibilities

Our options exchanges are responsible for assefs@ngpmpliance of their Trading Permit Holdershattie respective exchange's rules
and the applicable rules of the SEC. The main #iet/that the exchanges engage in to measure @mplwith these rules include: (1) the
review of surveillance exception reports desigreddtect violations of exchange trading rulestii2)review of surveillance exception rep
designed to detect possible manipulation and vaatof other SEC rules; (3) the further invesiigmbf matters deemed to be problematic
upon review of the exception reports or mattersrgkto be problematic as a result of examinati(f)sthe investigation of complaints about
possible rule violations brought by
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customers, members or other SROs; and (5) the exsgion of CBOE and C2 Trading Permit Holders fomptiance with rules such as those
related to net capital, books and records, mardetss and other matters related to the TradingiPEiders' exchange business function.
further described below, each option exchangesis i@sponsible for reviewing its Trading Permit étok' activities related to the conduct of
business directly with public customers, or salegiice. We have delegated the responsibility tudoeot sales practice examinations for
options to FINRA, except that we retain responiibibr some of the sales practice examination$rafling Permit Holders that are not also
members of FINRA or another U.S. securities exchang

Section 17(d) of the Exchange Act and the relatech&Bnge Act rules permit SROs to allocate certegulatory responsibilities to avc
duplicative oversight and regulation. Under ExcteAgt Rule 17d-1, the SEC designates one SRO thebBesignated Examining Authority
("DEA") for each broker-dealer that is a membemaire than one SRO. The DEA is responsible for ¢éigeilatory oversight of the financial
responsibility aspects of that broker-dealer. Wethe DEA for many of our members.

Exchange Act Rule 17d-2 permits SROs to enteragteements, commonly called Rule 17d-2 agreemehish are approved by the
SEC and concern the enforcement of rules applidatddl of those SROs and relating to members ti&#%@s have in common. We have
entered into Rule 17d-2 agreements under which RIl¢Rallocated responsibility for enforcing ruledated to options sales practices with
respect to CBOE and C2 Trading Permit Holders asitiér trading rules and certain other rules watdpect to CBSX Trading Permit
Holders. We have entered into another Rule 17dr2emgent that allocates responsibility to each S&@fisuring that their allocated
common members complied with rules governing erpgigxercise declarations, options position limitd &rge options position reporting
and position adjustments. Finally, we have entarexla Rule 17d-2 agreement that allocates cer&siponsibilities under Regulation NMS to
a market participant's DEA.

The SEC approved a national market system plan didineeOptions Regulatory Surveillance AuthorityP{&ORSA Plan") with the
purpose of permitting the U.S. securities optiokchanges to act jointly in the administration, @tien and maintenance of a regulatory
system for the surveillance, investigation and ctéta of the unlawful use of undisclosed, mateinérmation in trading in one or more of
their markets. Through the sharing of the costhes$e regulatory activities and the sharing ofréigulatory information generated under the
ORSA Plan, the ORSA Plan is intended to enhanceffeetiveness and efficiency with which the examregulate their respective markets
and the national market system for options and/tadaduplication of certain regulatory efforts. TORSA Policy Committee delegated the
operation of the surveillance and investigativelitgoccontemplated by the ORSA Plan to CBOE. Thelanges have entered into a
Regulatory Services Agreement with CBOE, as semiogider, pursuant to which CBOE performs certaigulatory and surveillance
functions under the ORSA Plan and uses its autaimasgder trading surveillance system to perforesthfunctions on behalf of the
exchanges.

CBOE has entered into Regulatory Services Agreesneitlh other exchanges under which CBOE providesiteregulatory services
those exchanges. CBOE is currently providing sertactwo exchanges under Regulatory Services Aggatsn

In order to ensure market integrity, we extensivefyulate and monitor our Trading Permit Holdeaslimg activities. Providing
effective regulation is important for attractingdaretaining the confidence and participation of ketumakers, broker-dealers and institutional
and retail investors.

We expend considerable time, financial resourceseffiort to ensure that the exchanges' rules agulatons conform to regulatory
best practices within the securities exchange ingdasd within the regulatory regime overseen gy $=C, our primary regulator. In order to
support our efforts and those of our market paodiots to comply with applicable law and our optexechange rules, we have developed our
own automated market surveillance systems to momtoket activity on our option exchanges and a&td$. options markets.

As part of the self-regulatory process, discipljnaratters, other than minor matters covered byMinor Rule Violation Plan, are
reviewed by our Business Conduct Committee, whichuides both market participants and public represives. We are also a participant in
the Intermarket Surveillance Group ("ISG"). IS@isinformation-sharing cooperative governed by itevr agreement that provides for a
comprehensive surveillance sharing arrangemeddition to the agreement for confidential inforimoatsharing, the 1SG provides a
framework for the coordination of regulatory effodmong exchanges trading securities, commoditydatand related products to address
potential intermarket manipulations and tradings&su There are approximately 52 ISG member orgaémizaworldwide.

We collect certain fees derived from our regulatiomyction and fines in connection with our disaiglty proceedings. Under the rules
each of our options exchanges, as required by & Sny revenue derived from the regulatory feesfares cannot be used for non-
regulatory purposes.
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OPRA Plan, CTA Plan and NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Riieges Plan

CBOE and C2 are member exchanges in OPRA, a limiabdity company. All options exchanges are menshaf OPRA. The OPRA
limited liability agreement sets forth a systemtgporting options information that is administebgdthe member exchanges through OPRA,
consisting of representatives of the member exabam@PRA is the designated securities informatiroegssor for market information that is
generated through the trading of exchange-listedrgtes options in the U.S., and it disseminatersain core trading information, such as last
sale reports and quotations. We also participatearConsolidated Tape Association, or CTA, thestidated Quotation Plan, or CQ Plan,
and the NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Privileges Planjaehtperform analogous services for the U.S. equitiarkets. NYSE Technologies,
formerly the Securities Industry Automation Corgiara, acts as the "processor" for OPRA, CTA andGiePlan. NASDAQ acts as the
processor for the NASDAQ Unlisted Trading Plan.

Options Intermarket Linkage Plan

We are a party to the Options Order Protectionlaouked/Crossed Market Plan, known as the Optiotesiimarket Linkage Plan, which
is designed to facilitate the routing of ordersamtn exchanges in furtherance of a national magkstem. The principal purposes of the plan
are to promote price protection and to assurelitalters may execute investors' orders at the badtanprice, the "National Best Bid and
Offer" ("NBBO"). The plan requires price protectiohan exchange's best displayed bid or offer wherbid or offer is at the NBBO. Under
the plan, direct exchange-to-exchange access thriowgker-dealers is used to transmit intermarketegworders similar to sweep orders that
are available in the stock market under RegulatidMs. Undisplayed bids and offers and bids and effamprices that are inferior to an
exchange's best bid or offer do not receive primecatnder this plan.

Options Listing Procedures Plan and Symbology Plan

We are a party to the Options Listing Procedures Plhich sets forth the procedures that the opteéxthanges must follow to list new
options. We are also a party to the National MaSgettem Plan for the selection and reservatiorcfisties symbols.

Intellectual Property

We own or have rights to a number of intellectualperty assets, including trademarks, service madsain names, trade names,
copyrights, trade secrets and patents. While thentaof our intellectual property is protectedder U.S. law, we have many intellectual
property assets protected by the laws in Europi, &sd other parts of the world. We license sortellactual property assets to other entit
While we consider our intellectual property to l@dued assets, we do not believe that our compefitosition is wholly dependent on
intellectual property protection. We attempt totpad our intellectual property rights, while resiieg the legitimate intellectual property
rights of others.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012 , we employed 605 indiaisluOf these employees, 28&re involved in systems development or operat
140 were involved in direct support of trading giems and 116 were involved in regulatory actgtiThe remaining 114 personnel provide
business development, product development, educdti@ancial, legal, planning and research, adrriaiive and managerial support.

We have eight building engineers that are coveyeal tollective bargaining agreement, which expmeday 31, 2015, with the
International Union of Operating Engineers Loca® 38FL-CIO. Management believes that we have stretagionships with our employees
and we have never experienced a work stoppage.
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Executive Officers of CBOE Holdings

Set forth below is information regarding our ex@aibfficers and certain other key employees:

Name Age Position

William J. Brodsky 68 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Edward T. Tilly 49 President and Chief Operating Officer

Alan J. Dean 58 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officedal reasurer
Richard G. DuFour 68 Executive Vice President of Corporate Planning Bedelopment
Joanne Moffic-Silver 60 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Catp&ecretary
Gerald T. O'Connell 61 Executive Vice President and Chief Information €éfi

Edward L. Provost 60 Executive Vice President and Chief Business Devakgt Officer
David S. Reynolds 59 Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

William J. Brodsky. Mr. Brodsky is Chairman and Chief Executivei€df. He has served in that capacity since 199Ddcember
2012, we announced that Mr. Brodsky would be ttarsng to serve as Executive Chairman effectiiofeing the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders. Prior to joining the Company in 1997, Brodsky was president and chief executiveceffiof the Chicago Mercantile
Exchange from 1985 to 1997. Mr. Brodsky is a doecf Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and its predesesdHe also is the past chairman of
World Federation of Exchanges and past chairmadheointernational Options Markets Association. Bla imember of the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York's International Advisory Committéér. Brodsky also serves on the Kellogg SchodVlahagement Advisory Council and
as a trustee of Syracuse University. He is chairofahe board of directors of Northwestern MemoHalspital. Mr. Brodsky holds an A.B.
degree and a J.D. degree from Syracuse Univensitysaa member of the bar in lllinois and New York.

Edward T. Tilly. Mr. Tilly is President and Chief Operating @&t. He has served in that capacity since Nove2d&t. In Decemb
2012, we announced that Mr. Tilly would be tramsithg to serve as Chief Executive Officer effectisbowing the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders. He served as Executive Vice Chairfraan August 2006 until November 2011. He was a memah CBOE from 1989 until
2006, and served as Member Vice Chairman from 20@ugh July 2006. Mr. Tilly is the chairman of CBGutures Exchange and serve:
the board of directors of the OCC. He holds a Blégree in Economics from Northwestern University.

Alan J. Dean. Mr. Dean is Executive Vice President, Chiefdfioial Officer and Treasurer. He has served indhpacity since 1988
and has been employed at the Company in the fiaba@a since 1979. Mr. Dean serves on the boaddedtors of The Institute for
Transfusion Medicine. He is a CPA, and he holds& Begree in Accounting from Western lllinois Usrisity and an M.B.A. from
Northwestern University's Kellogg Graduate Schddflanagement

Richard G. DuFour. Mr. DuFour is Executive Vice President of Camde Planning and Development. He has served trcgpacity
since 1999 and has been employed at the Compacey 5880. He serves on the board of OneChicago atréasurer of the International
Options Markets Association. Mr. DuFour is a diceaif the Lincoln Park Renewal Corporation and IPXldings, LLC. Mr. DuFour holds
B.B.A. degree from the University of Notre Dame @mdM.B.A. from the University of Michigan.

Joanne Moffic-Silver. Ms. Moffic-Silver is Executive Vice Preside@eneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary. She hasisa that
capacity since 1997 and has been employed at thg&@uy since 1980. She is currently a member obtiaed of advisors of Northwestern
University School of Law. Ms. MoffiSilver received her B.A. degree with high honord amas elected a member of Phi Beta Kappa fror
University of Wisconsin-Madison. Ms. Moffic-Silveeceived her J.D. degree with honors from NortherestUniversity School of Law.

Gerald T. O'Connell. Mr. O'Connell is Executive Vice President artdef Information Officer. He has served in that&eipy since
1993 and has been employed at the Company sinee B80'Connell serves on the board of directdrthe CBOE Stock Exchange. He
holds a B.S. degree in Mathematics from Lewis Ursig and a J.D. degree from John Marshall Law $tho

Edward L. Provost. Mr. Provost is Executive Vice President andeEBiusiness Development Officer. In December 204,
announced that Mr. Provost would become PresidahtChief Operating Officer following the 2013 anhoeeeting of stockholders. He has
served as the head of our Business DevelopmensiDivsince 2000 and has been employed at the Congfiace 1975. He holds a B.B.A. in
Finance from Loyola University of Chicago and arBM\. from the University of Chicago Graduate SchobBusiness.
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David S. Reynolds. Mr. Reynolds is Vice President and Chief Acaig Officer. He has served in that capacity siktay 2009.
Prior to that, Mr. Reynolds was with Hudson HigtdaBroup, Inc., where he served in various rolekitling vice president, controller and
chief accounting officer. From February 2005 to ey 2007, Mr. Reynolds was vice president, cdigrand chief accounting officer of
Bally Total Fitness Corporation. Prior to that,dpent twenty-two years in various financial role€amdisco, Inc., rising to senior vice
president and controller. Mr. Reynolds serves enatbard of directors of the CBOE Stock Exchange.Réynolds began his career at
Ernst & Young. Mr. Reynolds is a certified publiccauntant and a certified cash manager. He isdugta of Lehigh University where he
obtained an M.B.A. and a B.S. in Finance.

Seasonality

In the securities industry, quarterly revenue fhations are common and are due primarily to sedsamations in trading volumes,
competition and technological and regulatory chan@enerally, we have historically experiencedtiedty higher trading volume during the
first and second quarters and lower trading voluméke third and fourth quarters. However, sudmsseality may also be impacted by
general market conditions or other events thateauwsrket volatility, such as domestic and inteoral uncertainties surrounding certain
political events.

Available Information

Our website is www.cboe.com. The Company files ahmuarterly and current reports, proxy statemantsother information with tt
SEC under the Exchange Act. The Company makesadlajlfree of charge, on its website its annuabrepn Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and ammands to those reports filed or furnished pursta&ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicaldesfth reports are electronically filed with, omished to, the SEC. The Company's
reports filed with, or furnished to, the SEC arsoahvailable on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

In addition, we have posted on our website theterafor our (i) Audit Committee, (ii) Compensati@ommittee, and (iii) Nominating
and Governance Committee, as well as our Code siBss Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Goverranklines. We will provide a
copy of these documents without charge to stocldrsldpon written request to Investor Relationsgrtibn Ms. Debbie Koopman, CBOE
Holdings Inc., 400 South LaSalle Street, Chicaflioois 60605.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Certain statements contained in this report undéous sections, including "Business" and "Manag#had®iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"farevard-looking statements that involve risks amdertainties. See "Forward-Looking
Statements." These risks could materially and adgrlffect our business, financial condition a@slits of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Business
Loss of our exclusive licenses to list certain indeptions could have a material adverse effect anm tinancial performance.

We hold exclusive licenses to list securities indpkons on the S&P 500 Index, the S&P 100 Index e DJIA, granted to us by the
owners of such indexes. In 2012 , approximately 8%ur transaction fees were generated by oumsketly-licensed index products, the
bulk of which are attributable to our S&P 500 Indgption products, which are our largest productsdwenue. As a result, our operating
revenues are dependent in part on the exclusigadies we hold for these products.

The value of our exclusive licenses to list se@sitndex options depends on the continued almfiipdex owners to require licenses
the trading of options based on their indexes. &lthh court decisions have allowed the trading dbog on ETFs based on indexes without
licenses from the owners of the underlying indexesie of these decisions has overturned existiyg lerecedent that requires an exchan
be licensed by the owner of an underlying indexteeft may list options based on the index. Howgivetwo pending cases International
Securities Exchange, Inc., or ISE, is seeking &jabddetermination that it (and, by extension,esthptions exchanges) has the right to list
options on the S&P 500 Index and the DJIA withaeghses and, therefore, without regard to our eskedulicenses to list options on those
indexes. See "Legal Proceedings."

Because these cases are still pending, there reraaisk that ISE may be successful in obtainipgl&ial determination eliminating tl
right of index owners to require licenses to usdrtimdexes for options trading. In addition, cortiipg exchanges may convince the SEC, or
seek a judicial action, to limit the right of indewners to grant exclusive licenses for index aptiading or to prevent exchanges from
entering into such exclusive licenses. If unlicehsading of index options were permitted or if kewsive licenses for index options trading
were prohibited or limited, we likely would lose
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market share in these index options. An adversegih the ISE litigation could also result in Iégaallenges to our exclusive use of our
proprietary indexes for options trading.

There is also a risk, with respect to each of aurant exclusive licenses, that the owner of tlieinmay not renew the license with us
on an exclusive basis or at all. In the first eyarg would be subject to multiple listing in thading of what is now an exclusive index
product, which could result in a loss of marketrstend negatively impact our profitability. In teecond event, we could lose the right to list
the index product entirely. The loss or limited v$@any of our exclusive index licenses, especifdhythe S&P 500 Index, for any reason
could have a material adverse effect on our busiaed profitability. See "Business—Products—Striat&glationships" for a discussion of
these licenses and their expiration dates.

Furthermore, our competitors may succeed in pragié market for the trading of index-based prodtieis are economically similar to
those for which we have exclusive licenses. I13s @ossible that a third party may offer tradingridex-based products that are the same as
those that are the subject of one of our exclustemses, but in a jurisdiction in which the ind@xner cannot require a license or in a manner
otherwise not covered by our exclusive license.

We agreed with S&P that it may license one or nobearing agencies to clear OTC options based oS&f 500 Index that meet
certain criteria and that S&P will compensate usaioy transaction cleared under such a licensedb@s¢he notional value of the transaction.
Although we expect these transactions to genemnaterinental revenue, the clearing of options orSi&E 500 Index that are traded OTC
could lead to the migration to the OTC market ahsdrades that today would be entered into on xcinanges, and there can be no assul
that the revenue gained will replace the revengedae to any migration.

Our business may be adversely affected by price petition.

The business of operating options exchanges iscteized by intense price competition. In additive number of options exchanges
with which we compete has increased. The pricingehtor trade execution for options has change@sponse to competitive market
conditions and we and our competitors have adjustedransaction fees and fee structures accondiiiglese changes have resulted in
significant pricing and cost pressures on us, eafeon transaction fees for our multiply-listecogucts. It is likely that this pressure will
continue and even intensify as our competitorsinantto seek to increase their share of tradinfutther reducing their transaction fees ol
offering other financial incentives to order prostid and liquidity providers to induce them to direalers to their markets.

Some order-providing firms on our exchanges hakertawnership positions in options exchanges thatpete with us and such
exchanges have given those firms added econongatives to direct orders to them. As a result ebthcompetitive developments, our
market share of total options traded in the U.Bfrfiem approximately 33.3% in 2008 to approximgtglr.8% in 2012 .

In addition, one or more competitors may engagajgressive pricing strategies and significantlyrease or completely eliminate their
profit margin for a period of time in order to cap# a greater share of trading volume. In Janu@iy2one of our competitors introduced an
aggressive pricing strategy that we believe hasaed our market share. While we responded by chgr@ir fee schedule, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to regain or maintsrket share, or that any of our competitors mayintroduce even more aggressive
pricing strategies.

Like nearly all of the other options exchanges, @ptions exchanges charge an options regulatorgrf@RF to Trading Permit Holders
based on the total number of customer contractsuteé or cleared by that Trading Permit Holderardigss of the exchange on which the
trade is executed. Along with fines and other tatguy fees, the ORF revenues may only be usedgpat our regulatory functions. We
may face competitive pressures to reduce or notase the ORFs on our exchanges, and if we ardeuttaimaintain or, if necessary, incre
the ORF, our results of operation may be adversiécted.

If any of these events occur, our operating resuits profitability could be adversely affected. Egample, we could lose a substantial
percentage of our share of trading if we are unebfgice transactions in a competitive manneroAtsur profits could decline if competitive
pressures force us to reduce fees.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and mag $ubject to censures, fines and other legal pratiegs if we fail to comply with legal
and regulatory obligations.

CBOE and C2 are registered national securitiesan@bs and self-regulatory organizations, or SRA, @ such, are subject to
comprehensive regulation by the SEC. In additidBSK is a stock trading facility of CBOE and CBOKjuéates CBSX. In December 2011,
CBSX acquired NSX, a registered national securéieshange that offer a market for trading stockkil®WSX is not a facility of CBOE, in
the acquisition, CBOE committed to support NSXuHilling its self-regulatory responsibilities. CBbhas also entered into agreements with
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to those exchanges. CFE is a designated contrakehragistered with the CFTC and is subject to pahensive regulation by the CFTC.

In addition to the requirements related to opegatinr markets imposed by the SEC and the CFTC |seehave certain responsibilities
for regulating the firms that trade on our exchand®hile we have entered into agreements underhndtieer SROs with respect to our
options exchanges, and NFA with respect to ouréstexchange, provide certain regulatory serviges,etain significant obligations to
regulate our Trading Permit Holders, especiallypoanoptions markets. See "Business -- RegulatospBeasibilities."

Our ability to comply with applicable laws and rsiis largely dependent on the establishment andterance of appropriate systems
and procedures, as well as our ability to attradtr@tain qualified personnel. The SEC and CFTGHmoead powers to audit, investigate and
enforce compliance and to punish noncomplianceR®sSand designated contract markets, respectipefguant to applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The staff of the SEC is currently investigating GB®compliance with its obligations as a self-ragpdy organization under the federal
securities laws. See "ltem 3 - Legal Proceedingfhile an agreement has not been reached with tlesEf, we believe that any resolution
of this matter would likely include a monetary piypand may require CBOE to make additional charigets compliance programs and
procedures. A resolution of this matter may alsmive other remedies within the SEC's authority.

In addition to what is described above, if the S&e to find one of our programs of enforcement @dpliance to be deficient,
CBOE or C2 could be the subject of SEC investigetiand enforcement proceedings that may resulttistantial sanctions, including
revocation of an exchange's registration as a maltgecurities exchange. Any such investigationsroceedings, whether successful or
unsuccessful, could result in substantial costsditiersion of resources, including management,tand potential harm to our reputation,
which could have a material adverse effect on agirtess, results of operations or financial cooditin addition, CBOE or C2 may be
required to modify or restructure their regulatlugictions in response to any changes in the regyl@nvironment, or they may be required
to rely on third parties to perform regulatory anersight functions, each of which may requireaustur substantial expenses and may
our reputation if our regulatory services are deimadequate.

Recently, we have significantly increased the sfzeur regulatory division and hired a Chief Coraplie Officer to assist us in meeting
our SEC and CFTC legal and regulatory obligatidinse are unable to successfully manage and integh&se new employees, we may be
unable to meet our legal and regulatory obligations

Although CBOE Holdings itself is not an SRO, CBOBlIdings is subject to regulation by the SEC of\atiéis that involve the
exchanges. Specifically, the SEC will exercise sigdt over the governance of CBOE Holdings andelationship with the CBOE and C2.
See "Regulatory Environment and Compliance—RegujdR@sponsibilities."

In addition, we are performing certain regulatoeyvices for ORSA and two exchanges with which weraat otherwise affiliated under
regulatory services agreements. While the exchafogeghich we provide regulatory services remaitinutely responsible for their
respective regulatory responsibilities, if we anable to perform under these agreements, we mayliject to monetary or other penalties by
the SEC and may be liable to the entities for whiehprovide services and their end users.

A significant portion of our operating revenues agenerated by our transacti-based business. If the amount of trading volume aur
exchanges decreases, or the product mix shiftsotedr revenue products, our revenues from transastfees will decrease.

In 2012 , 2011 and 2010, approximately 70% , 78% &% of our operating revenues, respectivelyevgenerated by our transaction-
based business. This business is dependent omitity 0 attract and maintain order flow, bothabsolute terms and relative to other market
centers. Our total trading volumes could declinguif market participants reduce their trading distifor any reason, such as:

e areduction in trading by custome
» heightened capital requirements or other reguladoiggislative action
» reduced access to capital required to fund tradotiyities, o

« significant market disruptior

In addition, the transaction fees generated aferdifit based on type of product and other factoctyding the type of customer and
certain volume discounts. See "Management's Digmussid Analysis -- Operating Revenues -- Average
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transaction fee per contract.” If the amount of tbading volume decreases, or the mix traded stuftair lower transaction fee per contract
products, our revenues from transaction fees \eitirdase.

Legislative or regulatory changes affecting thetksl options market could have a material adversieetfon our business

Changes in regulation by the SEC, CFTC or otheeguwent action, including SEC approval of rulenfil$ by other SROs, could
materially affect our markets. In recent years,dbeurities and futures industries have been sutgjesignificant regulatory changes as a re
of increasing government and public scrutiny irpmse to the global economic crisis.

In 2010, Congress passed the Dodd-Frank Act aret tegislation. While certain of its requirements/é been implemented, many of
the provisions in Dodd-Frank that impact our maskeguire additional action by the SEC or the CFD&pending on how the SEC and
CFTC interpret and implement these laws, exchalige®urs could be subject to increased competitiod additional costs.

Also, in 2012, the SEC directed the self-regulatggncies to submit a plan to create, implemennaaidtain a consolidated audit trail,
which would serve as a comprehensive audit tradlrdérs that will allow regulators to efficientlpéaccurately track all activity in
Regulation NMS securities in the U.S. markets.ddiion to increased regulatory obligations, impéeration of a consolidated audit trail
could result in significant additional expenditurexluding to implement any new technology to mee®t plan's requirements.

It is also possible that there will be additiorediklative and regulatory changes or efforts inethhéironment in which we operate our
businesses, including in response to recent intsdbat have disrupted operations on certain @Renanges, although we cannot predict the
nature of these changes or their impact on oumnlessiat this time. Actions on any of the specégulatory issues currently under review in
the U.S. and other proposals could have a maierfgct on our business. For a discussion of thelaégry environment in which we operate
and proposed regulatory changes, see "Business—&eguEnvironment and Compliance.”

In addition, Congress, the SEC and other regulaatiorities could impose legislative or regulatoiniganges that could adversely
impact the ability of our market participants te wsir markets, or participate in the options ourfe$ industry at all. Any such changes could
result in the loss of a significant number of mapa@rticipants or a reduction in trading activity our markets, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business. Changpsoposed changes in regulation may also resaldiditional costs of compliance and
modification of market participants' trading adiyvdbn our exchanges.

Intense competition could materially adversely affeur market share and financial performanc

We compete with a number of entities on severdtidiht fronts, including the cost, quality and gpeéour trade execution,
functionality and ease of use of our trading platforange of our products and services, our tedgichl innovation and adaptation and our
reputation. Our principal competitors are the rotteer U.S. options exchanges. We also compete stgairestment banks and other entities
that trade options over-the-counter. See also HDaimess may be adversely affected by price cotipeti

Most of the equity options and options on ETP&tsind traded on our exchanges are also listettashed on other U.S. options
exchanges. Changes we have implemented in respmosenpetitive pressures may not be successfubimtaining or expanding our market
share in those products in the future. Likewise,fature responses to these or other competitiveldpments may not be successful in
maintaining or expanding our market share.

Some of our competitors and potential competitangeehgreater financial, marketing, technologicatspanel and other resources than
we do. These factors may enable them to developasior more innovative products, to offer lowearisaction fees or better execution to
their customers or to execute their business giietanore quickly or efficiently than we can.

Furthermore, our competitors may:

» respond more quickly to competitive presst

» develop products that compete with our productrempreferred by our custome
» develop and expand their technology and serviceriofis more efficienth

e provide better, more uséiendly and more reliable technolo

» take greater advantage of acquisitions, allianoesogher opportunitie

* market, promote and sell their products and sesvicere effectively



» leverage existing relationships with customerd alliance partners more effectively or exploditt names to market and sell
their services; and
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» exploit regulatory disparities between tradiigmegulated exchanges and alternative markedisidimg over-the-counter
markets, that benefit from a reduced regulatorglenrand lower-cost business model.

The derivatives industry has withessed both thealihation of exchange holding companies and toetr in the number of
exchanges, with a doubling of the number of optiexshanges over the past decade. Consolidatioliamces among our competitors may
achieve cost reductions or other increases inieffay, which may allow them to offer better pricesservices than we do. The increase to the
number of competitors that we face may resultagrfinentation of the market and a reduced markeegbaour exchanges.

If our products, markets, services and technolagynat competitive, our financial condition and mimg results will be materially
harmed. A decline in our transaction fees or asg laf customers would lower our revenues, whichlevadversely affect our profitability.
For a discussion of the competitive environmentimich we operate, see "Business—Competition."

General economic conditions and other factors beglaur control could significantly reduce demand fawur products and services and
harm our business.

The volume of options transactions and the demanddr products and services are directly affebiedconomic, political and market
conditions in the United States and elsewhereenatbrld that are beyond our control, including:

» broad trends in business and final

» concerns over inflation and wavering institutionaketail confidence leve

» changes in government fiscal and monetary policy/fareign currency exchange ra
» the availability of short-term and lorigrm funding and capite

» the availability of alternative investment oppoiities;

« changes in the level of trading activity in undertyinstruments

» changes and volatility in the prices of securi

» the level and volatility of interest rat

« unforeseen market closures or other disruptionisatting; an

» concerns about terrorism and v

General economic conditions affect options tradimg variety of ways, from the availability of ctadito investor confidence. The
economic climate in recent years has been chaizstiely challenging business, economic and politioaditions throughout the world. For
only the second time in twenty years, in 2012,|t0t&. options volume is down from the prior yeadverse changes in the economy can
have a negative impact on our revenues by causitegle in trading volume. Because our structume @verhead costs are based on
assumptions of certain levels of market activitgngicant declines in trading volumes or demandrfarket data may have a material adv
effect on our business, financial condition andrapieg results.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual peoty rights.

We rely on patent, trade secret, copyright andetmaatk laws, the law of the doctrine of misapprdpriaand contractual protections to
protect our proprietary technology, proprietarydrénd futures products, index methodologies ahdrgiroprietary rights. In addition, we
rely on the intellectual property rights of ourditsors in connection with our listing of exclusiitensed index and futures products. We
our licensors may not be able to prevent thirdipsufrom copying, or otherwise obtaining and usimgy, intellectual property without
authorization, listing our proprietary or excludiicensed index products without licenses or othise infringing on our rights. We and our
licensors may have to rely on litigation to enfooes intellectual property rights, determine thédity and scope of the proprietary rights of
others or defend against claims of infringemeritwealidity. We and our licensors may not be sucfids$s this regard. Such litigation,
whether successful or unsuccessful, could reswtibstantial costs to us, diversion of our resaiorea reduction in our revenues, any of
which could materially adversely affect our bussd=or a description of current litigation involginramong other things, these matters, pl
see "Legal Proceedings."

Any infringement by us on patent rights of otherswld result in litigation and could have a materialdverse effect on our operation
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Our competitors as well as other companies andihatils have obtained, or may obtain, patentsatatelated to our technology or
types of products and services we offer or plaofer. We may not be aware of all patents contgjmtaims that may pose a risk of
infringement by our products, services or techni@egn addition, some patent applications in timitédl States are confidential until a patent
is issued, and therefore we cannot evaluate tfenetd which our products and services may be ealer asserted to be covered in pending
patent applications. Thus, we cannot be sure thapducts and services do not infringe on thbtsigf others or that others will not make
claims of infringement against us. Claims of inf@ment are not uncommon in our industry. If onenore of our products, services or
technologies were determined to infringe a pateid by another party, we may be required to stapgysleveloping or marketing those
products, services or technologies, obtain a liedram the holders of the patents or redesign tposéucts, services or technologies to avoid
infringing the patent. If we were required to steging, developing or marketing certain products,bsiness, results of operations and
financial condition would be materially harmed. Mover, if we were unable to obtain required licanse= may not be able to redesign our
products, services or technologies to avoid inimgnt, which could materially adversely affect business, results of operations or finan
condition. For a discussion of patent litigatiomdtving us, please see "Legal Proceedings."

We may not be able to maintain operating revenuesigrated by making trading permits available in é&enge for a fee.

The right to trade on our exchanges is made avaithbough trading permits for which the user payee. These fees account for a
significant portion of our operating revenues --5P2 in 2012 . CBOE charges the highest relativditigapermit rates in the options industry.
We may face pressure from our customers to lowegeiates or may see larger firms electing to exsserfpermits to access our exchanges. If
the demand for trading permits to our exchangéesisthan historic levels or if we are unable tantaén permit rates, our ability to generate
operating revenues through the granting of perfoitrading access would be negatively impactedcwbould adversely affect our
profitability.

Computer and communications systems failures anga&eity constraints could harm our reputation and obusiness.

We operate, monitor and maintain our computer systend network services, including the systemsadhaiprise CBOE Command,
the platform for trading on our exchanges. If we anable to operate, monitor or maintain theseegystor program them so that they operate
correctly, it could have a material adverse eféecbur ability to conduct our business. Althoughhvase a complete back-up of our primary
data center, the back-up systems or disaster recplens may prove to be inadequate in the eveatsyfstems failure or cyber-security
breach.

Our systems may fail, in whole or in part, or, do€apacity constraints, may operate slowly, caueime or more of the following:
e unanticipated disruption in service to our partécits
» failures or delays during peak trading times oresnof unusual market volatili
» slower response times and delays in trade execatidrprocessin
* incomplete or inaccurate accounting, recordingrocessing of trades; a
» our distribution of inaccurate or untimely marketal to participants who rely on this data in thesiding activity

Any of these events may cause:
e aloss in transaction or other fees due to theilinato provide services for a tim
e requests by market participants or others trate@imburse them for financial loss, either witthie constrains of the limited
liability provisions of our exchanges' rules oreixcess of those amounts,
» trading to diminish on our exchanges due to dis&atiion with the platform, a
* our regulators to investigate or take enforcemetiba against u

As a consequence of any of these events, our lassifieancial condition and results of operationsld suffer materially.

In addition to other measures, we test our systeraenfirm whether they will be able to handle eipated present and future peak
trading volume or times of unusual market volatiliiowever, we cannot assure you that our estinaftagure trading volume will be
accurate or that our systems will always be ablctmmmodate actual trading volume without failorrelegradation of performance.

We anticipate that we will need to continue to maigmificant investments in hardware, software tiecommunications infrastructure
to accommodate the increases in traffic. If we cammcrease the capacity and capabilities of ostesys to accommodate an increasing
volume of transactions and to execute our busisteategy, our ability to maintain or expand ouribesses would be adversely affected.
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The computer systems and communication networksmupdniich we rely may be vulnerable to security risksd other disruptions.

The secure and reliable operation of our compuytstesns, including the systems that calculate aatbstnit our index values, and our
communications networks, and those of our serviogigers and market participants, is a criticahedat of our operations. These systems
and communications networks may be vulnerable suthorized access, computer viruses and otherigepuwblems, as well as to acts of
terrorism, natural disasters and other eventsatteabeyond our control. If our security measurescampromised or if there are interruptions
or malfunctions in our systems or communicatiorntsvoeks, our business, financial condition and opegaresults could be materially
impacted. We may be required to expend significasburces to protect against the threat of sechrégiches or to alleviate problems,
including harm to reputation and litigation, caubgdany breaches in security or system failuresaddees we implement for security and
otherwise to provide for the integrity and relidtyyilof our systems may prove to be inadequate @évemting system failures or delays in our
systems or communications networks, which coulckiotrading volume and have an adverse effect ofbasiness, financial condition and
operating results.

Potential conflicts of interest between our *-profit status and our regulatory responsibilitieaay adversely affect our business.

As a forprofit business with regulatory responsibilitidsete may be a conflict of interest between our leguy responsibilities and t
interests of some of our market participants orawun business interests. Any failure by us to Ruffiir regulatory obligations could
significantly harm our reputation, increase reguhatscrutiny or cause the SEC or CFTC to take adigainst us, all of which could advers
affect our business, results of operations or firercondition.

Our compliance methods might not be effective andymesult in outcomes that could adversely affeat éinancial condition and
operating results.

As the parent company for SROs, we are responfbl®aintaining exchanges that comply with SEC @rd C laws and regulations
and the rules of the respective exchanges. Outyatailcomply with applicable laws and rules isgaly dependent on our establishment and
maintenance of compliance, audit and reportingesyst as well as our ability to attract and retaialdied personnel throughout the comps:
Our policies and procedures to identify, monitod amnage compliance risks may not be fully effectManagement of legal and regulatory
risk requires policies and procedures to propeityitor, record and verify a large number of tratisas and events. We cannot provide
assurance that our policies and procedures wikhgdbe effective or that we will always be sucadssfmonitoring or evaluating the
compliance risks to which we are or may be expodéézihave implemented new compliance policies andeqafures in response to an
ongoing review of our compliance with our self-rigary responsibilities. See "ltem 3 - Legal Pratirgs." If these new policies and
procedures are not effective, we may be subjectdoetary or other penalties by our regulators.

If we fail to attract or retain highly skilled mangement and other employees, our business may benledrt

Our future success depends in large part on ouaga@anent team, which possesses extensive knowledig@anagerial skill with
respect to the critical aspects of our businesBdcember 2012, we announced a management transitlze effected following the 2013
annual meeting of stockholders in which Mr. Brodsklf become Executive Chairman, Mr. Tilly will beme Chief Executive Officer and
Mr. Provost will become President and Chief Opafficer. The failure to retain members of oum@agement team and successfully
implement our management transition could advera#ct our ability to manage our business effedyivand execute our business strategy.

Our business is also dependent on highly skilleglepees who provide specialized services to oentdi and oversee our regulatory
and technology functions. Many of these employee® lextensive knowledge and experience in highdgrteal and complex areas of the
options trading industry. Because of the compleaity risks associated with our business and theajzed knowledge required to conduct
this business effectively, and because the growthur industry has increased demand for qualifed@g@nnel, many of our employees could
find employment at other firms if they chose tosio particularly if we fail to continue to providempetitive levels of compensation. If we
fail to retain our current employees, it would lifficult and costly to identify, recruit and traneplacements needed to continue to conduct
and expand our business. In particular, failureetain and attract qualified systems and regulgpengonnel could result in systems errors or
regulatory infractions. Consequently, our reputatizay be harmed, we may incur additional costsaamgrofitability could decline.

We may not effectively manage our growth, which twmaterially harm our business.

In recent years, we have launched a new optiorisagxye, experienced significant increased volumeuriutures exchange and
significantly increased the staff in our regulatdiyision. We expect that our business will grovijieh may place a significant strain on our
management, personnel, systems and resources. teomtinually improve our operational, financiabaregulatory systems and manage
controls and procedures, and we will need to cometilo expand, train and
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manage our workforce. We must also maintain claggdination among our technology, accounting, fategmarketing, sales, regulatory and
compliance functions. We cannot assure you thavilenanage our growth effectively. If we fail tado, our business could be materially
harmed.

Our continued growth will require increased investinby us in technology, facilities, personnel &indncial and management systems
and controls. It also will require expansion of poocedures for monitoring and assuring our compkawith applicable regulations, and we
will need to integrate, train and manage a grovengployee base. The expansion of our existing besew any expansion into new
businesses and the resulting growth of our emplowgse will increase our need for internal audit emmhitoring processes, which may be
more extensive and broader in scope than thoseawe istorically required. We may not be successfidentifying or implementing all of
the processes that are necessary. Further, unleggawth results in an increase in our revenuasithproportionate to the increase in our
costs associated with this growth, our operatinggma and profitability will be adversely affected.

We depend on third party service providers for egémtservices that are important to our business. fterruption or cessation of such
service by any third party could have a materialvadse effect on our busines

We depend on a nhumber of service providers, innmtianking and clearing organizations such as tB€ @nd its member clearing
firms; the host of our data center; processorsarket information such as the Consolidated Tap®éiaton and OPRA; and various vend
of communications and networking products and ses/iWe cannot assure you that any of these pmewidé be able to continue to provide
these services in an efficient manner or that thiybe able to adequately expand their serviceméet our needs. An interruption or
malfunction in or the cessation of an importanvger by any third party and our inability to mak&eeative arrangements in a timely
manner, or at all, could have a material adverggmgnon our business, financial condition and dpegaesults.

Our ability to implement or amend rules could benlited or delayed because of regulation, which coukefjatively affect our ability to
implement needed changes.

Our options exchanges registered with the SEC sulshit proposed rule changes to the SEC for iteweand, in many cases, its
approval. Even where a proposed rule change majffbetive upon filing with the SEC, the SEC retaiine right to suspend and disapprove
such rule changes. Also, the CFTC may stay or gisse rules that we file with it for CFE, our futsrexchange. The rule review process
be lengthy and can significantly delay the impletagan of proposed rule changes that we believenacessary to the operation of our
markets. If the SEC or CFTC delays or does notatlae of our exchanges to implement a rule chahggecould negatively affect our ability
to make needed changes or implement business aegisi

Similarly, the SEC must approve amendments to ptions exchange subsidiaries' certificates of ipoaation and bylaws as well as
certain amendments to the certificate of incorponaand bylaws of CBOE Holdings. The SEC may n@rape a proposed amendment or
may delay such approval in a manner that couldthed affect our ability to make a desired changhich could prevent or delay us from
improving the operations of our markets or recogricome from new products.

As one of the largest options exchanges in the wiahd the largest options exchange in the U.S.,ma&y be at a greater risk for a cyb
attack and other cyber security risks.

The frequency of cyber attacks is increasing iregain and various groups have specifically targétedinancial services industry due
to its perceived role in the current economic aolitipal climate. At the date of this filing, we Y& no evidence of any cases of data theft,
corruption of data or compromised customer dat&eioruary 2012, web sites for CBOE and other exgbsiwere targeted with a large
distributed denial of service attack. While thitaek lasted only a day, affected only Internet-dagestems and had minimal impact on
CBOE's overall trading activities, the potentiaf foore serious attacks in the future exists.

Security breaches may have significant costs imgesf cash outlays, business disruption, reverseeky internal labor, overhead and
other expenses. Measures we implement to monigoeririronment and protect our infrastructure agaesurity breaches and
misappropriation of our intellectual property assaay prove insufficient, which could result intgys failures and delays that could cause us
to lose customers, experience lower trading volunmeyr significant liabilities or have a negativegact on our competitive advantage.

Misconduct by our customers or others could harm

We run the risk that our Trading Permit Holder$iestpersons who use our markets or our employdesngage in fraud or other
misconduct, which could result in regulatory samsi and serious harm to our reputation, espediaitause we are the parent company of
multiple SROs and a designated contract market.not always possible to deter misconduct, and
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the precautions we take to prevent and detecattigity may not be effective in all cases. In dihi, misconduct by, or failures of,
participants on our exchanges may discourage gaatinour exchanges, which could reduce revenues.

Changes in the tax structure affecting us and ouranket participants could have a material adverséeet on our business.

In early 2013, the Chairman of the House Ways aedid Committee introduced a discussion draft abpgsed reform to the taxation
of financial products, including repealing the "é@Rule," which allows market-makers to pay a blehdapital gains and ordinary tax rates
on their income, requiring all derivatives to berkeal-to-market and eliminating the exemption fondlified covered calls." This discussion
draft is in addition to similar proposals from athax reformers and draft legislation in prior Coeggional sessions. In addition, federal and
state legislation may be introduced that would isga new tax on certain financial transactionduifing exchange-traded options.
Transaction tax legislation has been proposedinois and the European Union has proposed adoptingnsaction tax, which, if adopted,
may lead to calls for a similar tax in the UnitedtBs.

If the proposed tax law changes, a transactiomtather tax change that detrimentally impactsastior futures trading were to becc
law, the resulting tax law could have a negativpant on the options industry and us by making ogtivansactions more costly to market
participants, which may reduce trading in optidnsaddition, other states are attempting to inadas revenues by asserting that they have
nexus over certain companies. If another state veeseccessfully assert nexus against us, we magriexce a higher marginal state tax rate.

If our risk management methods are not effectiveirdusiness, reputation and financial results mag ldversely affecte:

We have methods to identify, monitor and managerisks. If our methods are not effective or we mwesuccessful in monitoring or
evaluating the risks to which we are or may be eggdoour business, reputation, financial conditind operating results could be materially
adversely affected. In addition, our insurancegie$ may not provide adequate coverage.

We may selectively explore acquisition opporturstier strategic alliances relating to other business products or technologies. We may
not be successful in integrating other businesseducts or technologies with our business. Any Butansaction also may not produce
the results we anticipate, which could adverseljeat the market price of our unrestricted commorosk.

We may selectively explore and pursue acquisitimh@her opportunities to strengthen our businagsgaow our company. We may
enter into business combination transactions, nagkeisitions or enter into strategic partnershmst ventures or alliances, any of which
may be material. The market for acquisition targetd strategic alliances is highly competitive, ethtéould make it more difficult to find
appropriate merger or acquisition opportunitiesvéfare required to raise capital by incurring detissuing additional equity for any reason
in connection with a strategic acquisition or irtwesnt, financing may not be available or the teofsuch financing may not be favorable to
us and our stockholders, whose interests may bediby the issuance of additional stock.

The process of integration may produce unforesegulatory and operating difficulties and expendituand may divert the attention of
management from the ongoing operation of our bgsia@d harm the reputation of the companies. Wermaaguccessfully achieve the
integration objectives, and we may not realizeahicipated cost savings, revenue growth and syegng full or at all, or it may take longer
to realize them than expected, any of which coelglatively impact our results of operations, finahcbndition or the market price of our
common stock.

Any decision to pay dividends on our common stodk ae at the discretion of our board of directoend will depend upon the earnings
our operating subsidiaries. Accordingly, there céde no guarantee that we will pay dividends to otwckholders.

We have paid quarterly dividends since the reatrugg transaction and initial public offering andand to continue paying regular
quarterly dividends to our stockholders. Howevay; decision to pay dividends on our common stodkb@ at the discretion of the board of
directors, which may determine not to declare dinids at all or at a reduced amount. The boardssrditation to declare dividends will
depend upon our profitability and financial conalitj contractual restrictions, restrictions impobgapplicable law and the SEC and other
factors that the board deems relevant. As a holdimgpany with no significant business operationgsodwn, CBOE Holdings depends
entirely on distributions, if any, it may receiver its subsidiaries to meet its obligations ang gigidends to its stockholders. If these
subsidiaries are not profitable, or even if they and they determine to retain their profits fog irstheir businesses, we will be unable to pay
dividends to our stockholders.

Certain provisions in our organizational documentsuld enable the board of directors to prevent @lay a change of control.
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Our organizational documents contain provisions$ ithay have the effect of discouraging, delayingmventing a change of control of,
or unsolicited acquisition proposals for, us thatackholder might consider favorable. These inelptbvisions:

« prohibiting stockholders from acting by written cemt
e requiring advance notice of director nominationd ahbusiness to be brought before a meeting aksimders
* requiring the vote of majority of the outstandirages of common stock to amend the bylaws
» limiting the persons who may call special stockeaftimeeting
In addition, our organizational documents includevisions that:

e restrict any person from voting or causing théng of shares of stock representing more than 808&ur outstanding voting
capital stock; and

» restrict any person from beneficially owning sdsof stock representing more than 20% of thetandéng shares of our capital
stock.

Furthermore, our board of directors has the authtwiissue shares of preferred stock in one orenseries and to fix the rights and
preferences of these shares without stockholdeoapp Any series of our preferred stock is likedybe senior to our common stock with
respect to dividends, liquidation rights and, polgsivoting rights. The ability of the board of éators to issue preferred stock also could have
the effect of discouraging unsolicited acquisitoposals, thus adversely affecting the markeepsfoour common stock.

In addition, Delaware law makes it difficult foloskholders that have recently acquired a largeéstén a corporation to cause the
merger or acquisition of the corporation againstdhrectors' wishes. Under Section 203 of the Datavizeneral Corporation Law, a
Delaware corporation may not engage in any mergether business combination with an interestedkstolder for a period of three years
following the date that the stockholder becamengerésted stockholder except in limited circumstésnancluding by approval of the
corporation's board of directors.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our principal offices are located at 400 South UESatreet, Chicago, Illinois 60605. Through ourolowned subsidiary, Chicago
Options Exchange Building Corporation, we own théding in which our principal offices are locatadd occupy approximately 300,000
square feet of this building. In addition to ouingipal offices, we also lease additional officasp. We lease 23,828 square feet of office
space at 111 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicagoiblis0604, which houses our Regulatory Divisiolne Tease on this space expires in 2014
and contains an option to renew for an additiowal years. We lease a 2,881 square foot office &r6hdway, New York, New York 10006.
The lease on this space expires in 2017 and ingladeption to renew for another five years. Wedegpproximately 2,500 square feet of
space in New Jersey for our data center. The le@asleat space expires in 2017 and includes an aitotvelve month renewal unless the
agreement is terminated by either party. Finallg,lease 1,650 square feet of space outside thefO@hicago for a remote network
operations center. The lease on that facility egat the end of 2015.

We believe the space we occupy is sufficient totroaecurrent and future needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As of December 31, 2012 , the end of the periogtce¥ by this report, the Company was subject tov#nious legal proceedings and
claims discussed below, as well as certain otlga lproceedings and claims that have not been fefiglved and that have arisen in the
ordinary course of business.

The Company reviews its legal proceedings and dairgulatory reviews and inspections and otheal lpgpceedings on an ongoing
basis and follows appropriate accounting guidancennmaking accrual and disclosure decisions. Thepg@aoy establishes accruals for those
contingencies where the incurrence of a loss ibaiste and can be reasonably estimated, and wesksttie amount accrued and the amount
of a reasonably possible loss in excess of the atramerued, if such disclosure is necessary foffinancial statements to not be misleading.
The Company does not record liabilities when tkeliihood that the liability has been incurred istpable, but the amount cannot be
reasonably estimated, or when the
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liability is believed to be only reasonably possibl remote. The Company's assessment of whethss & reasonably possible or probab
based on its assessment of the ultimate outcortreeaghatter following all appeals.

Estimates of probable losses resulting from pdiggétion involving the Company are inherentlyfdifilt to make, particularly when tl
Company's view of the case is significantly diffgréhan that expressed by the plaintiff. The Conydzas not recorded a liability related to
damages in connection with these matters.

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company does nok thiat there is a reasonable possibility that aayemal loss exceeding the amounts
already recognized for these reviews, inspectioradteer legal proceedings, if any, has been incuiéhile the consequences of certain
unresolved proceedings are not presently deterr@nti®e outcome of any litigation is inherently ant@in and an adverse outcome from
certain matters could have a material effect oneaunnings in any given reporting period.

Index Options Litigation

On November 15, 2006, CBOE, The McGraw-Hill Companinc. ("McGraw-Hill") and CME Group Index Sereg; LLC (substituted
for Dow Jones & Co.) ("Dow Jones") asserted claimthe Circuit Court of Cook County, lllinois againSE and its parent company ("ISE"),
seeking a declaration to prevent ISE from offel@R)X and DJX options and to prevent OCC from issaimgj clearing such options. ISE filed
a lawsuit on November 2, 2006 in the United Stltistrict Court for the Southern District of New Yogrseeking a declaration that the rights
asserted by McGraw-Hill and Dow Jones are preemipgefdderal law. The New York action is currentngling, but has been stayed in light
of the lllinois action. The lllinois court has peainently restrained and enjoined ISE from listingpaviding an exchange market for the
trading of SPX and DJX options and enjoined OC@nfissuing, clearing or settling the exercise ofsIBE options. The lllinois Appellate
Court affirmed the lower court's ruling on May 2812 and the lllinois Supreme Court denied ISEfseapof this decision. ISE filed a
Petition for Certiorari with the U.S. Supreme CaumtJanuary 25, 2013.

Patent Litigation
ISE -- '707

On November 22, 2006, ISE filed an action in thététhStates District Court for the Southern DigtdENew York claiming that
CBOE's Hybrid trading system infringes ISE's U.&teat No. 6,618,707 ("the '707 patent"). On Jan@ary2007, CBOE filed an action in
federal court in the Northern District of lllinodgeking a declaratory judgment that the '707 patastnot infringed, not valid and/or not
enforceable against CBOE. The New York case wasfeared to the Northern District of Illinois on gust 9, 2007. The trial in this case is
scheduled to begin in March 2013.

On August 15, 2012, C2 filed a declaratory judgrmeamhplaint against ISE in the United States Disttiourt for the Northern District
of Illinois alleging that the '707 patent is notigdanot infringed and not enforceable in lightdgcisions in the CBOE case involving the same
patent.

ISE -- QRM

On November 12, 2012, CBOE brought suit againstitSfie United States District Court for the North®istrict of Illinois alleging
that ISE infringes three patents related to quistemonitor (QRM) technology. CBOE has requestédrictive relief and monetary damages.
On February 20, 2013, the court ruled that the basteansferred to the United States District Céurthe Southern District of New York
where it will proceed.

SEC Matter

As previously reported in the Company's periodiadss, the staff of the SEC is investigating CBO&mpliance with its obligations as
a self-regulatory organization under the federalisées laws. We continue to cooperate with theegtigation and CBOE is conducting its
own review of its compliance and has modified dmpliance program. We have commenced discussidhsting SEC staff aimed at
resolving the investigation, and such discussiensain ongoing. While an agreement has not beehedawith the SEC staff, we believe that
any resolution of this matter would include a mamngpenalty and may require CBOE to make additichahges to its compliance programs
and procedures. A resolution of this matter mag asolve other remedies within the SEC's authoiityring the fourth quarter of 2012, the
Company recorded a charge of $5.0 million relatethis matter which is included in other expensethe consolidated statement of income
and accounts payable and accrued expenses inrbelictated balance sheet for the year ended Deae3db@012 , respectively. There is
currently no definitive agreement with the SECfsfiaif the resolution of this matter. We believetthas reasonably possible that the
Company could incur a charge in connection witk thatter of up to $10 million, and any agreemeffithve subject to the approval by the
Commissioners of the SEC. Therefore, there caroh@saurance that the Company's negotiations witlSEC staff will result in a definitive
agreement, and the amount of the monetary penptiy final disposition of these
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matters may exceed the amount we have accrued.\ldowee believe that the likelihood of any addiabmonetary penalty in excess of the
upper limit of the range set forth above is remote.

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the jugtidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, asd designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecC6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.

We are also currently a party to various otherllpgaceedings including those already mentionedndd@ment does not believe that
outcome of any of these other reviews, inspectwrsther legal proceedings will have a materialactpn our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

30




Table of Contents

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Unrestricted Common Stock

The Company's unrestricted common stock is listethe NASDAQ Global Select Market under the tradsgghbol CBOE. As of
January 30, 2013, there were approximately 242emsldf record of our unrestricted common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgbrices by quarter for shares of our unrestrictedmon stock as reported on
NASDAQ and cash dividends per quar

Price Range Cash

Dividends
Calendar Period High Low per Share
2011
First Quarter $ 29.77 % 22.4: % 0.1C
Second Quarter 29.4( 23.3¢ 0.1C
Third Quarter 27.62 21.5¢ 0.1z
Fourth Quarter 28.1°¢ 23.5¢ 0.1z
2012
First Quarter 29.5¢ 24 .4« 0.1z
Second Quarter 28.6¢ 24.5¢ 0.1z
Third Quarter 30.3¢ 27.4( 0.1t
Fourth Quarter (1) 30.9¢ 28.5¢ 0.9C
2013
Through February 21, 2013 (2) 36.11 29.7¢ 0.1t

(1) On December 11, 2012, the Company's board of diredeclared a special cash dividend of $0.75 Iperes The dividend was pe
on December 28, 2012 to stockholders of recorbettse of business on December 21, 2012. Thismeddition to the regular
fourth quarter cash dividend of $0.15 per sharechvtvas paid on December 21, 2012 to stockholdersoord at the close of business
on November 30, 2012.

(2) On February 6, 2013, the Company's board of directeclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15spare. The dividend is
payable on March 22, 2013 to stockholders of reepittie close of business on March 1, 2013.

Dividends

Each share of unrestricted common stock and resdrstock is entitled to receive dividends if, ad avhen declared by the board of
directors of the Company.

The Company’s expectation is to continue to paydéinds, with any such dividend based on prior yeaet income adjusted for certain
items. The decision to pay a dividend, however ai@siwithin the discretion of our Board of Dired@nd may be affected by various fact
including our earnings, financial condition, capiequirements, level of indebtedness and othesidenations our Board of Directors deems
relevant. Future credit facilities, other futurdtlebligations and statutory provisions may limitjn some cases prohibit, our ability to pay
dividends.

As a holding company, the Company's ability to dexlnd pay dividends in the future with respedistaommon stock will also be
dependent upon the ability of its subsidiariesay @ividends to it under applicable corporate law.

Restricted Stock

On January 13, 2010, the Board approved the Ameadédrestated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Term InaenRlan (the "LTIP"). The
board amended and restated the plan, effective tgumiving stockholder approval, which was receigethe Company's May 17, 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The LTIP provideattan aggregate of 4,248,497 shares of the Cortgpemynmon stock are reserved for
issuance to participants under the LTIP. As of Baby 7, 2013, the Company had outstanding grantsstficted stock covering 1,220,580



shares of its common stock which includes sharastgd on February 6, 2013. The restricted stoaktgd is entitled to participate in
any dividends granted on the unrestricted commacksiThe
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Company does not maintain any other compensatmmspinder which equity securities of the Compasysarthorized for issuance.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None
Use of Proceeds

None

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

The table below shows the purchases of equity &by the Company in the three months ended mbee 31, 2012 , reflecting the
purchase of unrestricted common stock under thegaogis share repurchase program:

Total Number of

Total Shares Purchased Approximate Dollar Value of
Number of Average as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share or Programs or Programs (1)
October 1, 201- October 31, 2012 — $ — — $ 103,261,43
November 1, 201— November 30, 2012 — — — 103,261,43
December 1, 201- December 31, 2012 — — — 103,261,43
Totals — $ — —

(1) On August 2, 2011, the Company announcedith@bard of directors had adopted a share repsecplan and authorized the
repurchase of $100 million of its outstanding utrieied common stock and began purchasing shamefiysthereafter. On July 31,
2012, the Company's board of directors authoriredXompany to repurchase an additional $100 mitioits outstanding
unrestricted common stock. Under the plan, the Gomyjis authorized to repurchase up to $200 miliioits unrestricted common
stock, including on the open market and in privatedgotiated transactions. There can be no assiento the number of additional
shares the Company will repurchase under the am#tbplan. The timing and extent to which the Comyp@epurchases its shares
will depend upon, among other things, market comast, share price, liquidity targets, regulatorguigements and other factors.
Share repurchases may be commenced or susperai@egdtane or from time to time without prior notiamd the share repurchase
plan does not currently have an expiration date.

The Company purchased 27 shares of its unrestrocteuinon stock at an average price of $29.73 inhiee months ended
December 31, 2011 satisfy employee tax obligations upon the vestifirestricted stock. These shares are not pahegpublicly announce
program.

Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative togalim provided to stockholders on our unrestrici@emon stock since our initial
public offering against the return of the S&P Midet00 Index and a customized peer group that iesd@ME Group Inc.,
IntercontinentalExchange Inc., NYSE Euronext, THSBAQ OMX Group Inc. and CBOE Holdings. An invesmef $100, with
reinvestment of all dividends, is assumed to haentmade in our unrestricted common stock, thexiadd the peer group on June 15, 2010,
and its performance is tracked on a quarterly lihstmigh December 31, 2012.
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Comparison of Cumulative Total Return of the
Company, Peer Groups, Industry Indexes and/or Broadarkets

COMPARISON OF 30 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among CBOE Holdings, Inc., the S&P Midcap 400 Index
and a Peer Group
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06/15/10 06/30/10 09/30/10 12/31/10 03/31/11 06/30/11 09/30/11 12/31/11 03/31/12 06/30/12 09/30/12 12/31/12

—&— (CBOE — A— S&P Midcap 400 — ® = Peer Group

*  $100 invested on 6/15/10 in stock or 5/31M@ndex, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright© 2013 Standard & Poor's, a division oET¥McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

6/15/2010 (1 6/30/201( 9/30/2010  12/31/2010  3/31/2011 6/30/2011 9/30/2011  12/31/2011  3/31/2012 6/30/2012

9/30/2012  12/31/2012

CBOE Holdings, Inc. 10C 100.1¢ 61.97 70.9¢ 90.2¢ 76.91 76.92 81.6¢ 90.1: 88.2

S&P Midcap 400 10C 93.4% 105.7C 119.9¢ 131.2 130.2¢ 104.3¢ 117.¢ 133.8: 127.2:

Peer Group 10C 92.1: 86.41 101.7° 105.2¢ 102.9¢ 87.¢ 90.2¢ 104.8¢ 97.6¢
Q) Reflects the date of the Company's initial prbffering
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table shows selected financial ddtthe Company that should be read together wittbiesolidated Financial
Statements and corresponding notes and "Managenistussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations” included
in ltems 7 and 8 of this Form 10-K:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Income Statement Data:

Total operating revenues (1) $ 512,33t $ 508,14: $ 437,10 $ 426,08. $ 416,78
Total operating expenses 268,24: 266,51: 269,76: 248,49’ 229,47
Operating income 244,09 241,63: 167,34: 177,58! 187,31(
Total other income/(expense) (1,54¢) (1,549 (2,719 (355 6,097
Income before income taxes 242,55: 240,08: 164,62 177,23( 193,40°
Income tax provision 85,15¢ 100,67t 65,221 70,77¢ 78,11¢
Net income $ 157,39 $ 139,40t $ 99,39t $ 106,45. $ 115,28t
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 155,25: % 136,58. $ 98,16t $ 106,45. $ 115,28t
Net income per share allocated to common
stockholders (2)
Basic $ 176 $ 152 $ 105 $ 117 $ 1.27
Diluted 1.7¢ 1.52 1.0z 1.17 1.27
Cash dividends per share paid on Class A and
Common Stock — — 1.2t — —
Cash dividends per share (3) 1.2¢ 0.44 0.2C — —
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 338,85¢ $ 327,86¢ $ 254,11 $ 571,94¢ $ 496,13¢
Total liabilities 99,73¢ 91,59¢ 78,23¢ 383,81« 114,47¢
Total stockholders'/members' equity 239,12: 236,27( 175,87: 188,13« 381,66(
Average daily volume by product (4)
Equities 1,977 2,04¢ 2,27: 2,51¢ 2,38
Indexes 1,217 1,271 1,071 884 1,02¢
Exchange-traded products 1,247 1,462 1,097 1,10C 1,30¢
Total options average daily volume 4,441 4,781 4,441 4,50z 4,717
Futures 96 48 17 5 5
Total average daily volume 4,531 4,82¢ 4,45¢ 4,50¢ 4,72z
(1) In December 2009, we recognized as revenuel$8dlion of access fees assessed and collect2@f and 2007, which were

included in deferred revenue pending the final,-appealable resolution of the Delaware Action.

(2 Net income per share allocated to common stock®idecalculated by dividing net income for eachhaf periods as if th
restructuring transaction had occurred at the lméginof the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002608.

3) On December 11, 2012, the Company's boardrettdrs declared a special cash dividend of $@etSshare. This was in addition to
the quarterly cash dividends which aggregated $0es4hare for the year ended December 31, 2012.

(4) Average daily volume equals the total contractdedaduring the period divided by the number ofitrgdiays in the perio
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
General

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") shoble read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements of the Comzand the notes thereto included in Item 8 of Ariaual Report on Form 10-K. The
following discussion contains forwelooking statements. Actual results could diffetenially from the results discussed in the forward-
looking statements. See "Risk Factors" and "Forwamdking Statements" above.

Overview

The primary business of the Company is the oparatfanarkets for the trading of listed options cants on three broad product
categories: 1) the stocks of individual corporati¢aquity options), 2) various market indexes (indptions) and 3) other exchange-traded
products (ETP options) such as exchange-tradedf(EitF options) and exchange-traded notes (ETMog)i We also offer futures products
through a futures market. The Company owns andabgethree stand-alone exchanges, but reporteshéis of its operations in one
reporting segment. CBOE is our primary market dffier® trading for listed options through a singystem that integrates electronic trading
and traditional open outcry trading on our tradilegr in Chicago. This integration of electroniading and traditional open outcry trading
into a single exchange is known as our Hybrid trgdnodel. C2 is our all-electronic exchange ths alffers trading for listed options, but
with a different market model and fee schedule BBOE. Finally, CFE, our all-electronic futures baage, offers futures on the VIX Index,
as well as on other products. All of our exchang@srate on our proprietary technology platform kn@g CBOE Command.

Restructuring Transaction

On June 18, 2010, CBOE converted from a non-stogkacation owned by its members into a stock cation that is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CBOE Holdings.

In the consolidated statements of income for CBQ@itldgs for the twelve months ended December 31020et income per share
allocated to common stockholders is calculatedibiglithg historical net income for the period by theighted average number of common
shares as if the restructuring transaction werswammated at the beginning of the period.

Components of Operating Revenues
Transaction Fees

The primary and largest source of operating reveisigansaction fee revenue. Transaction fee revena function of three variables:
(1) exchange fee rates; (2) trading volume; andré3)saction mix between contract type. Becausingafees are assessed on a per contract
basis, exchange fee revenue is highly correlat¢idet@olume of contracts traded on the Companyhanges. While exchange fee rates are
established by the Company, trading volume andé#etion mix are primarily influenced by factors side its control, including price
competition, price volatility in the underlying setties and national and international economic jaolitical conditions.

Revenue is recorded as transactions occur on e-tfaie basis. Transaction fee revenue account&®fé% , 73.4% and 75.6% of total
operating revenues for the year ended Decemb&(32, , 2011 and 2010 , respectively. The main apttegories traded are equities,
indexes and ETPs. The equity options categoryaisfigading in options contracts on the stocksidiviidual companies. The index options
category reflects trading in index options consamt market indexes and on the interest rates®f Treasury securities. The ETP options
category includes ETF options that are optionsaskéts of stocks designed to generally track aexinlout which trade like individual stocl
and ETN options that are options on senior, unse;umsubordinated debt securities issued by aeramiing bank. Futures are
standardized, transferable, exchange-traded castizat require delivery of a commodity, bond, enny or stock index at a specified price
and on a specified future date.

The Company believes that the number of investasuse options represents a growing proporticdhetotal investing public and th
the increasing use of options represents a lomg-temd that will continue in the future. Furthemmowe believe significant opportunities
exist to expand the use of options by both ingtigl and professional investors and for the migradf activity from the over-the-counter
market to exchanges.

While there is no certainty, we expect that thaustdy-wide and Company-specific factors that ctmiied to past volume changes will
continue to contribute to future volume changesweler, additional factors may arise that could aispact contract trading volume which
may result in increases or decrease in our conraaing volume, such as new or

35






Table of Contents

existing competition, or other events. Considetmese factors we do not expect recent trading vefuira be an indicator of future trading
volume.

Access Fees

Access fees represent fees assessed to Trading Peiders for the opportunity to trade and usecottelated functions of CBOE. The
program contains a tier-based market-maker appeimtisystem with different trading permits basedrading function and, in the case of
market-makers, the assessment of a surchargertairc€BOE proprietary products. The number ofitiggpermits made available are
limited.

On July 1, 2010, the Company began charging morfi¢iely to Trading Permit Holders under a tradingeas@rogram. The trading
access program could be impacted by seasonalitynankiet fluctuations that affect trading volume.

Prior to July 1, 2010, access fees representechfsessed to Temporary Members and interim Trdei#nmit Holders for the right to
trade at CBOE and dues charged to Members. Theafsessed Temporary Members and interim TradingiPEolders were based on
average lease rates and the number of temporagg®apoints and interim trading permits.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

To facilitate trading, the Company offers traditapf space, technology services, terminal and atqeipment rentals, maintenance
services and telecommunications services. Tradawy &ind equipment rentals are generally on a mtmthonth basis. Facilities, systems
services and other fees are generally monthly &sed, although certain services are influenceddaujrtg volume or other defined metrics,
while others are based solely on demand.

Market Data Fees

Market data fees represent income derived frons#fe of our transaction information through thei@m Price Reporting Authority
("OPRA") and through our subsidiary, Market DatgEess, LLC ("MDX"). Through MDX, we sell historicaptions data, as well as real-
time data for certain proprietary products and x&de It also provides market data through CBOEa®tieg Markets, a high-availability, low
latency streaming data feed. OPRA is a limitediliighcompany consisting of representatives of thember exchanges and is authorized by
the SEC to provide consolidated options informat@RRA gathers market data from various optionsiarges, including CBOE and C2,
and, in turn, disseminates this data to third parnivho pay fees to OPRA to access the data. CB@Earare members of a management
committee with other member exchanges that adreinise OPRA limited liability company agreementvBeue generated by OPRA from
the dissemination of market data is shared amorig Oembers according to the number of total cleapgtbns transactions by each of the
member exchanges as calculated each quarter. OFPR# consolidated with the Company.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees are charged to Trading Permit Helglesupport of our regulatory responsibilitiessal+egulatory organizations und
the Exchange Act. CBOE and C2 charge the OptiomggiRtory Fee under which fees are based on industtg customer volume of Tradir
Permit Holders. This source of revenue could dedlmthe future if the number of customer contrastscuted by Trading Permit Holder
declines and rates are not increased or if ousdogterform our regulatory responsibilities stabilor decrease.

The SEC requires that the revenues derived fromaioeof the fees from our regulatory functions, goofi which are included in this
revenue category, and regulatory fines must be fmse@gulatory purposes. Expenses related toegulatory functions are included in our
operating expenses, mainly in employee costs atsideuservices.

Other Revenue
The following sub-categories are the sources aémee within this category:
» Revenue generated through licensing of VIX prod

» Revenue derived from fines assessed for rule vioia

* Revenue associated with advertisements througlkarporate web siteyww.cboe.com



Rental of commercial space in the lobby of ourding;
Revenue generated through our order routing cdael
Revenue generated from courses and seminars offem@meyh CBOE's Options Institute; ¢

Other sources of reven!
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Components of Operating Expenses

Most of our expenses do not vary directly with dmsin our trading volume except royalty fees aadibhg volume incentives. We
remain focused on managing expense growth to drieater operating leverage and continue to exgpp®rtunities to expand our operating
margins.

Employee Costs

Employee costs are our most significant expenserarhigde employee wages, stock-based compensaticentive compensation,
severance, benefits and employer taxes. Salartebamefits represent our largest expense categaryead to be driven by both our staffing
requirements and the general dynamics of the empoy market. Stock-based compensation is a nonegmnse related to restricted stock
grants. Stock-based compensation can vary depepditige quantity and fair value of the award ondhte of grant and the related service
period.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense results fitdepreciation of long-lived assets purchasedlamdmortization of purchased
and internally developed software.

Data Processing

Data processing expense consists primarily of dostsetwork connections to our electronic tradplgtforms and market data
customers.

Outside Services

Outside services consist primarily of consulting/gees, which include: the supplementation of staffactivities primarily related to
systems development and maintenance and legalateguand accounting services.

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees primarily consist of license fees paidproprietary products based on current volumel$e The Company has licenses
with the owners of the S&P 500 and S&P 100 indettes DJIA, the NASDAQ 100 and the Russell indeXéss category also includes
market participants participation rights for orflew that they direct or cause to be directed toexchanges.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives consist of market linkagpenses incurred to send certain orders to ettetranges. If a competing
exchange quotes a better price, we route the ces®worder to that exchange and pay certain oh$seciated costs. Regardless of whether
the transaction is traded at our exchanges, ther dialv potential enhances our overall market pasiand participation and provides cost
savings to customers. Trading volume incentivey based on the volume of contracts linked to othxehanges and fees charged by other
exchanges and the Company.

Travel and Promotional Expenses

Travel and promotional expenses primarily condistdvertising, costs for special events, sponsprehindustry conferences, options
education seminars and travel for company staff.

Facilities Costs

Facilities costs primarily consist of expensestegldo owned and leased properties including reatntenance, utilities, real estate te
and telecommunications costs for the Company.

Other Expenses



Other expenses represent costs necessary to soppaperations but are not included in the ab@tegories.
Other Income/(Expense)

Income and expenses incurred through activitiesideitof our core operations are considered nonatipgrand are classified as other
income/(expense). These activities primarily inelilvesting of excess cash, financing activitied imvestments in other business ventures.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Company's consolidated &izstatements requires the Company to make egtingand judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reeeamd expenses, and related disclosure of contimgsets and liabilities. On an ongoing b
the Company evaluates its estimates, includingethelated to areas that require a significant le¥@dgment or are otherwise subject to an
inherent degree of uncertainty. The Company basesiimates on historical experience, observahtrermds in particular areas, information
available from outside sources and various oth&uraptions that are believed to be reasonable uhdaiircumstances. Information from
these sources form the basis for making judgmeustahe carrying values of assets and liabilitieg may not be readily apparent from
other sources. Actual amounts may differ from thesgtemates under different assumptions or condition

We have identified the policies below as critiegabtur business operations and the understandingratesults of operations. The imp
of, and any associated risks related to, theseipslon our business operations is discussed thomtgManagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems." For a detailed discussion on the applicatif these and other accounting policies,
see Note 1 to our consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes included elsewhere in this AhReaort on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition

Transaction fees revenue is considered earnedthpogxecution of the trade recognized on a tradeu#sis and presented net of
applicable volume discounts. In the event liquiglitpviders prepay for transaction fees, revenuedsgnized based on the attainment of
volume thresholds resulting in the amortizationhaf prepayment over the calendar year. Accessf@amnue is recognized during the period
the service is provided and assurance of collditals provided. Exchange services and other fegsnue is recognized during the period
service is provided. Market data fees from OPRAadiecated based upon the share of total opti@mséactions cleared for each of the OPRA
members and is received quarterly. Revenue fronmauket data services are recognized in the pé¢hiedata is provided. Regulatory fees
are recognized on a trade-date basis.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined in accordaitbeASC 740,Income Taxe§'ASC 740"), and arise from temporary differences
between the tax basis and book basis of assetéabildies. The Company accounts for income taxeder the asset and liability method,
which requires the recognition of deferred tax &saad liabilities for the expected future tax amnsences of the events that have been
included in the consolidated financial statemeldteder this method, deferred tax assets and lisdsilare determined based on the differences
between the book and tax basis of assets andtiebilising enacted tax rates in effect for the yeavhich the differences are expected to be
reversed. The effect of a change in tax rates eridel tax assets and liabilities is recognizethaperiod that includes the enactment date.
The Company files tax returns for federal, statg lacal income tax purposes. A valuation allowaiscecognized if it is anticipated that
some or all of a deferred tax asset may not bézezhl

If the Company considers that a tax position is ferldkely-than-not" to be sustained upon audit,dubsolely on the technical merits of
the position, it recognizes the tax benefit. Thenpany measures the tax benefit by determiningatgebt amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuntimag the tax position is examined by the appraéeiiaxing authority that has full knowlec
of all relevant information. These assessmentdearomplex and require specific analysis to deteertiie impact of the position, as such the
Company often obtains assistance from externakadvi The Company considers the information aridesrat the percentage to apply as a
possible uncertain portion related to the positibmthe extent that the Company's estimates chantie final tax outcome of these matter
different than the amounts recorded, such diffezemnill impact the income tax provision in the peérin which such determinations are
made. Uncertain tax positions are classified ageationly when the Company expects to pay cashmiitie next twelve months. Interest and
penalties, if any, are recorded within the provisior income taxes in the Company's consolidatatéstents of income and are classified on
the consolidated balance sheets with the relaaddity for unrecognized tax benefits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recent accounting pronouncementsviiatl impact our consolidated balance sheets,mmtaies of income, comprehens
income or cash flows.
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Year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the yeded December 31, 2011
Overview

The following summarizes changes in financial pemfance for the year ended December 31, 2012 comhpar2011 .

Percent
2012 2011 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 512.: % 508.1 $ 4.2 0.6%
Total operating expenses 268.2 266.- 1.7 0.€%
Operating income 244.1 241.¢ 2.5 1.C%
Total other expense (1.5 (1.5 — — %
Income before income taxes 242.¢ 240.1 2.5 1.C%
Income tax provision 85.2 100.% (15.5 (15.9%
Net income $ 157«  $ 139.2  § 18.C 12.€%
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 155.¢  $ 136.¢ % 18.7 13.7%
Operating income percentage 47.€% 47.5%
Net income percentage 30.7% 27.2%
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 17¢ $ 1.5

e The Company's market share of total optionsreats traded on U.S. exchanges was 27.8% for thegreled December 31,
2012 compared to 26.4% for the year ended DeceBihe2011 .

» Total operating revenues increased due to higkelmange services and other fees, market datarézpgatory fees and other
revenue, partially offset by decreases in transadtes and access fees.

e Total operating expenses increased due to higliside services and other expenses, partialgebffy decreases in depreciation
and amortization and trading volume incentives.

Significant Events in 2012

Total cleared contract volume in 2012 reached #lidrb contracts, a 12% decline from the 2011 relcoolume of 4.6 billion contracts
reported by the OCC. Despite this decline, 201kmtre second highest year for cleared contracimelto date and the second consecutive
year in which volume surpassed 4 billion contre

We experienced strong growth in VIX options andifes in 2012. For the year ended December 31, 89tPmpared to the prior year
period, we experienced increases in total volumél¥ioptions and futures of of 13.0% and 99.2%spectively. We believe the growth is
due to a broader customer base and our commitmémiestor education.

On December 12, 2012, the Company announced tHaaW1i). Brodsky, Chairman and CEO, advised ther8dhaat he will step dow
as CEO effective following the 2013 Annual MeetingMay 2013. Following the annual meeting, it idieipated that he will assume the r
of Executive Chairman of the Board. The companyg alsnounced that its Board of Directors appointdai&d T. Tilly, CBOE President a
COO, as CEO, also effective following the 2013 Aainiveeting. Edward L. Provost, CBOE Chief Busin&velopment Officer, wi
succeed Tilly as CBOE President and COO.

Transactions Impacting our Financial Performance fo the Twelve Months ended December 31, 2012

e OnJanuary 3, 2012, the Company implemented Sestesages to our fee schedule to promote tradingiious products.
Adjustments were made to liquidity provider slidiscples, effectively decreasing per contract feesioltiply-listed option products
and increasing per contract fees on proprietardywts. For Clearing Trading Permit Holders that@aprietary firms, a single,
fixed transaction fee for non-paired orders in pictd other than our proprietary option products e&tablished. And, in an effort to
increase our market share, we implemented a volnosmtive program ("VIP") to reward firms who exéegualifying electronic,
public customer, multiply-listed volume at CBOEeircess of certain thresholds, with a graduateddsdbdor higher tiers.
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» In addition to transaction fee changes on Jagn8a2012, we implemented fee adjustments for ntarieker trading permits, which
resulted in lower access fees, and we increasedxahiange services and other fees for Trading Pétalders.

» Effective August 1, 2012, CBOE increased its@p regulatory fee rate and C2 implemented arooptregulatory fee. The increase
in the options regulatory fee is reflected in "Rlegry Fees" in the consolidated statements ofrimeo

»  Other expenses include the impact of an expacseial of $5.0 million for a potential liabilitglated to an SEC investigation of
CBOE's compliance with its obligations as a seffutatory organization under the federal securitess.

» Income tax expense decreased due to the reamypoitdiscrete items resulting in a net benefigd2.9 million.

Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended Decethe2012 increased $4.2 million , or 0.8% , ta&3 million from $508.1 million
in the prior year. The following summarizes chanige®tal operating revenues for the year endedebéer 31, 2012 compared to 2011 .

Percent
2012 2011 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 357.1 $ 373.1 $ (16.0) (4.9%
Access fees 64.1 68.7 (4.6) (6.71%
Exchange services and other fees 31.4 18.2 13.2 72.E%
Market data fees 24.: 19.¢ 4.4 22.4%
Regulatory fees 21.C 19.2 1.8 9.1%
Other revenue 14.4 9.C 5.4 59.C%
$ 512.: % 508.1 $ 4.2 0.€%

Total operating revenues

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees decreased 4.3% to $357.1 milbothie year ended December 31, 2012 , represe®®ngo of total operating
revenues, compared with $373.1 million for the pyiear period, or 73.4% of total operating revendéss decrease was largely driven by a
decrease in trading volume of 6.8% , partially effisy a 2.6% increase in the average transactmpde contract. The increase in average
transaction fee per contract is impacted primdnjhfee changes implemented during the year, wiiicteased the rate per contract on indt
and futures and decreased the rate per contranutiiply-listed options products, and the mix obgucts traded.

Although our share of total exchange-traded optardracts increased to 27.8% from 26.4% from tiar year period, overall trading
volume decreased. Trading volume is impacted bynfactors. These factors include: macroeconominiesyenarket volatility, regulatory
actions or considerations, availability of capitaimpetition, number of trading days in the peaod seasonality.

Average transaction fee per contract, discussgdeater detail below, is impacted by our fee stmectvhich includes volume based
incentive programs, mix of products traded andpthieentage of trading volume executed by custoamcompared to professionals, market-
makers, clearing trading permit holders and bralealers. The implementation of fee changes, whia imcrease or decrease our average
transaction fee per contract, is primarily to epdiat we are competitive in the options marketphkaed to ultimately improve and continue to
drive order flow to our exchanges. We cannot ptatiie trading patterns of exchange participants¢chvinay be based on factors not in our
control, but we can continue to price our prodattievels that are competitive in our markets.

The following summarizes transaction fees by prodategory for 2012 compared to 2011 .
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Percent
2012 2011 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 50.¢ $ 84.: $ (24.7) (29.9%
Indexes 204.¢ 197.: 7.1 3.€%
Exchange-traded products 55.€ 74.4 (18.¢) (25.9%
Total options transaction fees 319.¢ 356.( (36.9 (10.29%
Futures 37.t 17.1 20.4 119.1%
Total transaction fees $ 357.1 § 3731 § (16.0) (4.39%

Trading Volume

The Company's average daily trading volume ("ADW§s 4.54 million contracts in 2012 , a decreasg @¥% compared with 4.83
million for 2011 . Total trading days in 2012 a2@11 were two hundred fifty and two hundred fiftyet respectively. Due to the impact of
Hurricane Sandy, all exchanges were closed two ma@stober 2012 resulting in no trading activity those days.

The Company experienced a decrease in volume ma@a@ns product category. The Company continoezkperience significant
growth in futures, primarily driven by futures comtts on the VIX Index. The following summarizesaeges in total trading volume and Al

by product for 2012 compared to 2011 .

2012 2011 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 494.: 1.97 516.] 2.0t (4.2% (3.5%
Indexes 304.: 1.22 320.¢ 1.27 (5.0% (3.9%
Exchange-traded products 311.¢ 1.2t 368.¢ 1.4¢ (15.9% (14.1%
Total options contracts 1,110. 4.44 1,204.¢ 4.7¢ (7.9% (7.)%
Futures contracts 23.¢ 0.1C 12.C 0.0t 99.2% 99.2%
Total contracts 1,134.1 4.5¢ 1,216.¢ 4.8t (6.9% (6.0%

The following provides the percentage of volumepbyduct category for the year ended December 312 20d 2011 .

2012 2011
Equities 43.6% 42.2%
Indexes 26.8% 26.2%
Exchang-traded products 27.5% 30.2%
Futures 2.1% 1.C%
Total 100.(% 100.0%

Average transaction fee per contract
The average transaction fee per contract was $0i32612 , an increase of 2.6% compared with $0iB@®011 . Average transaction

fee per contract represents transaction fees dibgeotal contracts. In general, the Company faoeginued downward pressure on
transaction fees for multiply-listed products (es and ETPS) in the markets in which we compete.
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The following summarizes average transaction feecpetract by product for 2012 compared to 2011 .

Percent

2012 2011 Change
Equities $ 0.121 $ 0.16: (25.9%
Indexes 0.672 0.61¢ 9.1%
Exchange-traded products 0.17¢ 0.20z (11.9%
Total options average transaction fee per contra 0.28¢ 0.29¢ (2.9%
Futures 1.57( 1.41¢ 10.€%
Total average transaction fee per contract $ 031t § 0.307 2.6%

There are a number of factors that contributedhéarncrease in our total average transaction feeqdract in 2012 compared to 2011 .
These include:

» Rate structure—Our rate structure includes sliding scales, volaiiseounts and limits on fees as part of our effwihcrease
liquidity and market share in multiply-listed opt® products and, to a lesser extent, on our prapyi@roducts. The transaction
fee changes implemented January 3, 2012, inclutiedIP, which does not include proprietary produdecreased the rate per
contract on multiply-listed options products (etpdtand exchange-traded funds) and increasedtéh@eacontract on indexes
and futures.

* VIX options and futures-or the year ended December 31, 2012 as compathd fwior year period we experienced increases
in total volume in VIX options and futures of 13.G#d 99.2% , respectively. Index options repredenCompany's highest
options average transaction fee per contract. Estoontracts generate our highest total averagsdaction fee per contract.

* Product mii—The increase in the average transaction fee perammeflects a shift in the volume mix by produodexes and
futures accounted for 26.8% and 2.1% of total @misrtraded in 2012 up from 26.3% and 1.0% in 20&%pectively. Index
options represent the Company's highest optionsagedransaction fee per contract, while futuresegates our highest total
average transaction fee per contract.

At December 31, 2012 , there were one hundred@BOE clearing firms, two of which cleared a combid% of our billings
collected through the OCC in 2012 . The next largkssaring firm accounted for approximately 5% af dillings collected through the OCC.
No one Trading Permit Holder using the clearingyises of the top two clearing firms representedertban 15% of the revenue collec
through the OCC in 2012 or 2011 for the respeatlearing firm. Should a clearing firm withdraw fro@BOE, we believe the Trading Permit
Holder portion of that firm's trading activity wallikely transfer to another clearing firm.

The two largest clearing firms mentioned aboverdiea majority of the markatiaker sides of transactions at CBOE, C2 and aff dfie
U.S. options exchanges. If either of these firmsewte withdraw from the business of market-makeadhg and market-makers were unable
to make new clearing arrangements, this could ergignificant disruption to the U.S. options maskétcluding ours.

Access Fees
Access fees for the year ended December 31, 20¥2aked to $64.1 million from $68.7 million in tbemparable prior year period,
representing 12.5% and 13.5% of total operatingmaes for 2012 and 2011 , respectively. The deeri@asccess fees was primarily due to
fee adjustments implemented in 2012 for market-makeling permits, which lowered both the fee aridipg for monthly trading permits

under the market-maker trading permit sliding scillarket-makers that committed to a minimum nundfdrading permits for the calendar
year qualified for a discounted monthly re

The demand for trading permits could be impacteddasonality and market fluctuations that affeaditrg volume.
Exchange Services and Other Fees
Exchange services and other fees for the year eDdedmber 31, 2012 increased 72.5% to $31.4 miftiom $18.2 million in the

comparable period in the prior year, resulting jaritly from pricing increases for services such @snectivity to CBOE Command through
network access ports and client application sesvice
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Market Data Fees

Market data fees increased 22.4% to $24.3 millmrtte year ended December 31, 2012 from $19.9omilh the prior year. Market
data fees represent income derived from OPRA alsasehe Company's market data services. OPRA antb@ny market data fees for the
years ende2012 and 2011 were $15.0 million and $9.3 milliowl $12.9 million and $7.0 million , respectivelyPRA income is allocated
through OPRA based on each exchange's share btledaed options transactions. The Company's shfaDdPRA income for the period
ended December 31, 2012 increased to 24.4% frod¥2for the same period in 204% a result of an increase in the Company's stidotab
cleared options transactions. Revenue generatadtire Company's market data services, which prasinleent and historical options and
futures data, increased $2.3 million , resultinignarrily from an increase in subscribers to CBOE&tning Markets and other market data
services and an increase in subscriber rates.

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 9.1% for the year en@&é ® $21.0 million from $19.2 milliom the same period in the prior year, resul
from CBOE increasing its options regulatory fe@rand C2 implementing an options regulatory fees€hee changes were partially offset
by lower Trading Permit Holder customer volume isity-wide as compared to the same period in 2011 .

The Company's regulatory fees are primarily basethe number of customer contracts traded througiheuisted United States
options industry. Under the rules of each of ourans exchanges, as required by the SEC, any revéarived from regulatory fees and fines
cannot be used for non-regulatory purposes. Onalgirly 2013, the Company increased the optiondatmy fee rate cover increasing costs
associated with the Company's regulatory respditibi See explanation of employees costs withipleyees costs regarding regulatory
staffing.

Other Revenue

Other revenue increased $5.4 million to $14.4 onillior the year ended 2012 compared with $9.0 onilfor the comparable period in
2011 . This increase primarily reflects fines assdgo Trading Permit Holders from disciplinaryi@es. Under the rules of each of our
options exchanges, as required by the SEC, anyweveerived from regulatory fees and fines caneaided for non-regulatory purposes.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased $1.7 millian0.8% , to $268.2 million for the year ended 2@b2n $266.5 millionin the year ag
period, resulting from higher costs associated wittside services and other expenses, partialbebffy lower depreciation and amortization
and trading volume incentives. Expenses decreas®d.8% of total operating revenues in the yeaedrD12 compared with 52.5% in the
same period in 2011 .

The following summarizes changes in operating egesffior the year ended December 31, 2012 compa2@iltl .

Percent
2012 2011 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 1042 $ 104 $ (0.3 (0.9%
Depreciation and amortization 31.t 34.1 (2.6) (7.€)%
Data processing 19.€ 17.¢ 1.7 9.E%
Outside services 36.2 27.2 9.C 33.L%
Royalty fees 46.1 47.¢ (1.7) (3.6%
Trading volume incentives 6.3 14.2 (7.9 (55.60%
Travel and promotional expenses 10.C 9.8 0.2 2.L%
Facilities costs 5.0 5.4 (0.9 (7.9%
Other expense 9.2 B3 3.7 67.2%
Total operating expenses $ 268.2 §$ 2665 §$ 1.7 0.€%

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , employds wese $104.2 million , or 20.3% of total opergthevenues, compared with
$104.5 million , or 20.6% of total operating reveayin the same period in 2011 . This representiteease of $0.3 million , or 0.3% ,



resulting from decreases in accrued incentive coisgtgon, which is aligned with the Company's
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performance targets, of $0.9 million and severanqense of $0.5 million , partially offset by arriease in salaries of $1.4 million resulting
from increases in staffing, primarily for regulatdunctions.

In September 2012, the Company announced a reduatforce which resulted in the elimination of @@sitions and severance charges
of $2.1 million. Total headcount at the end of 2042 compared to the beginning of the period, reethrelatively constant as the eliminated
staff positions were mostly offset by newly add&ffositions, primarily for regulatory functionis 2011, the Company recorded severance
expenses of $3.7 million due to the departure sgrdor executive pursuant to his employment agreemith the Company.

We expect stock-based compensation expense t@bertin 2013 as compared to 2012. The increaseénimply attributed to restricted
stock granted on February 6, 2013 for which the gamy will recorded accelerated stock-based compiensa the first quarter of 2013 to
recognize the fair value of stock awards grantetkttain executives due to provisions containethéir respective agreements regarding
employment. In the second quarter of 2013, the Gompvill record stock-based compensation experagerkto the transition of
management as described in significant events.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $2.Bomito $31.5 million for the year ended Decembgr 2012 compared with $34.1
million for the same period in 2011 . Depreciatéord amortization charges represented 6.1% and 6f Tétal operating revenues for the
years ende2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Data Processing

Data processing expenses increased $1.7 milli®i %6 million for the year ended December 31, 2€d@pared with $17.9 million in
the prior-year period, representing 3.8% and 3.5%tal operating revenues in the years ended 20022011 , respectively. The increase in
data processing expenses is primarily due to aease in hardware and software maintenance relatitige migration of the CBOE and CFE
data centers to New Jersey and various other saftuagrades.

Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services increase86i@ $nillion for the year ended December 31, 20b&hf$27.3 million in the prior-
year period and represeni7.1% and 5.4% of total operating revenues in tte@gyended 2012 and 2011 , respectively. The $9li@mi
increase primarily resulted from higher expensesdsts relating to legal proceedings, costs aasatiwith the Company's review of
regulatory compliance and audit and accounting peesally attributed to additional work relatedthe recognition of a certain discrete tax
deduction.

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees for the year ended December 31, 2042 %46.1 million compared with $47.8 million fbetprior year period, a decrease
of $1.7 million primarily resulting from lower trémh volume in licensed products. Royalty fees repnted 9.0% and 9.4% of total operating
revenues for the years ended 2012 and 2011 , tasggc

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives decreased $7.9 millio&3 million for the year ended December 31, 26dpared to $14.2 million for
the same period a year ago, representing 1.2% .8f6l @ total operating revenues in the years er2@d@ and 2011 , respectively. The
decrease was primarily due to lower volume in rplytiisted options products (equities and exchaimgded products), a modification in the
criteria for contracts qualifying for certain quiydbased fee waivers and an adjustment to thega&sby the Company for transactions
linked to away exchanges.

Other Expense

In 2012, the Company accrued an estimated expdr&e®million for a potential liability related @n SEC investigation of CBOE's
compliance with its obligations as a self-regulatorganization under the federal securities lawhil®an agreement has not been reached
with the SEC, we believe that any resolution of thiatter would likely include a monetary penaltd amay require CBOE to make additional
changes to its compliance programs and proceduihese is currently no definitive agreement with 8t€C staff for the resolution of this
matter. See Part |, Item 3 (Legal Proceedingsaélalitional information.



Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incom20it?2 was $244.1 million compared to $241.6 millier2011 , an increase of $2.5
million .
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Other Expense
Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $1.7lio for the year ended December 31, 2012 comparitd$0.8 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2012 reflddtee Company's share of the operating loss ofdbigrading Systems, LLC. The loss2011
reflected the Company's share of the operatingddSsgnal Trading Systems, LLC and the impairnathe carrying value of our investm:
in NSX Holdings, Inc. The Company no longer holdiiract investment in NSX due to the acquisitioN&X by CBSX in December 2011.
(See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statestfamtadditional information on the Company's iarin Signal Trading Systems, LLC.)

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2012 was $242.6 million compared to $R4flllion in 2011 , an increase
of $2.5 million .

Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , the incarprovision was $85.2 million compared with $10illion for the same period
2011, a direct result of a decrease in the effedax rate. The effective tax rate was 35.1% &n@% for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 , respectively. The decrease in effettiveate for the year ended December 31, 2012 crdfa the prior year period is the result
of the recognition of discrete items and the bermdfa new tax apportionment method enacted bydisi. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 , the Company filed amendedngfior 2008, 2009 and 2010 and completed its ré¢arrA011 and recognized, as a
discrete item, in the aggregate, a $12.9 millionb@mefit for a Section 199 deduction for U.S. pretibn activities which encompasses all
personal property, including computer softwarepioor year periods. The prior year effective tateracluded the impact of an increase in
lllinois tax rate effective January 1, 2011 ancharge of $4.2 million taken to increase state-eelaincertain tax positions.

Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&tecommon stockholders in 2012 was $155.3 miliompared to $136.6 million in
2011, an increase of $18.7 million . Basic andtddl net income per share allocated to common ktdd&rs were $1.78 and $1.52 for the
years endeDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the yeded December 31, 2010
Overview

The following summarizes changes in financial pemfance for the year ended December 31, 2011 comwhpar2010 .

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Total operating revenues $ 508.1 $ 437.1 % 71.C 16.2%
Total operating expenses 266.5 269.¢ (3.9 (1.2%
Operating income 241.¢ 167.% 74.3 44.4%
Total other expense (1.5 2.7 1.2 (44.9%
Income before income taxes 240.1 164.€ 75.5 45.€ %
Income tax provision 100.5 65.2 35.5 54.4%
Net income $ 139.2  $ 992 % 40.C 40.2 %
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 136.6  $ 98.z $ 38. 39.1%
Operating income percentage 47.5% 38.2%
Net income percentage 27.2% 22.1%
Diluted—net income per share allocated to common
stockholders $ 152 % 1.0¢

 The Company's market share of total optionsreats traded on U.S. exchanges was 26.4% for thegreled December 31,



2011 compared to 28.7% for the year ended DeceBihet010 .
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* Total operating revenues increased due to highasaction fees, access fees and regulatorygedsally offset by decreases in
market data fees and other revenue.

» Total operating expenses decreased primariljtauecreases in employee costs, data processitgijde services and trading
volume incentives, partially offset by increasesl@preciation and amortization and royalty fees.

Significant Events in 2011

The Company and the options industry experiencglddrnitrading volumes during 2011. We believe tlyghéi volume was achieved ¢
to volatility and movements in the financial maskatising primarily out of domestic and internatibnncertainties surrounding certain
political events such as the continued budget s8udvashington, D.C. and the economic unrest amdreign debt issues in Europe.

Pursuant to an employment agreement with a seramutive, the Company recorded $3.7 million in semee expense for payments in
connection with his departure from the companychli$ included in employee costs in the Consolidi&mtement of Income for the period
ended December 31, 2011 .

The Company recorded income tax expense of $4lbmtb reserve for potential additional tax liatis as a result of an advisory
opinion from New York State taxing authorities igdun the third quarter, which attempts to extdradtate's taxing power over certain
electronic transactions and other fees of out-atiestxchanges going back to 2007.

Operating Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended DeceBhe2011 were $508.1 million , an increase of.@illion , or 16.2% , compared
with the prior year. The following summarizes chesign total operating revenues for the year endsgeBber 31, 2011 compared to 2010 .

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Transaction fees $ 3731 % 330.2 % 42.¢ 13.C%
Access fees 68.7 41.4 27.2 66.C %
Exchange services and other fees 18.2 16.€ 1.3 7.€%
Market data fees 19.€ 21.: (1.9 (6.71%
Regulatory fees 19.2 15.2 3.8 25.€%
Other revenue 9.0 11.€ (2.9 (24.2%
Total operating revenues $ 508.1 §$ 4371 $ 71.C 16.2%

Transaction Fees

Transaction fees increased 13.0% to $373.1 mifilonhe year ended December 31, 2011 , represerfintds of total operating
revenues, compared with $330.3 million for the psiear period, or 75.6% of total operating revendéss increase was largely driven by a
4.4% and 8.3%ncrease in the average transaction fee per cdrgrattrading volume, respectively. The increasavierage transaction fee
contract is impacted by the mix of contracts traded trading volume. The following summarizes teanion fees by product for 2011
compared to 2010 .

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Equities $ 84.: $ 100.¢ $ (16.9) (16.29%
Indexes 197.: 159.¢ 37.¢ 23.£%
Exchange-traded products 74.4 62.7 11.7 18.7 %
Total options transaction fees 356.( 322.7 33.2 10.2%
Futures 17.1 7.€ 9.5 125.(%
Total transaction fees $ 3731 % 330 $ 42.¢ 13.C %
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Trading Volume

The Company's ADV was 4.83 million contracts il 20Q up 8.3% compared with 4.46 million for 20Iotal trading days in 2011
and 2010 were two hundred fifty-two. The Compangezienced volume increases of 33.3% and 18.7%tinrgpon exchange-traded funds
and index options, respectively. These increases partially offset by a decrease in equity optisakime of 9.9% The Company continue
to experience significant growth in futures prirhadriven by futures contracts on the VIX index.effollowing summarizes changes in total

trading volume and ADV by product for 2011 compai@@010 .

2011 2010 Volume ADV
Percent Percent
Volume ADV Volume ADV Change Change
(in millions)

Equities 516.] 2.0t 572.i 2.2 (9.9% (9.9%
Indexes 320.¢ 1.27 270.( 1.07 18.7% 18.7%
Exchange-traded products 368.4 1.4¢ 276.% 1.1C 33.2% 33.5%
Total options contracts 1,204.¢ 4.7¢ 1,119.( 4.44 7.7% 7.7%
Futures contracts 12.C 0.0t 4.4 0.0z 172.7% 172.7%
Total contracts 1,216.¢ 4.8: 1,123.. 4.4¢ 8.2% 8.2%

The following provides the percentage of volumepbyduct category for the year ended December 3111 28d 2010 .

2011 2010
Equities 42.0% 51.(%
Indexes 26.2% 24.(%
Exchang-traded products 30.2% 24.€%
Futures 1.C% 0.4%
Total 100.(% 100.%

Average transaction fee per contract

The average transaction fee per contract was $0i32J11 , an increase of 4.4% compared with $0i@2D10 . Average transaction

fee per contract represents transaction fees digieotal contracts.

The following summarizes average transaction feecpetract by product for 2011 compared to 2010 .

Percent

2011 2010 Change
Equities $ 0.16: % 0.17¢ (7.49%
Indexes 0.61¢ 0.591 4.2%
Exchange-traded products 0.20z 0.22i (11.0%
Total options transaction fee per contract 0.29¢ 0.28¢ 2.4%
Futures 1.41¢ 1.72% (17.9%
Total average transaction fee per contract $ 0307 $ 0.29¢ 4.4%

There are a number of factors that have contribtatéde increase in our average transaction feeqaract in 2011 compared to 2010 .

These include:

» Product mi—The increase in the average transaction fee perammeflects a shift in the volume mix by produexchange-
traded products and indexes accounted for 30.3%26&r8% of total contracts traded in 2011 , respebti Index options
represent the Company's highest options averagsaittion fee per contract which coupled with thieim® increase contributed
to the increase in the total average transactiempé contract. The Company also experienced ggnif growth in futures,

which generates our highest total average tramsafdie per contract.
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*  Premium index produc— Contract volume in premium index products increak&d@% in 2011 compared with 2010 , primarily
due to a 56.9% and 12.9% increase in VIX and SR, respectively. As a percentage of total indetions volume for the
years endeDecember 31, 2011 and 2010, SPX and VIX optiomswatted for 61.7% and 30.6% , respectively, an@8%4and
23.1% , respectively. As a percentage of totabimjgions transaction fees for the years ended mbee 31, 2011 and 2010,
SPX and VIX options accounted for 65.6% and 27.f&spectively, and 70.0% and 18.8% , respectively.

»  Multiply-listed options fee cap for Clearing Trading Peridlders —n January 2011, the Company instituted a fee cap o
ransaction fees in all products except propriepeogucts. In the aggregate, transaction fees wagper at $75,000 per month
per Clearing Trading Permit Holder, except thataiarfees did not count towards the cap. We belibedmplementation of the
multiply-listed fee cap contributed to the reduntio the average transaction fee per contractdtm bquity options and options
on exchange-traded products.

» CBOE proprietary products sliding scale for Cleayifirading Permit Holders—n January 2011, the Company instituted a
sliding scale for transaction fees in CBOE propiigiproducts. Clearing Trading Permit Holder prefaiy transaction fees in
proprietary products in a month were reduced predid Clearing Trading Permit Holder reaches cextainme thresholds in
multiply-listed options on CBOE in a month. Thermstard Clearing Trading Permit Holder proprietagnsaction fee in CBOE
Proprietary Products was reduced for Clearing hgudiermit Holders that executed at least 375,08@@cts but less than
1,500,000 contracts in multiply-listed options o0B@E in a month, excluding contracts executed in Aldt incurred the AIM
Execution Fee. We believe the implementation ofsliing scale contributed to the increase in indelxime.

Access Fees

Access fees for the year ended December 31, 2@tdased to $68.7 million from $41.4 million in tb@emparable prior year period,
representing 13.5% and 9.5% of total operatingmege for 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

We began assessing access fees on all TradingtRéofders beginning on July 1, 2010. Prior to Jul2010, the Company only
charged access fees to Temporary Members andipartis in the interim trading permit program.

In 2011 , the Company implemented a sliding saalerfarket-maker trading permits. The sliding sgat®vides market-markers a
reduced rate if they commit to a minimum numbetrafiing permits for the calendar year.

Exchange Services and Other Fees

Exchange services and other fees for the year eDdedmber 31, 2011 increased 7.9% to $18.2 miftiem $16.9 million in the
comparable period in the prior year. The increag®imarily due to the increase in volume and &neiase in rates for customers locating
servers in close proximity to the Company's setvers

Market Data Fees

Market data fees decreased 6.7% to $19.9 milliothfe year ended December 31, 2011 from $21.3anillh the same period in the
prior year. Market data fees represent income ddrivtom OPRA as well as the Company's market dataces. OPRA and Company market
data fees for the years ended 2011 and 2010 wer8 #iillion and $7.0 million and $15.6 million af8.7 million , respectively. OPRA
income is allocated through OPRA based on eachaexyghis share of total cleared options transactidms Company's share of OPRA incc
for the period ended December 31, 2011 decreas2tl 486 from 25.9%or the same period in 2010 as a result of a deereathe Company
share of total cleared options transactions. Thagamy's market data services provide users wittentiand historical options and futures
data. The increase in the Company's market dasaiggeimarily due to the introduction of new mériata products in 2011 .

Regulatory Fees

Regulatory fees increased 25.6% for the year e@@&d to $19.2 million from $15.3 million in the sarperiod in the prior year. The
increase in regulatory fees was primarily due tfhhr trading volume and an increase in the ratameld for regulatory functions as
compared to the same period in 2010 .

Other Revenue

Other revenue was $9.0 million for the year end@tiZzompared with $11.9 million for the compargiéeiod in 2010 , representing a
decrease of $2.9 million . In the fourth quarteR610 , the Company recognized $4.4 million of pperiod transaction fees to adjust for
coding errors made by a CBOE exchange particifdm.coding errors were identified through a revemmducted by the Company's
regulatory division. Excluding the $4.4 million het revenue increased by $1.5 million. This incee&as primarily due to increased licens



revenues for the VIX methodology and other miscataus revenue.
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Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses decreased $3.3 milliori,2% , to $266.5 million for the year ended 2&bin $269.8 millionin the year ag
period. This decrease was primarily due to loweplegee costs, data processing, outside servicesraditig volume incentives, partially
offset by higher depreciation and amortization emgalty fees. Expenses decreased to 52.5% ofaptating revenues in the year ended
2011 compared with 61.7% in the same period in 2010

The following summarizes changes in operating egesffior the year ended December 31, 2011 compa2eil0 .

Percent
2011 2010 Inc./(Dec.) Change
(in millions)

Employee costs $ 104 $ 106.2 $ (2.7) (1.6)%
Depreciation and amortization 34.1 29.¢ 4.2 14.C%
Data processing 17.¢ 19.5 (1.6 (8.2%
Outside services 27.2 31.2 (3.9 (12.5%
Royalty fees 47.¢ 41.4 6.4 15.5%
Trading volume incentives 14.2 21.2 (7.2 (33.9%
Travel and promotional expenses 9.8 9.€ 0.2 2.1%
Facilities costs 5.4 5.8 (0.9 (6.99%
Other expense 5.5 4.8 0.€ 12.2%
Total operating expenses $ 266.5 $ 269.8 $ 3.9 (1.2%

Employee Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , employds wese $104.5 million , or 20.6% of total opergthevenues, compared with
$106.2 million , or 24.3% of total operating reveayin the same period in 2010 . This represedéeceease of $1.7 million , or 1.6% . The
decrease was primarily attributed to a reductiostatk-based compensation of $8.2 million . In 208 Company recorded an expense of
$20.8 million consisting of the recognition of $7lion and $13.0 million of stock-based compeiwateflecting: (a) the recurring
recognition of expense due to the awarding of ietett stock to employees and (b) the acceleratmhretion of expense for certain
executives due to provisions contained in agreesmegarding their employment, respectively. Stoakdnl compensation expense for 2011
included $12.2 million and $0.5 milliareflecting: (a) the recurring recognition of expemsie to the awarding of restricted stock to emgxe
and (b) the accelerated recognition of expensdifectors that left the board in May 2011. Recigritock-based compensation increabéd
million in 2011 reflecting twelve months of expersenpared to six and a half months in 2010 . Theedese in stock-based compensation
was partially offset by increases in accrued ingentompensation, which is aligned with the Compapgrformance, and an increase in
severance expenses of $3.7 million due to the demganf a senior executive pursuant to his employragreement with the Company.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by $4.8anito $34.1 million for the year ended Decembé&r 2011 compared with $29.9
million for the same period in 2010 , primarily lexfting additions to fixed assets placed in sernc2011 and 2010 . With the launch of C2
on October 29, 2010, assets totaling approxim&2#:4 million were reclassified from constructiardasoftware in progress to furniture and
equipment and data processing and other softwespectively. The depreciation expense for thesstatstaled $5.4 million and $0.8 million
in 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition toltherch of C2, the Company has purchased systerdsvhes and software to enhance sys!
functionality and expand capacity. Depreciation antbrtization charges represented 6.7% and 6.8%talfoperating revenues for the years
ended 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Data Processing

Data processing expenses decreased $1.6 milli§h7#® million for the year ended December 31, 2€drhpared with $19.5 million in
the prior-year period, representing 3.5% and 4.5%tal operating revenues in the years ended 2012010 , respectively. The decrease in
data processing expenses is primarily due to uggradhardware technology allowing for reduced tteaiance costs, fewer subscriptions to
external data resources due to migration from apgary to electronic trading and growth in exteregiranet vendors/connectivity, which
reduced managed network costs.
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Outside Services

Expenses related to outside services decreasex¥t8 illion for the year ended 2011 from $31.2lionil in the prior-year period and
represented 5.4% and 7.1% of total operating reegmespectively. The $3.9 million decrease prilpaeflected a reduction in legal and
consulting fees.

The Company received insurance reimbursementedal Expenses of $0.9 million for the year endedebéer 31, 2010 .
Royalty Fees

Royalty fees expense for the year ended Decembh&031 was $47.8 million compared with $41.4 milliwr the prior year period, an
increase of $6.4 million . This increase was thediresult of higher trading volume in CBOE's lised index products in 2011 compared
with the same period in 2010. Royalty fees represkf.4% and 9.5% of total operating revenuesheryears ended 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Trading Volume Incentives

Trading volume incentives decreased $7.1 millios2d.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2€drhpared to $21.3 million for
the prior year period, representing 2.8% and 4.9%tal operating revenues in the years ended 20112010 , respectively. The decrease
was primarily due to a modification in the criteféa contracts qualifying for certain quantity-bddee waivers.

Operating Income

As a result of the items above, operating incom20ihl was $241.6 million compared to $167.3 millie2010 , an increase of $74.3
million .

Other Expense
Net Loss from Investment in Affiliates

Net loss from investment in affiliates was $0.8lior for the year ended December 31, 2011 compartd$2.3 million for the same
period in the prior year. The loss in 2011 reflddtee Company's share of the operating loss ofdbigrading Systems, LLC and the
impairment of the carrying value of our investmienNSX Holdings, Inc. The loss in 2010 primarilypresented an impairment in our
investment in OneChicago of $1.6 million.

Other Borrowing Costs

On December 23, 2008, the Company entered intaiarseredit facility with three financial instituths. The credit agreement expired
on December 23, 2011 and was not renewed. Thetereflected the payment of commitment fees andrazation of deferred financing
costs associated with the credit facility whictatet $0.9 million for the years ended Decembei281,1 and 2010 There were no borrowin
against the credit facility in 2011 or 2010 .

Income before Income Taxes

As a result of the items above, income before iretemes in 2011 was $240.1 million compared to $.64llion in 2010 , an increase
of $75.5 million .

Income Tax Provision

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , the incarprovision was $100.7 million compared with $6@milion for the same period
2010 . This increase was directly related to higheome before income taxes and an increase iaffhetive tax rate. The effective tax rate
was 41.9% and 39.6% for the years ended Decemb@031 and 2010 , respectively. The higher rategrily reflects the impact of an
increase in the lllinois tax rate effective Januar011 and a charge taken of $4.2 million tomeséor potential additional tax liabilities as a
result of an advisory opinion from New York Stadgihg authorities issued in the third quarter, iahattempted to extend the state's taxing
power over certain electronic transactions andrdées of out-of-state exchanges going back to 208@&se increases were partially offset by
current and prior years income tax credits foraede and development costs and a reduction in @f@rieed Illinois apportionment factor ra



In December 2011, the State of lllinois enactealxabill which resulted in a reduction of statutagyportionment rates assigned to the
Company. The statutory apportionments affect atl-pbysical floor receipts attributed to matchingeeution and clearing transactions. The
change in apportionment rate resulted in a $0.famiteduction in deferred tax liabilities.
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Net Income

As a result of the items above, net income allat&tecommon stockholders in 2011 was $136.6 miliompared to $98.2 million in
2010, an increase of $38.4 million . Basic andtddl net income per share allocated to common ktdd&rs were $1.52 and $1.03 for the
years endeDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have financed our operations, tamxpenditures and other cash needs throughgeastrated from operations. C.
requirements principally consist of funding opergtexpenses, capital expenditures and includesleaa anticipated quarterly dividend
payments and common stock repurchases under tloeiaced program. We expect to use cash on handcaniizr 31, 2012 and funds
generated from operations to continue to meet 6@BZash requirements. From time to time we consfiaepossibility of acquisitions,
dispositions and strategic alliances the we belieoeld strengthen our business in the long-termyeher, these transactions may negatively
impact our liquidity in the short-term.

Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 2011
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $20@illion and $203.1 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The decrease in net cash provideaplyating activities was primarily due to an inse& accounts receivable, reflecting
activity for December 2012, resulting from fee i@ses implemented in 2012 and higher trading volmdeproduct mix as compared to
December 2011. Net cash provided by operatingiieBwas $43.1 million higher than net incometfoe fiscal year ended December 31,
2012 . The net increase was mainly a result of$8&iillion in depreciation and amortization, theagnition of stock-based compensation
totaling $12.3 million and increase in income tagagable of $8.7 million , partially offset by arcrease in accounts receivable of $8.1
million and an increase in income tax receivabl&®0D million .

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities tote&3.0 million and $30.3 million for the year end2edcember 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively. Expenditures for capital and otheetstotaled $30.1 million and $29.1 million foetyears ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 , respectively, primarily representing purésasf systems hardware and software. The Compadg maestments in IPXI Holdings,
LLC of $1.3 million and Signal Trading Systems, Lb€$1.7 million in 2012 .

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities totaddd6.9 million and $91.7 million for the years eddDecember 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively. The increase in net cash flows usdihancing activities resulted primarily from thayment of a special dividend. For the year
ended December 31, 2012 , net cash flows usedanding activities consisted of $49.7 millisnunrestricted common stock purchases u
the Company's share repurchase program, $47.&mibir the payment of quarterly dividends, $66.8iar for the payment of a special
dividend and $3.1 million for other shares purcllasehich consisted of unrestricted common stockesutered to satisfy employees' tax
obligations upon the vesting of restricted stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 2010
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $208illion and $134.9 million for the years ended 2@nd 2010 , respectively. The
increase in net cash provided by operating aatiwitvas primarily due to higher transaction feesltiag from higher trading volumes and a
shift in product mix and increased profitabilityet\cash provided by operating activities was $&3llion higher than net income for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 . The netasergvas mainly a result of $34.1 million in depation and amortization, the recognition
of stock-based compensation totaling $12.6 mildod increase in income taxes payable of $9.0 millio

Investing Activities



Net cash flows used in investing activities totea.3 million and $32.5 million for the year end2edcember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Expenditures for capital and otheetstotaled $29.1 million and $23.6 million foetyears ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, primarily representing puresasf systems hardware and software. The Company
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made investments in IPXI Holdings, LLC for $1.3 linih and Signal Trading Systems, LLC for $8.0 moifliin 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
Financing Activities

Net cash flows used in financing activities tota$®d..7 million and $432.3 million for the year edd@ecember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The decrease in net cash flows usédancing activities resulted primarily from thgor year payment of the exercise right
privilege of $300.0 million due to the completiohtle restructuring transaction, the special dimdldeclared and paid to the holders of the
Class A and Class B common stock totaling $11314ami, the payment of quarterly dividends totali®$9.7 million and the completion of
two concurrent tender offers for shares of Claska@ad Class A-2 common stock totaling $299.2 millicollectively, partially offset by net
proceeds received from the initial public offerimigCBOE Holdings common stock of $301.2 millionarEhe period ended December 31,
2011, net cash flows used in financing activitieasisted of $47.0 milliom unrestricted common stock purchases under timep@ay's shai
repurchase program, $40.4 million for the paymémtividends and $4.3 million for other shares pas#d, which consisted of unrestricted
common stock surrendered to satisfy employee®higations upon the vesting of restricted stock.

Dividends

The Company’s expectation is to continue to paydéinds, with any such dividend based on prior yeaet income adjusted for certain
items. The decision to pay a dividend, however gi@siwithin the discretion of our Board of Dired@nd may be affected by various fact
including our earnings, financial condition, capiequirements, level of indebtedness and othesidenations our Board of Directors deems
relevant. Future credit facilities, other futurdtebligations and statutory provisions may limitjn some cases prohibit, our ability to pay
dividends.

Share Repurchase Program

On August 2, 2011, the Company announced thabdsdoof directors had approved a share repurchaggam that authorizes the
Company to purchase up to $100 million of its utiieed common stock. On July 31, 2012, the Compamyounced that its board of
directors had approved the repurchase of an addit®100 million of its outstanding unrestrictedrzoon stock. This program is in addition
to any amount remaining under the August 2011 aighitoon. The program permits the Company to puselghares through a variety of
methods, including in the open market or throughgtely negotiated transactions, in accordance wjihlicable securities laws. It does not
obligate the Company to make any repurchases ag@auific time or situation.

From August 2011 through December 31, 2012 , thag2my purchased 3,707,424 shares of unrestrictathom stock at an average
cost per share of $26.09 totaling $96.7 milliopinchases under the program.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012Ctmepany purchased 1,871,44ares of unrestricted common stock at an av
cost per share of $26.58 totaling $49.7 milliopinchases under the program. The Company did pateckase any shares under the
announced repurchase programs in the three montlesiddecember 31, 2012 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently do not have any relationships withamsolidated entities or financial partnershipsewofteferred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, that have been eskadifor the purpose of facilitating off-balanceetharrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes.

Lease and Contractual Obligations

The Company leases office space in downtown Chiddlgmis for its Regulatory Division, in a subudf Chicago for a remote netwc
operations center, in New York City for certain keting activities and New Jersey for housing itedaenter, with lease terms remaining
from 8 months to 68 months as of December 312 20Dbtal rent expense related to these leaseatldits for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 were $3.5 million , $3.2 willand $3.2 million , respectively. Future minimpayments under these non-cancelable
lease and advertising obligations were as folloinBexember 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Less than
Total(1) 1 year 1-3years 3-5years
Operating leases $ 10,42¢ $ 2817 $ 4,867 $ 2,74
Advertising obligations 171 171 — —

Total $ 10,60 $ 2,98¢ $ 4,861 $ 2,74¢
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(1) Gross unrecognized income tax liabilities,ledg interest and penalties, of $19.5 million aat included in the table due to
uncertainty about the date of their settlement.

In addition to the non-cancelable leases and adiregtagreements, the Company has contractualaifdigs related to certain
advertising programs and licensing agreements watlous licensors. The licensing agreements comtaimual minimum fee requirements 1
total $23.2 million for the next five years and&illion for the five years thereafter.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Mark®isk

We are exposed to market risk in the ordinary awofdbusiness. This market risk consists primarflinterest rate risk associated with
our cash and cash equivalents. We have no longdeshort-term debt. The Company does not tradiempfor its own account.

Interest Rate Risk

We have exposure to market risk for changes ingstaates relating to our cash and cash equivaléstof December 31, 2012 and
2011 , our cash and cash equivalents were $13%i6mand $134.9 million , respectively. We investailable cash in highly liquid, short-
term investments, such as money market funds aBdTWeasury securities. Our investment policy ipreserve capital and liquidity. A
hypothetical three basis point decrease in shamt-teterest rates would decrease annual earninggskythan $50,000, assuming no change in
the amount or composition of our cash and cashvatgrits.

Impact of Inflation

We have not been adversely affected by inflatioteaknological advances and competition have géneaused prices for hardware
and software that we use for our electronic platfoto remain constant or decline. Since transasonour exchanges are not governed by
long-term contracts, we believe that any increas@¥lation are unlikely to have a material adweedfect on us.

53




Table of Contents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourffinm 55
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,8012011 57
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseiidecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 58
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaied December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 60
Consolidated Statements in Stockholders'/Memb for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20412810 61
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 62

54




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiatles (Company") as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated séatEsnof income, comprehensive income, stockholdaesnbers' equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@012 . These financial statements are thgoresibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 thenaksults of their operations and their casidlfor each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 , in conformity with actiogrprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012 , based on the criteria establishiedernal Control -Integrated Framewor
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission and our report datdaieey 28, 2013 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohdwer financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the internal control over finanglorting of CBOE Holdings, Inc. and subsidiafihe “Company”) as of December 31,
2012 , based on criteria establishedhirernal Control-Integrated Framewoliksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrike
Treadway Commission. The Company's managemensg®nsible for maintaining effective internal cohwwaer financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabover financial reporting included in the acqmanying Management's Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsumternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staigdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corawar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnadutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process by, or under the supervision efctimpany's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performisigilar functions, and, effected by the compabyard of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regatwngliability of financial reporting and the pegation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles. A company's internal control pfieancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaance of records that, in reasonable detailirately and fairly reflect the transactions :
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)idmyeasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generalgepted accounting principles, and that receiptisependitures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@aent and directors of the company; and (3) pexédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjion, use, or disposition of the company's as#ieit could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltaarover financial reporting to future periods ateéject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, bthtbalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2012 ,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endexbBber 31, 2012 of the Company and our reportidatbruary 28, 2013 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2013
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

(in thousands, except share amounts) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13559° $ 134,93t
Accounts receivable—net allowances of $340 and $304 45,66¢ 37,57¢
Marketing fee receivable 5,21¢ 5,19¢
Income taxes receivable 11,717 6,75¢
Other prepaid expenses 4,14¢ 4,15
Other current assets 567 1,06t
Total Current Assets 202,90¢ 189,68:
Investments in Affiliates 14,27( 14,30¢
Land 4,91¢ 4,91¢

Property and Equipment:

Construction in progress 89 1,26¢
Building 62,44 60,917
Furniture and equipment 263,15! 252,90!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (251,649 (238,28
Total Property and Equipment—Net 74,04¢ 76,79¢
Other Assets:

Software development work in progress 4,37( 6,16¢
Data processing software and other assets (lesshatated amortization—2012, $133,862; 2011, $123),17 38,35 36,00:
Total Other Assets—Net 42,72 42,16¢
Total $ 338,85t % 327,86¢

Liabilities and Stockholders'/Members' Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 45,14¢  $ 46,07:
Marketing fee payable 5,80¢ 5,76t
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 1,08¢ 351
Post-retirement medical benefits 11c 10C
Total Current Liabilities 52,15( 52,28

Long-term Liabilities:

Post-retirement medical benefits 1,794 1,781
Income tax liability 20,857 12,18
Other long-term liabilities 3,94¢ 3,90¢
Deferred income taxes 20,98¢ 21,43¢
Total Long-term Liabilities 47,58¢ 39,31

Commitments and Contingencies
Total Liabilities 99,73¢ 91,59¢

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value: 20,000,000 stearémrized, no shares issued and outstandingceriteer 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 — —

Unrestricted common stock, $0.01 par value: 325@@shares authorized; 91,270,274 issued and BB23 outstanding at

December 31, 2012; 90,781,222 issued and 88,768@8fnding at December 31, 2011 91: 90¢
Additional paid-in-capital 67,81: 55,46¢
Retained earnings 275,49: 232,12:
Treasury stock at cost — 3,998,591 shares at Demre®ih 2012 and 2,012,337 shares at December 31, 20 (104,20) (51,329
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (8939) (899
Total Stockholders' Equity 239,12: 236,27(

Total $ 338,85t % 327,86¢




See notes to consolidated financial statements
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(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenues:
Transaction fees

Access fees

Exchange services and other fees
Market data fees

Regulatory fees

Other revenue

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:

Employee costs

Depreciation and amortization
Data processing

Outside services

Royalty fees

Trading volume incentives

Travel and promotional expenses
Facilities costs

Other expenses

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Other Income/(Expense):
Investment income

Net loss from investment in affiliates

Interest and other borrowing costs
Total Other Income/(Expense)
Income Before Income Taxes
Income tax provision

Net Income

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010

Net Income allocated to participating securities
Net Income allocated to common stockholders

Net income per share allocated to common stockneldiéote 14)

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares used in computing net iaqg@nshare

Basic
Diluted

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

Year Ended
December 31, 2010

$ 357,14¢ $ 373,06! $ 330,26:
64,07( 68,69: 41,38
31,36¢ 18,18: 16,84¢
24,36( 19,90¢ 21,34:
20,99t 19,24: 15,31¢
14,39¢ 9,05¢ 11,95:

512,33 508,14« 437,10
104,19¢ 104,45: 106,24:
31,48t 34,00 29,89:
19,60: 17,93: 19,50:
36,30 27,31( 31,24
46,13 47,82: 41,35:
6,27t 14,23¢ 21,29t
10,00¢ 9,812 9,56¢
5,06€ 5,40( 5,801
9,17¢ 5,44¢ 4,86¢
268,24 266,51 269,76
244,09 241,63 167,34
14¢ 142 47E
(1,695) (811) (2,297)
— (879 (89€)
(1,54€) (1,545) (2,719
242,55 240,08 164,62:
85,15¢ 100,67¢ 65,22’
157,39 139,40¢ 99,39¢
(2,141) (2,824) (1,230
$ 155,25 $ 136,58. $ 98,16¢
$ 1.7¢ $ 152 $ 1.0z
1.7¢ 1.52 1.0z
87,46( 89,99t 95,75¢
87,46( 89,99t 95,75¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

(in thousands)

Net Income

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - net of tax:
Post retirement benefit obligation

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income allocated to participating secities

Comprehensive Income allocated to common stockholde

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

$ 157,39 $ 139,40 $ 99,39¢
6 73 (172)

157,40; 139,47¢ 99,22t

(2,147) (2,824) (1,230

$ 155,26( $ 136,65 $ 97,99t

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010

(in thousands)

CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

Year Ended
December 31, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casidlprovided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Other amortization
Provision for deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation
Equity in loss of affiliates
Impairment of investment in affiliates and othesets
Loss on disposition of property
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Marketing fee receivable
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other receivable
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Marketing fee payable
Deferred revenue and other liabilities
Post-retirement benefit obligations
Income tax liability
Settlement with appellants
Access fees subject to fee-based payment
Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital and other assets expenditures
Investment in Signal Trading Systems, LLC
Investment in IPXI Holdings, LLC
Other
Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment for debt issuance costs
Payment of quarterly dividends
Payment of special dividend
Purchase of unrestricted stock from employees
Purchase of unrestricted common stock under anmoupmgram
Exercise Right privilege payable
Net proceeds from issuance of unrestricted comrtanks
Payment of special dividend on Class A and ClassBmon stock
Tender offer for Class A-1 common stock
Tender offer for Class A-2 common stock
Other stock repurchases
Net Cash Flows used in Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

$ 157,39t $ 139,40 99,39¢
31,48 34,00 29,89:
88 90 69
(499 94c 21
12,34¢ 12,61¢ 20,80:
1,69t 352 677
— 45¢ 1,62(

1 1,22¢ 13¢
(8,089 16€ (7,309
1 2,62( 1,15¢
(4,962 (1,219 (3,959
6 704 53t

— — 2,08¢

49¢ (529 (85
1,11¢ 5,78¢ (3,339
43 (2,589 (1,437

773 (16) (12
an (©) ©)
8,67: 9,02( 35C
— — (3,000

_ — (2,689
200,53 203,12¢ 134,91
(30,066 (29,149 (23,556
(1,667 — (7,990
(1,250 (1,250 —
— 112 (999
(32,97) (30,289 (32,549
= = (23
(47,829 (40,379 (19,66
(66,197 — —
(3,129 (4,339 —
(49,749 (46,990 -
— — (300,000

_ — 301,23t

_ — (113,41)

_ — (149,59

— — (149,599

— — (1,257
(166,89") (91,70) (432,310
661 81,14 (329,94)
134,93t 53,78¢ 383,73(
$ 135,59, $ 134,93 53,78¢




Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for income taxes
Non-cash activities:
Change in post-retirement benefit obligation
Unpaid liability to acquire equipment and software
Unpaid liability for investment in Signal TradingS8ems, LLC

Unpaid liability for investment in IPXI Holdings,UC

$ 82,63 $

(29
758

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CBOE Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'/Members' dtiity
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Class A-1
and Accumulated Total
Unrestricted Class A and B A- Additional Other Stockholders'/
Members' Preferred Common Common 2 Common Paid-In Retained  Treasury Comprehensive Members'

(in thousands) Stock Stock Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Loss Equity
Balance—January 1, 2010 — — — — 2,59z 166,76¢ — (807) 188,13¢
Conversion of all Exchange Seats into sh
of Class A common stock 744 18,83( —
Issuance of Class B common stock as se
forth in the Settlement Agreement 162 (163) —
Cash dividends on common stock (113,41) (113,41)
Conversion of Class A and Class B comn

stock into unrestricted common stock i

connection with the sale by selling

stockholders 21 (21) —
Initial public offering of unrestricted
common stock, net of underwriting and
offering expense 11z 301,12¢ 301,23¢
Automatic conversion of the shares of

Class A and Class B common stock nc

converted into unrestricted common

stock and sold in the initial public

offering into Class A-1 and A-2 commc

stock (88€) 88€ —
Cash dividends on common stock (19,667) (19,667)
Tender Offer for Class A-1 Common Stoc (59  (149,53¢) (149,594
Tender Offer for Class A-2 Common Stock (6C)  (149,53Y) (149,59
Automatic conversion of Class A-1 to
Unrestricted Common Stock 384 (384) —
Other stock purchases — — (1,25%) (1,25%)
Stock based compensation 20,80: 20,80:
Net income 99,39¢ 99,39¢
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax benefit of $118 171 a71)
Balance—December 31, 2010 — 51¢ — 38¢ 42,85¢ 133,08 — 972) 175,87
Automatic conversion of the shares of

Class A-2 into unrestricted common

stock 38: — (389 —
Cash dividends on common stock (40,377 (40,377
Stock-based compensation 12,61¢ 12,61¢
Issuance of vested restricted stock granted to
employees 7 (M —
Purchase of unrestricted common stock (51,32¢) (51,329
Net income 139,40t 139,40¢
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax expense of $17 73 73
Balance—December 31, 2011 — 90¢ — — 55,46¢ 232,12: (51,329 (899) 236,27(
Cash dividends on common stock (114,024 (114,024
Stock-based compensation 12,34¢ 12,34¢
Issuance of vested restricted stock grante
employees 5 (5) —
Purchase of unrestricted common stock (52,877) (52,877
Net income 157,39¢ 157,39t
Post-retirement benefit obligation
adjustment—net of tax expense of $19 6 6
Balance-December 31, 2012 $ — 3 91z  $ = — $ 67,81: $27549. $(104,20) $ (89%) 239,12:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and @0
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business—CBOE Holdings, Inc. ("CBOE Holdings" or the "Conmyd) is the holding company of registered secsitie
exchanges, subject to oversight by the Securitidstxchange Commission ("SEC"), and a designatettaxct market under the jurisdiction
of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFI©ur principal business is providing a marketpléar the trading of options on
equities and ETPs, index options and futures.

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements includestteounts and results of operations of CBOE Holdamgsits
wholly-owned subsidiaries, including: Chicago Board Ogtiechange, Incorporated ("CBOE"), CBOE Futuresiarge, LLC ("CFE"), C.
Options Exchange, Incorporated ("C2"), Market Datpress, LLC, Chicago Options Exchange Buildinggooation, CBOE, LLC and
DerivaTech Corporation. Inter-company balancesteartsactions have been eliminated in consolidafitie. Company reports the results of
its operations in one reporting segment.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—The Company's financial instruments, consistingarily of cash and cash equivalents and account
receivables, are exposed to concentrations oftarielli The Company places its cash and cash elgnitsawith highly-rated financial
institutions, limits the amount of credit exposwith any one financial institution and conducts oing evaluations of the creditworthiness of
the financial institutions with which it does bus#s. Accounts receivable are primarily collectedugh The Options Clearing Corporation,
known as OCC, and are with large, highly-ratedrategfirms; therefore, concentrations of credikrége limited.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial statetsi@nconformity with accounting principles genéralccepted in
the United States ("GAAP") requires managementakerestimates and assumptions that affect theteebamounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitied riaported amounts of revenues and expenses. Ongaing basis, management evaluates its
estimates based upon historical experience, ohsesvaf trends, information available from outsiderses and various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the cstamoes. Actual results may differ from these estid® under different conditions or
assumptions.

Revenue Recognition—The Company's revenue recognition policies comptit ASC 605 Revenue RecognitigtASC 605"). On
occasion, customers will pay for services in a lwvam payment. When these circumstances occur, uievisrecognized as services are
provided. Deferred revenue typically representsuamsreceived by the Company for which serviceshwt been provided.

Revenue recognition policies for specific sourceeeenue are discussed below:

Transaction Fees: Transaction fee revenue is considered earned tife execution of a trade and is recognized toade date basis.
Transaction fee revenue is presented net of afgiicalume discounts. In the event liquidity prosisl prepay for transaction fees, revenue is
recognized based on the attainment of volume tobtdstresulting in the amortization of the prepaytrerer the calendar year.

Access Fees: Access fee revenue is recognized during thieghéne service is provided.

Exchange Services and Other FeeSxchange services and other fees are recogniré@thdthe period the service is provided.
Exchange services and other fees include systeritesytrading floor charges and application rewenu

Market Data Fees: Market data fee revenue includes Options FRiggorting Authority ("OPRA") income and Company ketrdata
services. OPRA is a limited liability company catisig of representatives of the member exchangassamuthorized by the SEC to provide
consolidated options information. OPRA income Isadted based upon the individual exchanges relatume of total cleared options
transactions. The Company receives monthly estenat©PRA's distributable revenue (See Note 5)iacaoime is distributed on a quarterly
basis. Company market data service fees represemttharged for current and historical optionsfatdes data. Market data services are
recognized in the period the data is provided.

Regulatory Fees: Regulatory fees charged to all Trading Permidiis are primarily based on the number of custaosatracts
traded on all U.S. options exchanges and are réoagjon a trade-date basis. Under the rules of eobr options exchanges, as required by
the SEC, any revenue derived from regulatory feesfimes cannot be used for non-regulatory purposes
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CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01

Concentration of Revenuét December 31, 2012 , there were one hundred@BOE clearing firms, two of which cleared a condain
45% of our billings collected through the OCC irl2Q The next largest clearing firm accounted fggraximately 5% of our billings
collected through the OCC. No one Trading Permideiousing the clearing services of the top twatey firms represented more than 15%
of the revenue collected through the OCC in 20120dr1 for the respective clearing firm. Shouldeading firm withdraw from CBOE, we
believe the affiliate portion of that firm's tradimctivity would likely transfer to another cleagifirm.

The two largest clearing firms mentioned aboverdlea majority of the marketiaker sides of transactions at CBOE, C2 and aif.
the U.S. options exchanges. If either of thesedimere to withdraw from the business of market-makearing, and market-makers were
unable to make new clearing arrangements, thislooelate significant disruption to the U.S. optiomarkets, including ours.

Trading Volume Incentives—Trading volume incentives consist of market linkaxpenses incurred to send certain orders to other
exchanges. If a competing exchange quotes a Ipeiber, we route the customer's order to that exghamd pay certain of the associated
costs. Regardless of whether the transactiondedrat our exchanges, the order flow potential eods our overall market position and
participation and provides cost savings to custemdarket linkage expenses vary based on the vobfrnentracts linked to other exchanges
and fees charged by other exchanges. Costs inciarisshd certain orders to other exchanges aregdlssough to the original order sending
firm.

Advertising Costs—Advertising costs, including sponsorships withalogrofessional sports organizations, print adsentj and
production costs, product promotion campaigns &mdairsar, conference and convention costs relaté@dd® shows and other industry events,
are expensed as incurred or amortized over thecésp period. The Company incurred advertisingo§%$5.3 million , $5.5 million and
$5.5 million for the years ended December 31, 20411 and 2010 , respectively. Advertising costsiacluded in travel and promotional
expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquicstments with maturities of three months or lesm
the date of purchase. There are no redemptioriatistis on the Company's invested cash balances.

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable consists primarily of trangacand regulatory fees from the OCC and the Coiyipan
share of distributable revenue receivable from OPR#e Company has no financing related receivables.

Prepaid expenses—Prepaid expenses primarily consist of prepaidis# maintenance and licensing expenses.

Investments in Affiliates—Investments in affiliates represent investment®@C, Signal Trading Systems, LLC ("Signal Tradng"
IPXI Holdings, LLC ("IPXI") and CBOE Stock Exchangel C ("CBSX").

The investment in OCC (20% of its outstanding staskarried at cost because of the Company'slitatn exercise significant
influence.

We account for the investment in Signal Tradingeaurttie equity method due to the substantive ppetiiig rights provided to the other
limited liability company member, FlexTrade Systemns. ("FlexTrade"). The Company received a 50%rshin Signal Trading in return for
its contributions.

The investment in IPXI is accounted for under thstanethod of accounting for investments. The Cargpthrough DerivaTech
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, receivetD&6 share in IPXI in return for its contributions.

The Company received a 50% share in CBSX in returnon-cash property contributions. The Companysntly holds a 49.96%
equity interest in CBSX. CBSX, which is not a s&lfulatory organization, is considered a stockitigafhcility of CBOE. CBOE is
responsible for the compliance and regulation efGBSX marketplace. In addition, the Company hsaraices agreement around providing
financial, accounting and technology support. CBS¥nanced through existing capital and cash faparations. In December 2011, CBSX
acquired the National Stock Exchange, Inc. ("NSX")egistered national securities exchange thdésratocks. The acquisition by CBSX did
not have an impact on the Company's equity inténeSBSX.

Investments in affiliates are periodically reviewteddetermine whether any events or changes inmistances indicate that the
investments may be other than temporarily impaihedhe event of impairment, the Company would ggipe a loss for the difference



between the carrying amount and the estimated/&ire of the investment.

Property and Equipment —Property and equipment are carried at cost, natofimulated depreciation. Depreciation on building
furniture and equipment is provided on the stralgte method. Estimated useful lives are 40 yearsHe
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CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01

building and five to ten years for furniture andiggnent. Leasehold improvements are amortized theelesser of their estimated useful I
or the remaining term of the applicable leases.

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviéavddtermine whether any events or changes inmistances indicate that the
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverdahle Company bases the evaluation on such impatrméicators as the nature of the
assets, the future economic benefit of the asasyshistorical or future profitability measuremeras well as other external market conditions
or factors that may be present. If such impairmgiitators are present that would indicate thatcdmeying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable, the Company determines whether aniimpat has occurred through the use of an undigedurash flow analysis of assets at
the lowest level for which identifiable cash floasist. In the event of impairment, the Company geizes a loss for the difference between
the carrying amount and the estimated fair valuthefasset as measured using quoted market pricestibe absence of quoted market pri
a discounted cash flow analysis.

Property and equipment—construction in progressyptalized and carried at cost in accordance A8IC 360Property, Plant and
Equipmen("ASC 360"). Projects are monitored during the depment stage to ensure compliance with ASC 360aaedrdance with proje
initiatives. Upon completion, the projects are plhin service and amortized over the appropriagéuliives, using the straight-line method
commencing with the date the asset is placed iricger

Software Development Work in Progress and Data Praxssing Software and Other Assets-The Company accounts for software
development costs under ASC 3&@tangibles—Goodwill and Oth¢fASC 350"). The Company expenses software devedoprrosts as
incurred during the preliminary project stage, whihpitalizing costs incurred during the applicati@velopment stage, which includes
design, coding, installation and testing activitiestimated useful lives are three to five yeardrfternally developed and other data
processing software and generally are five yealsssrfor other assets.

Income Taxes—Deferred income taxes are determined in accordaitbeASC 740,/ncome Taxe§'ASC 740"), and arise from
temporary differences between the tax basis an#l basis of assets and liabilities. The Company @etofor income taxes under the asset
and liability method, which requires the recognitf deferred tax assets and liabilities for thpemted future tax consequences of the events
that have been included in the consolidated fireratatements. Under this method, deferred taxsasel liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the book and tax basesset@and liabilities using enacted tax ratesfacefor the year in which the differences are
expected to be reversed. The effect of a chantgximates on deferred tax assets and liabilitieedegnized in the period that includes the
enactment date. The Company files tax returnsederfal, state and local income tax purposes. Aatialn allowance is recognized if it is
anticipated that some or all of a deferred taxtassg not be realized.

If the Company considers that a tax position isrerdikely-than-not" to be sustained upon audit,dmbsolely on the technical merits of
the position, it recognizes the tax benefit. Thenpany measures the tax benefit by determiningafgebkt amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement, presuntimgt the tax position is examined by the appraéptiaxing authority that has full knowlec
of all relevant information. These assessmentdeacomplex and require specific analysis to deteertiie impact of position, as such the
Company often obtains assistance from externabadsi The Company considers the information aridesrat the percentage to apply as a
possible uncertain portion related to the posititmthe extent that the Company's estimates chantee final tax outcome of these matter
different than the amounts recorded, such diffezsmeill impact the income tax provision in the perin which such determinations are
made. Uncertain tax positions are classified areationly when the Company expects to pay cashmiitie next twelve months. Interest and
penalties, if any, are recorded within the prowisior income taxes in the Company's consolidatatesients of income and are classified on
the consolidated balance sheets with the relaadbdity for unrecognized tax benefits. See Noteoftirther discussion of the Company's
income taxes.

Employee Benefit Plans—The funded status of a postretirement benefit [darcognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheikt an
changes in that funded status are recognized ipegieof change in other comprehensive income)(I&an assets and obligations are
measured at year end. The Company recognizes changetuarial gains and losses and prior senadsésdn the year in which the changes
occur through accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Commitments and Contingencies—Litigation—The Company accrues loss contingencies when fssgddoth probable and
estimable. All legal costs incurred in connectidthMoss contingencies are expensed as servia®sded.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements— There are no recent accounting pronouncementsvihied impact our consolidated balance



sheets, statements of income, comprehensive inocomesh flows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01

2. SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On August 2, 2011, the Company announced thabi#sdoof directors had approved a share repurchagggm that authorizes the
Company to purchase up to $100 million of its utiieed common stock. On July 31, 2012, the Compamyounced that its board of
directors had approved the repurchase of an additi&100 million of its outstanding unrestrictedrooon stock. This authorization is in
addition to any amount remaining under the Aug@dtl?authorization. The program permits the Compgarpurchase shares through a
variety of methods, including in the open markethwough privately negotiated transactions, in agance with applicable securities laws. It
does not obligate the Company to make any repueshasany specific time or situation.

From August 2011 through December 31, 2012 , thag2my purchased 3,707,424 shares of unrestrictathom stock at an
average cost per share of $26.09 totaling $96.lfomiin purchases under the program.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2012Ctmepany purchased 1,871,424 shares of unrestiot@dnon stock at an
average cost per share of $26.58 totaling $49.[fomiin purchases under the program. The Compathydi repurchase any shares under the
announced repurchase programs in the three montlesiddecember 31, 2012 .

3. INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the Company's imezd in affiliates was comprised of the followifig thousands):

2012 2011
Investment in OCC $ 338 % 338
Investment in Signal Trading 11,431 11,47
Investment in IPXI 2,50(C 2,50(
Investment in Affiliates $ 1427C  $ 14,30¢

In May 2010, CBOE acquired a 50% interest in Sigrralding from FlexTrade. The joint venture develaps markets a multi-asset
front-end order entry system, known as "Pulse, clliiias particular emphasis on options trading. Jbmmpany assists in the development of
the terminals and provides marketing serviceséddt venture, which is accounted for under theiy method. In the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 , the Company recorded equisgtom and contributions to Signal Trading of $tillion and $1.7 million, respectively

In 2011 and 2012, the Company, through DerivaTeatp@ation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquireda0% interest in IPXI fo$2.5
million . IPXI is creating a marketplace for a umégportfolio of financial products and services tagilitate investment in and risk
management of intellectual property assets, helpingers and sellers efficiently allocate intelledtproperty rights. The Company accounts
for its investment in IPXI using the cost-method.

4. RELATED PARTIES

The Company collected transaction and other fe&s44.3 million , $542.8 million and $455.5 milliamthe years endddecember 3!
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, by drawingarounts of CBOE and C2 market participants helfd@&E€. The amounts collected by
OCC for CBOE included $96.1 million , $93.7 milliamd $101.3 million , respectively, of marketingdeduring the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 . The Company naceivable due from OCC of $42.3 million and $3%illion at December 31, 2012
and 2011 , respectively.

OPRA is a limited liability company consisting @presentatives of the member exchanges and israagtidy the SEC to provide
consolidated options information. This informatisrprovided by the exchanges and is sold to outsées services and customers. OPRA's
operating income is distributed among the exchabgeed on their relative volume of total clearetiams transactions. Operating income
distributed to the Company was $15.0 million , $1@illion and $15.6 million during the years endzecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 ,
respectively. The Company had a receivable from ®BR$3.4 million and $3.3 million at December 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The Company incurred re-billable expenses on betigBSX for expenses such as employee costs, cemequipment and software
of $3.7 million , $5.1 million and $3.5 million dag the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
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2010, respectively. These amounts are includedraduction of the underlying expenses. The Compadya receivable from CBSX of $0.5
million at December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

Options Regulatory Surveillance Authority ("ORSAS)responsible for conducting insider trading irigegions related to options on
behalf of all options exchanges. CBOE is the ReaguyaServices Provider under a plan entered intthbyoptions exchanges and approve
the SEC to administer ORSA. The Company incurrehiltable expenses on behalf of ORSA for expenseb sis employee costs, occupancy
and operating systems of $2.1 million , $2.0 millend $2.0 million , during the years ended Decerthe2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively. These amounts are included as atieduaf the underlying expenses. The Company hateivable due from ORSA of $1.4
million and $0.6 million at December 31, 2012 a®d 2, respectively.

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , accounts payall@ecrued liabilities consisted of the following thousands):

2012 2011
Compensation and benefit related liabilities $ 18,30¢ $ 18,34¢
Royalties 10,52¢ 10,79¢
Facilities 1,93 2,22¢
Legal 1,70¢ 962
Accounts payable 73t 1,87
Linkage 1,11¢ 1,652
Estimated liability related to SEC matter (See NiRtg 5,00( —
Other 5,82¢ 10,20¢
Total $ 45,14t  $ 46,07

6. MARKETING FEE

The Company facilitates the collection and payneémharketing fees assessed on certain trades takiocg at CBOE. Funds resulting
from the marketing fees are made available to Dedeyl Primary Market-Makers and Preferred MaNiakers as an economic inducemer
route orders to CBOE. Pursuant to ASC 605RE&yenue Recognition—Principal Agent Consideratjaghe Company reflects the assessmr
and payments on a net basis, with no impact omreagor expenses.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , amounts assbgdbe Company on behalf of others included irentrassets totalekb.2 million
and payments due to others included in currentliliais totaled $5.8 million .

7. DEFERRED REVENUE

The following tables summarize the activity in dedel revenue for the years ended December 31, 2042011 .

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,
(in thousands) 2011 Additions Recognition 2012
Liquidity provider sliding scale $ —  $ 29,75¢ $ (29,759 $ —
Other, net 351 4,94( (4,207 1,08¢

Total deferred revenue $ 351 $ 34,69¢ $ (33,966 $ 1,08¢




(in thousands)
Liquidity provider sliding scale
Other, net

Total deferred revenue

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Cash Revenue December 31,
2010 Additions Recognition 2011
—  $ 40,02: $ (40,02) $ —
28C 3,25¢ (3,185 351
28C $ 43277 % (43,200 $ 351
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Liquidity providers who prepay transaction feesa ainimum, for the first two levels of the liquigiprovider sliding scale are eligible
to receive reduced fees on contract volume abo0¢080 per month. The prepayment of 2012 and 2@ifs#action fees totaled $29.8 million
and $40.0 million . This amount is amortized artbrded as transaction fees over the respectivederi

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employees are eligible to participate in the ChacBgard Options Exchange SMART Plan ("SMART Plaithe SMART Plan is a
defined contribution plan, which is qualified undeternal Revenue Code Section 401(k). The Comganyributed $3.9 million , $4.5
million and $3.5 million to the SMART Plan for eachthe years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 ab@d 2@spectively.

Eligible employees may participate in the Supplet@leBmployee Retirement Plan ("SERP"), ExecutivérBment Plan ("ERP") and
Deferred Compensation Plan. The SERP, ERP and fiedf@ompensation Plan are defined contributiongpthat are nonqualified by Inter
Revenue Code regulations. The Company contributei illion , $1.3 million and $1.6 million to trebove plans for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

The Company also had a Voluntary Employees' BeiagefiAssociation ("VEBA"). The VEBA was a trust, gjifying under Internal
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(9), created to prasadiain medical, dental, severance and short-tésabiity benefits to employees.
Contributions to the trust were based on resemudeestablished by Section 419(a) of the InteRelenue Code. The trust was terminated as
of December 31, 2010, so no contributions were ntlagieafter. The Company contributed $3.7 millionthe year ended December 31,
2010.

The Company has a postretirement medical planeidain current and former members of senior managérnihe Company recorded
immaterial postretirement benefits expense foryiers ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010ltingsfrom the amortization of service
costs and actuarial expense included in accumutatest comprehensive loss at December 31, 20121, 2Ad 2010 .

9. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incoma tate to the effective income tax rate for thergemded December 31, 2012 , 2011
and 2010 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.C% 35.(% 35.(%
State income tax rate, net of federal income téecef 4.8 5.8 4.C
Section 199 deductions (7.5) — —
Other, net 2.8 1.4 0.€
Effective income tax rate 35.1% 41.5% 39.6%

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@i€ Company filed amended returns for 2008, 20@P2810 and completed its
return for 2011 and recognized, as a discrete itene aggregate, a $12.9 million net benefitd@ection 199 deduction for U.S. production
activities which encompasses all personal proparthiding computer software for prior year periods

67




Table of Contents

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01

The components of income tax expense for the yavaded December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 are asvfo(in thousands):

2012 2011 2010
Current:
Federal $ 65,05¢ $ 76,637 $ 51,50:
State 20,597 23,10: 13,70¢
Total current 85,65 99,73¢ 65,20¢
Deferred:
Federal 40€ (48) 3,47(
State (907) 98¢ (3,449
Total deferred (495) 94C 21
Total $ 85,15¢ $ 100,67¢ $ 65,227

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the net deferreahie tax liability approximated (in thousands):

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets $ 22,93 $ 21,58¢
Deferred tax liabilities (43,929 (43,02%
Net deferred income tax liability $ (20,989 $ (21,439

The tax effect of temporary differences giving tisesignificant portions of deferred tax assets létullities at December 31, 2012 and
2011 are presented below (in thousands):

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Intangibles $ 88 § 51C
Accrued compensation and benefits 9,221 8,28¢
Property, equipment and technology, net 57C 887
Investment in affiliates 7,93¢ 8,431
Other 5,12 3,472
Total deferred tax assets 22,93t 21,58¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, equipment and technology, net (36,930) (38,967)
Investment in affiliates (1,687 (1,596
Prepaid (99€) (96¢)
Other (4,31) (1,499
Total deferred tax liabilities (43,929 (43,025
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (20,989 $ (21,439

The net deferred tax liabilities are classifiedamy-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balandee8ts at December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending unagrtax positions, excluding interest and penaligas follows (in thousands):
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2012 2011 2010
Balance as of January 1 $ 12,18 $ 3,168 % 2,81t
Gross increases on tax positions in prior period 3,401 9,18¢ 20t
Gross decreases on tax positions in prior period (839 (2,215 (87€)
Gross increases on tax positions in current period 4,74( 2,76¢ 1,13¢€
Lapse of statue of limitations — (719 (115)
Balance as of December 31 $ 19,49: $ 12,18t $ 3,168

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , the Cagnpad $19.5 million , $11.4 million and $2.5 nulli , respectively, of uncertain
tax positions excluding interest and penalties cWwhif recognized in the future, would affect tmmaal effective income tax rate. Reductions
to uncertain tax positions from the lapse of theliapble statutes of limitations during the nexetwe months are estimated to be
approximately $3.6 million , not including any potial new additions.

Estimated interest costs and penalties are cladsa part of the provision for income taxes inGoepany's consolidated statements of
income and were $0.6 million , $0.1 million andBillion for the periods ended December 31, 202@1,1 and 2010respectively. Accrue
interest and penalties were $1.4 million , $0.8iariland $0.7 million as of December 31, 2012 ,28hd 2010 , respectively.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal tax, lllspdlew Jersey and New York state taxes and WashirigiC. taxes, as well as other local
jurisdictions. The Company has open tax years 20017 on for New York, 2008 on for federal and Wiig, and 2009 on for New Jersey ¢
Washington, D.C. Specific line items for the 2088 year are being examined by the Internal Rev&aueice and the lllinois Department of
Revenue due to the filing of amended returns caoimgithe recognition of certain credits and dedingi The Company's tax returns have
been examined by the Internal Revenue Service ¢iw@009 and the lllinois Department of Revenueubhn2008. The Company is currently
under audit by the Internal Revenue Service forl02a1d a limited issue focus examination for 201ddifionally, the Company is under au
by the State of New York for the 2007 through 2@80years and the State of Illinois for the 2006 2010 tax years.

10. SENIOR REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On December 23, 2008, the Company entered intoaacured senior revolving credit facility with tarénancial
institutions. The credit agreement expired on Ddmam23, 2011 and was not renewed by the Companyo®img under the
facility became available upon the final, non-apalele resolution of the Delaware Action pursuanthte Settlement
Agreement. As part of the Settlement AgreementCthmpany was required to pay qualifying class mesibe
$300 million in cash at the completion of the resturing transaction. The Company secured thisdineedit to ensure that it
had adequate funds available to meet this obligafis of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and duriny#aes ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no borresdgginst the credit facility.

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received ugale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a Itghil an orderly transaction betwe
market participants at the measurement date atigkiprincipal or most advantageous market for déisaet or liability. The fair value should
be calculated based on assumptions that markétipartts would use in pricing the asset or liapjlitot on assumptions specific to the entity.
In addition, the fair value of liabilities shoulddlude consideration of non-performance risk, idirlg the Company’s own credit risk.

The Company applied Financial Accounting Stand&uaisrd ("FASB") ASC 820Fair Value Measurement and Disclosyrehich
provides guidance for using fair value to measseets and liabilities by defining fair value antabsishing the framework for measuring fair
value. ASC 820 applies to financial and nonfinahicistruments that are measured and reported air &dlue basis. The thrdevel hierarch
of fair value measurements is based on whethdnthas to those measurements are observable osanale. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sourcesewimbbservable inputs reflect the Company’s makstimptions. The fairalue hierarch
requires the use of observable market data whefableand consists of the following levels:

. Level 1—Unadjusted inputs based on quoted markets forimirassets or liabilitie
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. Level 2—Observable inputs, either direct or iedt, not including Level 1, corroborated by marttata or based upon
guoted prices in non-active markets.

. Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect managiet’s best assumptions of what market participasatsid use in valuing
the asset or liability.

The Company has included a tabular disclosureiiantial assets that are measured at fair valuerecurring basis in the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,&@12011 . The Company holds no financial lialeititthat are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis.

(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

Money market funds $ 126,00( — — % 126,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2012 $ 126,000 $ — 9 — 9 126,00(
(amounts in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets at fair value:

Money market funds 126,00( — — 126,00(
Total assets at fair value at December 31, 2011 $ 126,000 $ — 9 — 9 126,00(

In March 2011, the Company revalued its investnmeSX Holdings, Inc. as a result of an other-thamporary impairment. The
investment is classified as Level 3 as the faiugabas based on both observable and unobservailts,jmesulting in a full impairment
totaling $0.5 million , which represented the remirag carrying value of the investment. The Compaayonger holds a direct investment in
NSX due to the acquisition of NSX by CBSX in Dece&mnB011.

The Company, through DerivaTech Corporation, a Wyholvned subsidiary, acquired a 10.0% interesPiKlIHoldings, LLC
("IPXI") for $2.5 million . The investment, measdrat fair value on a non-recurring basis, is cfas$ias level 3 as the fair value was based
on both observable and unobservable inputs.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2012 , the end of the periogtoay by this report, the Company was subject tov#nious legal proceedings and
claims discussed below, as well as certain othgal lproceedings and claims that have not been feiglved and that have arisen in the
ordinary course of business.

The Company reviews its legal proceedings and slaisgulatory reviews and inspections and otheal lpgpceedings on an ongoing
basis and follows appropriate accounting guidanieenamaking accrual and disclosure decisions. Thepgaoy establishes accruals for those
contingencies where the incurrence of a loss ibalste and can be reasonably estimated, and weskstie amount accrued and the amount
of a reasonably possible loss in excess of the atramcrued, if such disclosure is necessary foffinancial statements to not be misleading.
The Company does not record liabilities when tkelilhood that the liability has been incurred islpable, but the amount cannot be
reasonably estimated, or when the liability is deadid to be only reasonably possible or remote.ddrapany's assessment of whether a lc
reasonably possible or probable is based on iesas®ent of the ultimate outcome of the matter falg all appeals.

Estimates of probable losses resulting from pdiggétion involving the Company are inherentlyfdifilt to make, particularly when tl
Company's view of the case is significantly diffgrthan that expressed by the plaintiff. The Conydaas not recorded a liability related to
damages in connection with these matters.

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company does nok thiat there is a reasonable possibility that aayemal loss exceeding the amounts
already recognized for these reviews, inspectiorater legal proceedings, if any, has been incuV¢hile the consequences of certain
unresolved proceedings are not presently deterrdgntie outcome of any litigation is inherently arta@in and an adverse outcome from
certain matters could have a material effect oneamnings in any given reporting period.
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Index Options Litigation

On November 15, 2006, CBOE, The McGraw-Hill Companinc. ("McGraw-Hill") and CME Group Index Sereg; LLC (substituted
for Dow Jones & Co.) ("Dow Jones") asserted claimthe Circuit Court of Cook County, lllinois againSE and its parent company ("ISE"),
seeking a declaration to prevent ISE from offel®@R)X and DJX options and to prevent OCC from issaimgj clearing such options. ISE filed
a lawsuit on November 2, 2006 in the United Stltistrict Court for the Southern District of New YoQiseeking a declaration that the rights
asserted by McGraw-Hill and Dow Jones are preemipgefdderal law. The New York action is currentngling, but has been stayed in light
of the lllinois action. The lllinois court has peainently restrained and enjoined ISE from listingpaviding an exchange market for the
trading of SPX and DJX options and enjoined OC@nfissuing, clearing or settling the exercise ofsIBE options. The lllinois Appellate
Court affirmed the lower court's ruling on May 2812 and the lllinois Supreme Court denied ISEfseapof this decision. ISE filed a
Petition for Certiorari with the U.S. Supreme CaumtJanuary 25, 2013.

Patent Litigation
ISE --'707

On November 22, 2006, ISE filed an action in thététhStates District Court for the Southern DigtdENew York claiming that
CBOE's Hybrid trading system infringes ISE's U.&teat No. 6,618,707 ("the '707 patent"). On Jan@ary2007, CBOE filed an action in
federal court in the Northern District of lllinodgeking a declaratory judgment that the '707 patastnot infringed, not valid and/or not
enforceable against CBOE. The New York case wasfeared to the Northern District of Illinois on gust 9, 2007. The trial in this case is
scheduled to begin in March 2013.

On August 15, 2012, C2 filed a declaratory judgrmeamhplaint against ISE in the United States Dist@iourt for the Northern District of
lllinois alleging that the '707 patent is not valiebt infringed and not enforceable in light of @é&ms in the CBOE case involving the same
patent.

ISE -- QRM

On November 12, 2012, CBOE brought suit againstitSfie United States District Court for the North®istrict of Illinois alleging
that ISE infringes three patents related to quistemonitor (QRM) technology. CBOE has requestédrictive relief and monetary damages.
On February 20, 2013, the court ruled that the basteansferred to the United States District Céurthe Southern District of New York
where it will proceed.

SEC Matter

As previously reported in the Company's periodiadss, the staff of the SEC is investigating CBO&mpliance with its obligations as
a self-regulatory organization under the federatigées laws. We continue to cooperate with theegtigation and CBOE is conducting its
own review of its compliance and has modified ampliance program. We have commenced discussidhstind SEC staff aimed at
resolving the investigation, and such discussiensain ongoing. While an agreement has not beehedawith the SEC staff, we believe that
any resolution of this matter would include a mamngpenalty and may require CBOE to make additichahges to its compliance programs
and procedures. A resolution of this matter mag asolve other remedies within the SEC's authoiityring the fourth quarter of 2012, the
Company recorded a charge of $5.0 million relatethis matter which is included in other expensethe consolidated statement of income
and accounts payable and accrued expenses inrbelictated balance sheet for the year ended Deae3db@012 , respectively. There is
currently no definitive agreement with the SECfsfaif the resolution of this matter. We believetthas reasonably possible that the
Company could incur a charge in connection witk thatter of up to $10 million, and any agreemeffith subject to the approval by the
Commissioners of the SEC. Therefore, there carpl@saurance that the Company's negotiations wWitlSEC staff will result in a definitive
agreement, and the amount of the monetary penptiy final disposition of these matters may excéedamount we have accrued. However,
we believe that the likelihood of any additionalmatary penalty in excess of the upper limit of tduege set forth above is remote.

Other

As a self-regulatory organization under the jugtidn of the SEC, with respect to CBOE and C2, asid designated contract market
under the jurisdiction of the CFTC, with respecCi6E, we are subject to routine reviews and inspestby the SEC and the CFTC.
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We are also currently a party to various otherllpgaceedings including those already mentionedndd@ment does not believe that
outcome of any of these other reviews, inspectwrsther legal proceedings will have a materialactpn our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Leases and Other Obligations

The Company leases facilities with lease terms mgimgifrom 8 months to 68 months as of Decembe2812 . Total rent expense
related to these lease obligations, reflected ia geocessing and facilities costs line items @nGlonsolidated Statements of Income, for the
years endeDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , were $3.5omil$3.2 million and $3.2 million , respectivejuture minimum payments
under these non-cancelable lease and advertisiegm@gnts are as follows at December 31, 2012 ginsdnds):

Operating Advertising

Year Leases Obligations Total

2013 $ 2817 $ 171 $ 2,98¢
2014 2,531 — 2,531
2015 2,33( — 2,33(
2016 2,16t — 2,16t
2017 58C — 58C
Total $ 10,42¢ % 171 $ 10,60(

In addition to the non-cancelable leases and adireytagreements, the Company has contractualatidius related to certain
advertising programs and licensing agreements watlous licensors. The licensing agreements comtaimual minimum fee requirements 1
total $23.2 million for the next five years and&illion for the five years thereafter.

13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock-based compensation is based on the fair wdltiee award on the date of grant, which is recogghover the related service
period, net of estimated forfeitures. The serviegqa is the period over which the related serigggerformed, which is generally the same as
the vesting period.

On January 13, 2010, the board approved the CBQ#irds, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIPThe board amended and
restated the LTIP, effective upon receiving stod#tboapproval, which was received at the May 17,1228nnual meeting of stockholders. The
LTIP provides that an aggregate of 4,248,497 shafrtlee Company's common stock are reserved faaisse to participants under the LTIP.

The Compensation Committee of the Company's bdaditectors administers the LTIP and may desigaate of the following as a
participant under the LTIP: any officer or othermgayee of the Company or its affiliates or individsi engaged to become an officer or
employee and non-employee directors of the CompEmg.LTIP permits the granting of non-qualifiedadtmptions, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, incentive compensation d&ar any combination of the foregoing. The Compéas Committee has the authority ¢
complete discretion to prescribe, amend and regciled and regulations relating to the LTIP, sepasticipants and to determine the form
terms of any awards.

On June 14, 2012, the Company granted 38,990 sbrestricted stock to non-employee members obthead of directors at a fair
value of $27.33 per share, the closing price ofGbenpany's stock on the grant date. The sharesahame year vesting period and vesting
accelerates upon the occurrence of a change inot@fthe Company. On August 15, 2012, the Compgnayted 8,163 shares of restricted
stock to certain employees at a fair value of $2&&r share, the closing price of the Companytksta the grant date. The shares have a
three year vesting period and vesting accelergien the occurrence of a change in control of then@any. Unvested portions of the
restricted stock will be forfeited if the membeaves the board or the employee leaves the compamte the applicable vesting date, exc
in limited circumstances.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 &k, 28e Company recognized $12.3 million , $12ilion and , $20.8 million ,
respectively, of stock-based compensation expesiated to restricted stock. For the twelve montided December 31, 2012 , 2011 and
2010, the Company recorded $0.3 million , $0.9iamland $13.0 million , respectively, to recognazelerated stock-based compensation.
In 2012 and 2011 , the accelerated expense igdeatcertain members of the board of directorsléfaor are leaving the the board. In 2010



the accelerated expense was for certain executiveso
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provisions contained in agreements regarding #raployment. Stock-based compensation expenseligladtin employee costs in the
consolidated statements of income.

The activity in the Company's restricted stocktfar year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Number of Shares Weighted Average
of Restricted Grant-Date Fair
Stock Value
Unvested restricted stock at January 1, 2012 1,252,23" $ 29.0(
Granted 47,15 27.62
Vested (411,35 29.0(
Forfeited (52,219 29.0C
Unvested restricted stock at December 31, 2012 835,820 $ 28.9:

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had unregzedrstock-based compensation expense of $17.2mikilated to outstanding
restricted stock. The remaining unrecognized stwmerded compensation is expected to be recognizechaveighted average period of 1.4
years. The Company is projecting a forfeiture tdt5% . The total fair value of shares vested duriegytear ended December 31, 2012 was
$11.2 million .

14. NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The unvested share-based payment awards that momaiforfeitable rights to dividends or dividerglésalents, whether paid or
unpaid, are participating securities and shallnoduded in the computation of net income per comsitare pursuant to the two-class method.
All restricted stock awards granted to officersediors and employees qualify as participating sges.

The Company computes net income per common sharg tie two-class method, which is an allocatiomrfola that determines the
net income for common shares and participatingritéezsi Under the authoritative guidance, the pnéstéon of basic and diluted earnings per
share is required for each class of common stodknaihfor participating securities. As such, tharany will present basic and diluted net
income per share for its one class of common stock.

The computation of basic net income allocated tomon stockholders is calculated by reducing netrime for the period by dividends
paid or declared and undistributed net incomelfergeriod that are allocated to the participatecusities to arrive at net income allocated to
common stockholders. Net income allocated to comstockholders is divided by the weighted averagalwer of common shares
outstanding during the period.

The dilutive effect of participating securitiescslculated using the more dilutive of the treasatock or the two-class method. Diluted
net income per common share is calculated by digidiet income allocated to common stockholdersbystim of the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding plus all aad@iticommon shares that would have been outstaiifding potentially dilutive common
shares had been issued.

The weighted average number of common shares adistafor purposes of calculating both basic ardteldl net income per common
share for the first and second quarters of the grded December 31, 2010 were calculated as ieteucturing transaction was
consummated at the beginning of the period.

The following table reconciles net income applieatadl common stockholders and the number of shaes to calculate the basic and
diluted net income per common share for the foryars ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 :
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(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010
Basic EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 157,39 $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢
Less: Earnings allocated to participating secugitie (2,14 (2,829 (1,230)
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 155,25  § 136,58: $ 98,16¢
Basic EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 87,46( 89,99/ 95,75¢
Basic net income per common share $ 1.7t $ 152 $ 1.0z
Diluted EPS Numerator:
Net Income $ 157,39 $ 139,40t $ 99,39¢
Less: Earnings allocated to participating secigitie (2,147 (2,829 (1,230)
Net Income allocated to common stockholders $ 155,25 $ 136,58 $ 98,16¢
Diluted EPS Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 87,46( 89,99 95,75¢

Dilutive common shares issued under restricteckgboagram — — —

Diluted net income per common share $ 1.7¢ $ 152 $ 1.0¢

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , 835,828 sbérestricted stock were not included in thepotation of diluted net income
per common share because to do so would have w@ilgite effect.

15. QUARTERLY DATA (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Year ended December 31, 2012 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenues $ 121,39: $ 132,54¢ $ 128,31¢ $ 130,07¢ $ 512,33t
Operating expenses 63,971 66,48( 67,45¢ 70,32¢ 268,24:
Operating income 57,41¢ 66,06¢ 60,86 59,75: 244,09°
Net income $ 33417 $ 38,49¢ $ 45,75¢  $ 39,72  $ 157,39!
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 32,86: $ 37,90 $ 4524: $ 39,24 $ 155,25«
Diluted—net income per share to common
stockholders $ 037 $ 044 $ 05z % 04t 1.7¢
First Second Third Fourth
Year ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenues $ 124,04. $ 120,29( $ 143,60: $ 120,20¢ $ 508,14«
Operating expenses 66,501 63,83¢ 68,63¢ 67,52¢ 266,51
Operating income 57,53¢ 56,45: 74,96¢ 52,67¢ 241,63:
Net income $ 32,87 $ 33,40 $ 41,327 $ 31,807 $ 139,40¢
Net income allocated to common stockholders $ 32,08¢ $ 32,60¢ $ 40,597 $ 31,287 $ 136,58
Diluted—net income per share to common
stockholders $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.4t $ 03¢ $ 1.52

e Inthe third quarter of 2012, the Company filedaamended return for 2008 and completed its retur2@d1 and recognized, a
discrete item, a $7.6 million benefit for a Secti®® deduction for U.S. production activities whalcompasses all personal
property including computer software for those gear
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* In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company rdedr$5.0 million of expense for an estimated ligbikelated to an SEC
investigation of CBOE's compliance with its obligats as a self-regulatory organization under tlderfal securities laws.

* Inthe fourth quarter of 2012, the Company fitedended returns for 2009 and 2010 and recogre=eal discrete item, a $5.3
million benefit for a Section 199 deduction for UgBoduction activities which encompasses all peskproperty including
computer software for those years.

* Inthe third quarter of 2011, the Company recoggh $4.2 million of income tax expense to resdovgpotential additional tax
liabilities as a result of an advisory opinion fréddew York state taxing authorities which attempieéxtend the state's taxing
power over certain electronic transactions andrdées of out-of-state exchanges going back to 2007

» In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company retped $3.7 milliorof expense due to the departure of a senior execptirsuar
to his employment agreement with the Company.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 6, 2013, the Company's board of direateclared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15share. The dividend is payable on
March 22, 2013 to stockholders of record at theelof business on March 1, 2013.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procechs

In accordance with Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securlieshange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), the @any's management, with the
participation of the Company's Chairman of the Blaand Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vicedtdent and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and tperaf the Company's disclosure controls and pitaoes (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or
15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) &3eakember 31, 2012 . Based upon their evaluatidghesfe disclosure controls and
procedures, the Chairman of the Board and Chietitkee Officer and the Executive Vice President &hdef Financial Officer concluded
that the disclosure controls and procedures wdeetafe at a reasonable assurance level as of DOe@eBdd, 2012 to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in thertspbat it files or submits is recorded, processadhmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, arehsure that information required to be discldsethe Company in the reports that it files
or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulatédcammunicated to the Company's management, imguts principal executive and
financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timelkycisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Controver Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaing. Our internal control
system has been designed to provide reasonableassuo management and the board of directorsdieggthe preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cotapaternal control over financial reporting asi#cember 31, 2012 .
Management based its assessment on criteria feect®# internal control over financial reportingsdgbed in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imtions of the Treadway Commission. Managemassessment included
evaluating the design of our internal control ofileaincial reporting and testing the operationag¢etifveness of our internal control over
financial reporting. The results of its assessmesre reviewed with the audit committee of the baafrdirectors.

Based on this assessment, management believeastaftbecember 31, 2012 , our internal control dvancial reporting is effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP,
an independent registered public accounting fisrstated in their report on page.

There were no changes in the Company's interndataasver financial reporting that occurred durihg three months ended
December 31, 2012 that have materially affectedrereasonably likely to materially affect, outreimal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

Information relating to our executive officers ieliuded on pagek3-19 of this Annual Report on Form 1K- Information relating to ot
directors, including our audit committee and agdinmittee financial experts and the procedures ighvstockholders can recommend
director nominees, and our executive officers bdlin our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013n8al Meeting of Shareholders to be t
on May 23, 2013, which will be filed within 120 dagf the end of our fiscal year ended Decembe2B12 (2013 Proxy Statement") and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBttat applies to our Chief Executive Officer, €l#inancial Officer and
principal accounting officer, as well as all otleenployees and directors. Our Code of Business Garahd Ethics is available on our website
at http://ir.cboe.com/governance.cfm. We will atsovide a copy of the Code of Business Conductkthits to stockholders at no charge
upon written request.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to our executive officer anidedtor compensation and the compensation comnufteer board of directors will k
in the 2013 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihday reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Information relating to security ownership of cartheneficial owners of our common stock and infation relating to the security
ownership of our management will be in the 2013xpPi®tatement and is incorporated herein by referenc

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independence

Information regarding certain relationships andtexd transactions and director independence with ltiee 2013 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accountant fees sawvices will be in the 2013 Proxy Statement anidéorporated herein by referen
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Iltem 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

€)) Documents filed as part of this rep

(1) Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements and theedlegports of management and our independent eegispublic accounting firm
which are required to be filed as part of this repoe included in this Annual Report on Form 1®4Qginning at pagé4. These consolidate
financial statements are as follows:

+ Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December@3®, 2nd2011

e Consolidated Statements of Income for the yeaded December 31, 2012 , 2011 aadc

» Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indomitne years ended December 31, 2012 , 201R2ané

* Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for tlzesyended December 31, 2012 , 2011201

* Consolidated Statements of Stockholders/Memiieygity for the years ended December 31, 20121 2;d201(

* Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The Company has not included any financial statérsemedules because they are not applicable aethered information is included
in the consolidated financial statements or ndteeto.

(3) List of Exhibits

See (b) Exhibits below

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatib@ ®OE Holdings, Inc., incorporated by referencétmex C to
Amendment No. 7 to the Company's Registration 8taitg on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp6, 2010.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of CBOE Holdings, incqrporated by reference to Annex D to Amendnimt7 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (fde333-140574) filed on April 26, 2010.
10.1 Restated License Agreement, dated November 1, 18%4dnd between Standard & Poor's Financial Ses\it€ (as successor-
in-interest to Standard & Poor's, a division of Ma@-Hill, Inc.) and the Chicago Board Options Eacbe, Incorporated (the
"S&P License Agreement"), incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 6 to the CompaiRegistration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filadApril 12, 2010.+
10.z  Amendment No. 1 to the S&P License Agreement, dadgediary 15, 1995, incorporated by reference tolixt0.2 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration 8tate on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp2, 2010.+
10.2  Amendment No. 2 to the S&P License Agreement, dapd 1, 1998, incorporated by reference to Exhit).3 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement amF®-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, 201
10.4 Amendment No. 3 to the S&P License Agreement, daitdyl 28, 2000, incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 to Amendment
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement omF®-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%
10.2  Amendment No. 4 to the S&P License Agreement, d&etdber 27, 2000, incorporated by reference taliixh0.5 to

Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration 8taite on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on inp2, 2010.+
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Exhibit

No. Description of Exhibit

10.6  Amendment No. 5 to the S&P License Agreement, détacth 1, 2003, incorporated by reference to ExHibi6 to Amendmer
No. 6 to the Company's Registration Statement omF-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.7 Amended and Restated Amendment No. 6 to the S&enkie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giBeation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140)5iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢ Amended and Restated Amendment No. 7 to the S&enkie Agreement, dated February 24, 2009, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 6 to the Company'giBeation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140)5iled on April 12,
2010.+

10.¢  Amendment No. 8 to the S&P License Agreement, dadediary 9, 2005, incorporated by reference tolfixh0.9 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Company's Registration 8tat¢ on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on ihp2, 2010.+

10.2C Amendment No. 10 to the S&P License Agreement,ddditme 19, 2009, incorporated by reference to Bxbih10 to
Amendment No. 6 to the Registration Statement amF®-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on April 12, ZD%

10.11 Amendment No. 11 to the Restated License Agreerdeted as of April 29, 2010, by and between Stahé&aPoor's Financial
Services LLC and the Chicago Board Options Exchalmgerporated, incorporated by reference to Extibito the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774gdilon May 11, 2010.+

10.12 Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated ExexiRetirement Plan, incorporated by referencexoiliit 10.13 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8taite on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asigl4, 2009.*

10.12 Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Supgh¢al Retirement Plan, incorporated by refereadextibit 10.14 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8tat¢ on Form S-4 (File No. 333-140574) filed on Asigl4, 2009.*

10.1¢ Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated Defe@ompensation Plan for Officers, incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 4 to the CompangiBration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 33354)) filed on
August 14, 2009.*

10.1t  Amendment No. 1 to the Chicago Board Option Excleahgcorporated Supplemental Retirement Plan, paated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septerd®, 2010 (File
No. 001-34774) filed on November 12, 2010.*

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efiee@&cember 31, 2009, by and between the ChicagaiEdations
Exchange, Incorporated and William J. Brodsky, ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Amendnimt5 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 ({fdle333-140574) filed on March 11, 2010.*

10.17 Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Teigantive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibi20 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Registration 8taite on Form S-1 (File No. 333-165393) filed oneJad, 2010.*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for ExeauOfficers), incorporated by reference to Exhikf.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endadch 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774) filed on Jiie 2010.*

10.1¢ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Nanpdoyee Directors), incorporated by reference thikik 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therigunanded March 31, 2010 (File No. 001-34774fibm June 11, 2010.*

10.2C Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Execi8&erance Plan, incorporated by reference to Bxhib8 to the

Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. @33%-74) filed on December 12, 2012.*
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.21 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement, incorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa@ygrent Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed on December 2010.
10.2z Amended and Restated CBOE Holdings, Inc. Long-Teigaentive Plan, incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. B%~74), filed on May 18, 2011. *
10.2:  Amendment No. 1, dated August 22, 2011, to the Atedrand Restated License Agreement, dated Sept@9p2006, by and
between CME Group Index Services LLC (as succeissimterest to Dow Jones & Company, Inc.) and tiéc&go Board
Options Exchange, Incorporated, incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quartedpdt on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2011 (File No.330%4) filed on November 9, 2011.+
10.2¢ Transition Agreement, by and among CBOE Holdings,,IChicago Board Options Exchange, IncorporatedViilliam J.
Brodsky, dated December 11, 2012, incorporatedfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Curresyid®t on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-34774) filed on December 12, 2012.*
10.2t¢  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, by mmathg CBOE Holdings, Inc., Chicago Board OptionsHatge,
Incorporated and Edward T. Tilly, dated December2DiL2, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2he Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-34774) filed ond@mber 12, 2012.*
21.1 Subsidiaries of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (filed herewyith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Account Firmadfilerewith)
24.1 Powers of Attorney (filed herewith)
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 (filed herewith).
32.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 té T8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
32.z Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRale 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 té T8 of the United States
Code (filed herewith).
101.INst  XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith)
101.scHt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed twtte).
101.cALt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuin@iled herewith).
101.0EFt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (filégtrewith).
101.LABT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documerie(fiherewith).
101.PREt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenntfiled herewith).

tPursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the httve Data files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemd
filed or part of a registration statement or prasps for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the SiesiAct of
1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purpwisesction 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act o
1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subjéabtlity under those sections.

*Indicates Management Compensatory Plan, Contra&trangement.

+Confidential treatment has been previously reaqgkst granted to portions of these exhibits bySEE.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfH®/undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.
(Registrant)
By: /s/ WILLIAM J. BRODSKY

William J. Brodsky
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 28, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitieshendates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl WILLIAM J. BRODSKY Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director February 28, 2013
William J. Brodsky (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl ALAN J. DEAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officadalreasurer February 28, 2013
Alan J. Dean (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ DAVID S. REYNOLDS Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer February 28, 2013
David S. Reynolds (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ JAMES R. BORIS Director February 28, 2013

James R. Boris

/sl MARK F. DUFFY Director February 28, 2013
Mark F. Duffy
/s/ FRANK E. ENGLISH Director February 28, 2013

Frank E. English
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SIGNATURE

/s JANET P. FROETSCHER

Janet P. Froetscher

/s/ JILL R. GOODMAN

Jill R. Goodman

/s PAUL KEPES

Paul Kepes

/sl DUANE R. KULLBERG

Duane R. Kullberg

/sl BENJAMIN R. LONDERGAN

Benjamin R. Londergan

/s/ R. EDEN MARTIN

R. Eden Martin

/sl RODERICK A. PALMORE

Roderick A. Palmore

/sl SUSAN M. PHILLIPS

Susan M. Phillips

/sl SAMUEL K. SKINNER

Samuel K. Skinner

/sl CAROLE E. STONE

Carole E. Stone

/sl EUGENE S. SUNSHINE

Eugene S. Sunshine

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013

February 28, 2013



EXHIBIT 21.1

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES OF CBOE HOLDINGS, INC.

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Name of Subsidiary

Jurisdiction of Organization

CBOE Futures Exchange, LLC

CBOE, LLC

Chicago Board Options Exchange, Incorporated
Chicago Options Exchange Building Corporation
DerivaTech Corporation

Market Data Express, LLC

The Options Exchange, Incorporated

C2 Options Exchange, Incorporated

Delaware
Delaware
laare
eldware
Illinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-174344 on Form S-8unfreports dated February 28, 2013 ,
relating to the financial statements of CBOE Hodgininc. and subsidiaries and the effectivene€BSfE Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries'

internal control over financial reporting, appearin this Annual Report on Form 10-K of CBOE Holgin Inc. and subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2012 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2013



EXHIBIT 24.1
POWERS OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemshose signature appears below hereby constitmiggappoints William J.
Brodsky as attorney-in-fact and agent, with fullyeo of substitution and re-substitution, to signhisior her behalf, individually and in any
and all capacities, including the capacities stadw, any and all amendments to this Annual RepoiForm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and to file the same, with dlilgis thereto, and other documents in connectienewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting to said attorneyatt-&nd agent, full power and authority to do aedggm each and every act and thing
requisite and necessary to be done in and abopirémises, as fully to all intents and purposelseasr she might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attey-in-fact and agent, or his substitute, may ldiyfdo or cause to be done by virtue hereof.



EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

[, William J. Brodsky, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdkthe year ended December 31, 201 ZBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedure (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejray.
Date: February 28, 2013

/s/ WILLIAM J. BRODSKY
Name: William J. Brodsky
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 39

[, Alan J. Dean, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdkthe year ended December 31, 201 ZBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedure (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gniifiole in the
registrant's internal controls over financial rejray.
Date: February 28, 2013

/sl ALAN J. DEAN

Name: Alan J. Dean
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

Written Statement of the Chairman and Chief Executve Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puesit to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wih1.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Chairafahe Board and Chief Executive Officer
of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), hereby ifgrtbased on my knowledge, that the Annual ReparForm 10-K of the Company for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (the "Rg§daily complies with the requirements of Sectib8(a) of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and that information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, thficial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s WILLIAM J. BRODSKY
William J. Brodsky
February 28, 2013




EXHIBIT 32.2

Written Statement of the Executive Vice Presidentiad Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puesit to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying wih U.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Executice President and Chief Financial
Officer of CBOE Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), bby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Anfieghort on Form 10-K of the
Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 202"Report") fully complies with the requiremsmif Section 13(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contaiimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and result
operations of the Company.

/s/ ALAN J. DEAN
Alan J. Dean
February 28, 2013




